
           

TIGARD CITY COUNCIL & CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

MEETING DATE AND TIME: October 13, 2015 - 6:30 p.m. Study Session; 7:30 p.m. Business Meeting

MEETING LOCATION: City of Tigard - Town Hall - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should sign on the appropriate sign-up sheet(s). If no sheet is

available, ask to be recognized by the Mayor at the beginning of that agenda item. Citizen Communication

items are asked to be two minutes or less. Longer matters can be set for a future Agenda by contacting either

the Mayor or the City Manager.

Times noted are estimated; it is recommended that persons interested in testifying be present by 7:15 p.m. to

sign in on the testimony sign-in sheet. Business agenda items can be heard in any order after 7:30 p.m.

Assistive Listening Devices are available for persons with impaired hearing and should be scheduled for

Council meetings by noon on the Monday prior to the Council meeting. Please call 503-639-4171, ext. 2410

(voice) or 503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

Upon request, the City will also endeavor to arrange for the following services:

•        Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments; and

•        Qualified bilingual interpreters.

Since these services must be scheduled with outside service providers, it is important to allow as much lead

time as possible. Please notify the City of your need by 5:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the meeting by

calling: 503-639-4171, ext. 2410 (voice) or 503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

 

SEE ATTACHED AGENDA

 

VIEW LIVE VIDEO STREAMING ONLINE:

http://live.tigard-or.gov 

CABLE VIEWERS: The regular City Council meeting is shown live on Channel 28 at 7:30 p.m. The meeting

will be rebroadcast at the following times on Channel 28:

 Thursday       6:00 p.m.

 Friday          10:00 p.m.

            Sunday       11:00 a.m.

            Monday       6:00 a.m.

http://live.tigard-or.gov


TIGARD CITY COUNCIL & CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING DATE AND TIME: October 13, 2015 - 6:30 p.m. Study Session; 7:30 p.m. Business Meeting

MEETING LOCATION: City of Tigard - Town Hall - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

             

6:30  PM

 
 

STUDY SESSION
 

A.
 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS  6:30 p.m. estimated time
 

B.
 

DISCUSS TIGARD ENTERPRISE ZONE EXPANSION WITH CITY OF LAKE

OSWEGO   6:45 p.m. estimated time
 

C.
 

RECEIVE BRIEFING ON TWO UPCOMING IGAs WITH METRO FOR TRAIL

SEGMENTS   6:55 p.m. estimated time
 

D.
 

DISCUSS CITY MANAGER EVALUATION CRITERIA AND PROCESS   7:05 p.m.

estimated time
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Tigard City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive

Session is called to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable

statute. All discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session.

Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS

192.660(4), but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for the

purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are closed to the

public.
 

7:30 PM
 

1. BUSINESS MEETING
 

A. Call to Order
 

B. Roll Call
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance
 

D. Call to Council and Staff for Non-Agenda Items

 
 

2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATION (Two Minutes or Less, Please)
 



A. Follow-up to Previous Citizen Communication
 

B. Tigard High School Student Envoy
 

C. Tigard Area Chamber of Commerce
 

D. Citizen Communication – Sign Up Sheet
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA: (Tigard City Council) These items are considered routine and may be

enacted in one motion without separate discussion. Anyone may request that an item be removed

by motion for discussion and separate action. Motion to: 7:35 p.m. estimated time
 

A.
 

RECEIVE AND FILE:

 

   1.  Council Calendar

   2.  Council Tentative Agenda for Future Meeting Topics
 

B.
 

APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES: 

 September 8, 2015

 September 15, 2015

 September 22, 2015
 

Consent Agenda - Items Removed for Separate Discussion: Any items requested to be removed from the Consent Agenda

for separate discussion will be considered immediately after the Council/City Center Development Agency has voted on

those items which do not need discussion.
 

4.
 

LEGISLATIVE SESSION WRAP UP  7:40 p.m. estimated time
 

5.
 

DEVELOP 2016 FEDERAL AND STATE LEGISLATIVE AGENDA  8:00 p.m. estimated

time
 

6.
 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND

ZONE CHANGE FOR FIELDS TRUST 8:20 p.m. estimated time
 

7.
 

CONSIDER RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2016 FIRST QUARTER BUDGET

SUPPLEMENTAL  8:45 p.m. estimated time
 

8.
 

CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

CONSIDER RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2016 CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT

AGENCY BUDGET SUPPLEMENTAL  8:55 p.m. estimated time
 

9.
 

CONSIDERATION OF TASER PURCHASE CONTRACT  9:00 p.m. estimated time
 

10.
 

APPROVE 72ND AND DARTMOUTH INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS

DEVELOPER COSTS AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE

REIMBURSEMENT  9:10 p.m. estimated time
 

11. NON AGENDA ITEMS  9:20 p.m. estimated time



 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  The Tigard City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive

Session is called to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable

statute. All discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session.

Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS

192.660(4), but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for

the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are closed to

the public.
 

13. ADJOURNMENT    9:25 p.m. estimated time
 



   

AIS-2073       A.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 15 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Council Liaison Reports

Submitted By: Norma Alley, Central Services

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Council
Business
Mtg - Study
Sess.

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Council will present liaison reports.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A

Attachments

No file(s) attached.



   

AIS-2347       B.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Tigard Enterprise Zone Expansion with City of Lake Oswego

Prepared For: Lloyd Purdy, Community Development 

Submitted By: Lloyd Purdy, Community Development

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Council
Business
Mtg - Study
Sess.

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

The City of Lake Oswego requests an expansion of the Tigard Enterprise Zone to include 96
acres of Lake Oswego’s industrial/commercial zoned land. This expanded enterprise zone
would be called the Tigard/Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

In coordination with the City of Lake Oswego, pass a resolution on October 27 expanding
Tigard's current enterprise zone to include the portion of Lake Oswego outlined in the
attached maps, and authorize the City of Tigard’s economic development manager to manage
this multi-jurisdictional program.
 

Exhibit I shows the existing Tigard Enterprise Zone in blue and the proposed expansion area
in green. Exhibit II shows a preliminary view of the area that the Lake Oswego City Council
would like to include in the proposed Tigard/Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The Tigard Enterprise Zone was created by Tigard City Council Resolution 14-51 in October
2014. The Tigard Enterprise Zone was authorized by the Director of the State’s Economic
Development Agency, Business Oregon, in November 2014.
 
Currently ten enterprise zones act as a tool for economic development in the Portland metro
region. Forest Grove/Cornelius and Troutdale/Fairview are examples of cities that work
together through enterprise zones that cross municipal boundaries. A similar partnership
between The City of Tigard and City of Lake Oswego would result in the creation of the
Tigard/Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone.
 



 
Enterprise zones offer qualified businesses that are located within a defined boundary, a three
to five year tax abatement on new investment (equipment, buildings, and facilities) when the
firm also invests in new employees by increasing their workforce by 10%. To date, three firms
in Tigard are eligible to participate in this program. The Tigard Enterprise Zone currently
includes all the industrial, manufacturing and commercially zoned properties in Tigard eligible
for this program based upon the State’s economic hardship criteria. Exhibit III provides
background on the Tigard Enterprise Zone.
 
Amending the Tigard Enterprise Zone boundary to support business growth in a neighboring
city is allowed via a formal request to Business Oregon, the State of Oregon's economic
development agency. Expanding the enterprise zone to include industrial land in Lake
Oswego’s Southwest Employment Area will add: 

96 acres of property.
84 industrial zoned or commercial tax lots.
15 eligible businesses (estimated).
1 firm ready for an immediate investment within the next 12 months.

 
The Tigard/Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone will be managed by the City of Tigard’s Economic
Development Manager. An IGA will govern the specifics of that partnership.
 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Limit the Tigard Enterprise Zone to the boundaries of the City of Tigard.

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Expanding the Tigard Enterprise Zone is consistent with the recommendations of Tigard’s
Comprehensive Plan Goal 9 encouraging regional partnerships and economic development. 
It is also supported by the strategic vision of a more interconnected city connecting us
through a collaboration with a neighboring municipality.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

February 2014 Council discussion of Enterprise Zone program.
October 2014 Resolution (14-51) to create the Tigard Enterprise Zone.

Attachments

Proposed Tigard/Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone Map (Draft)

Expaned view of sites in Lake Oswego (Draft)

Tigard Enterprise Zone



¥§̈¦

¥§̈¦
SSS

SSS

SSS

PNWR RAILROAD & WES COMMUTER RAIL

CA
P I

TO
L

HW
Y

PACIF IC
HWY

CAR MAN DR

UPPER D R

SCH OLLS FERRY RD

BONITA RD

NY BE RG ST

TIE

D EMAN
AVE

MEA DOWS RD

MCD ON AL D S T

C HILD S RD

UP
PE

R
BO

O N
ES

F E
RR

Y R
D

BO
ONE S F E RRY

RD

RIGE R T R D

TAY LORS FERRY RD

L AKEVIEW BLVD

KRUSE WAY

B EEF BE N D RD

MEL R OSE  S T

DUR HA M R D

GRE
EN

WA

Y

RO
Y

R O
GE

RS
RD

12
1S

T
AV

E

15
0T

H 
AV

E

BRO CK MA N S T

BU LL MO U NTA IN RD

EL

SN E R
RD

OLES ON RD

WEIR  RD

HALL BLVD

72
ND

 A
VE

GR
EE

NB
UR

G
RD

PI
LK

IN
GT

ON
 R

D

BRYANT RD

G AA RD E S T

KERR
PKW

YMAIN
ST

MU
RR

AY
 B

LV
D

FO
SB

ER
G 

RD

45
TH

DR
QU

AR
RY

 R
D

K E
L O

K
RD

13
5T

H 
AV

E

17
5T

H  
AV

E 12
5T

H  
AV

E
L ESSER R D

TUA LAT IN R D

99W

217

99W

5

5

C i t y  o f  T i g a r d ,  O r e g o n
1 3 1 2 5  S W  H a l l  B l v d

T i g a r d ,  O R  9 7 2 2 3
5 0 3  6 3 9 - 4 1 7 1

w w w . t i g a r d - o r . g o v

Map Created: 9/24/2015

Enterprise 
Zone 

Expansion 
Map 

(DRAFT)

§̈¦

§̈¦

§̈¦

§̈¦§̈¦5

5

84

205

PORTLAND

VANCOUVER

TIGARD

BEAVERTON

HILLS BORO

TUALATIN

LA KE OSWEGO

OREGO N CITY

MILWAUKIE

GRESH AM

Proposed Lake Oswego 
Expansion 2015 
Tigard Enterprise Zone 2014 
Tigard City Boundary

City of  
Tigard Oregon

Path: \\192.168.109.215\GIS_Projects\FIS_projects\2015\enterprise_zone\enterprise_zone1117.mxd

V i c i n i t y  M a p

Proposed Tigard/Lake Oswego 
Enterprise Zone

Proposed Tigard/Lake Oswego 
Enterprise Zone

Area in blue shows the existing 
enterprise zone in Tigard. Area in 
green shows the portion of the zone 
that, after expansion, would include 
Lake Oswego resulting in the Tigard/
Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone.

AIS 2347 Exhibit I



¥§̈¦

PN
WR R

AIL
RO

AD
 & 

WES
 CO

MM
UT

ER
 RA

IL

BOONES FERRY RD

UP PE R D R

LO WER BO ONE S F ERRY R D JE AN  RD

LAKEV IEW BLVD

WA SH ING TON CT

UP
PE

R 
BO

ON
ES

 F
ER

RY
 R

D

LAKE FOREST BLVD

DURHAM RD

BRIDGEPORT RD

PI
L K

IN
GT

ON
RD

BR
YA

NT
 R

D

72
ND

 A
VE

JE
AN

 W
AY

Tigard
Enterprise

Zone

Lake Oswego 

5

C i t y  o f  T i g a r d ,  O r e g o n
1 3 1 2 5  S W  H a l l  B l v d

T i g a r d ,  O R  9 7 2 2 3
5 0 3  6 3 9 - 4 1 7 1

w w w . t i g a r d - o r . g o v

Map Created: 9/24/2015

Enterprise Zone 
Expansion (draft) 

Lake Oswego 
Southwest 

Employment Area

§̈¦

§̈¦

§̈¦

§̈¦§̈¦5

5

84

205

PORTLAND

VANCOUVER

TIGARD

BEAVERTON

HILLS BORO

TUALATIN

LA KE OSWEGO

OREGO N CITY

MILWAUKIE

GRESH AM

Lake Oswego area to include 
Tigard Enterprise Zone
Tigard City Boundary

City of  
Tigard Oregon

Path: \\192.168.109.215\GIS_Projects\FIS_projects\2015\enterprise_zone\enterprise_zone1117.mxd

V i c i n i t y  M a p

AIS 2347     Exhibit II

Expanded view of sites in Lake 
Oswego that will be included in 
the proposed Tigard/Lake 
Oswego Enterprise Zone.



Tigard’s Enterprise ZoneTigard’s Enterprise Zone
Supporting business growth and job creation in Tigard

B U I L D I N G S

E M P L O Y E E S

E Q U I P M E N T

F A C I L I T I E S

Lloyd Purdy
Economic Development Manager

503.718.2442
__________

City of Tigard
Community Development Department
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

www.tigard-or.gov

ENTERPRISE ZONE OVERVIEW

Tigard’s Enterprise Zone supports local business growth
and job creation within the city.

Businesses located in Tigard’s Enterprise Zone may be eligible for a three to five 
year tax exemption on new equipment, facilities and buildings.

Tigard’s Enterprise Zone Program offers a 100 percent waiver of real property tax 
on eligible investments for up to five years. These investments must meet state 
and local requirements, including a 10 percent increase in employment. 

Land and existing equipment are not eligible for the Tigard Enterprise Zone 
exemption. Once the abatement period of three to five years is over the entire 
asset enters the tax role.

ENTERPRISE ZONE ELIGIBILITY

The property and investment for industrial, manufacturing and commercial firms 
must be located within the Tigard Enterprise Zone boundaries, and meet the state 
and local requirements found on the next page.

Tigard’s Enterprise Zone, shown above shaded in green, is as inclusive as possible given state 
requirements. This was done to allow as many businesses as possible an opportunity to participate.

0 2,500 5,000 7,500 10,0001,250
Feet

D u r h a m

K i n g
C i t y Lake

Oswego

P o r t l a n d

T i g a r d

T u a l a t i n

B e a v e r t o n

S C H O L L S F E R RY R D

WA L N UT S T

C A R MA N DR

D
A

R

T M O U T H S T

B O N I TA  R D

6 2ND
D

R

G R E EN
W

A
Y

B E E F B E N D R D D U R H A M  R DR
O

Y
R

O
G

E
R

S
R

D

HU N Z I K E R R D

O LE S ON R D

1
21

S
T

A
V

E

15
0

T
H

 A
V

E

M C D O N A L D  S T

B R O C K M A N  S T

B U L L M O U N TA I N R D

W E I R  R D

H
A

L
L

B
L

V
D

G
R

E
E

N
B

U
R

G
R

D

72
N

D
 A

V
E

G A A R D E S T

M AI N
S T

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 B
LV

D

17
5

T
H

 A
V

E

13
5

T
H

 A
V

E

12
5

T
H

 A
V

E

H A L L
B LV D

5

5

99W

99W

217

217

Pac Trust
Oregon 
Business 
Park

Tigard
Triangle

Washington 
Square 
Shopping 
Center

AIS 2347     Exhibit III



Tigard’s 
Enterprise 

Zone
Supporting business growth 

and job creation in Tigard

Tigard’s 
Enterprise 

Zone

Lloyd Purdy
Economic Development Manager

503.718.2442
__________

City of Tigard
Community Development Department
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

www.tigard-or.gov

STATE REQUIREMENTS 

Written Agreement:  Participating business is required to enter into a written 
agreement with the municipality that will be based on the terms of the company’s 
Authorization Application and Oregon Statute and Administrative Rules.

First Source Hiring Agreement (FSA): Prior to or concurrently with the execution of the 
written agreement, firm shall enter into an FSA with WorkSource Oregon 
Employment Department for employees hired at the qualified facility throughout 
the project’s construction and tax exemption period. 

Employment Qualifications: By the first exemption filing, firm must increase 
employment (and maintain that throughout the exemption period) by 10 percent 
in the zone. 

LOCAL INCENTIVES 

Expedited Land Use Review:  Fast tracking of the land use review process.

Fee Waivers:  The following fees are also waived by 50 percent: 
 A. Pre-application conference fees 
 B. Business registration fees 
 C.  Sign permit 
 D. Development Code provision review 

Extended Abatement:  The City Council may extend the standard exemption by up to 
two more years if the qualifying company increases employment by 10 percent 
each year and new jobs are compensated (wages plus benefits) at 200 percent of 
Oregon minimum wage (Oregon minimum wage is $9.10 per hour as of 2/2014).  

LOCAL REQUIREMENTS

In addition to state requirements, the City of Tigard has elected to add the following 
requirements to its Enterprise Zone program: 

Minimum Investment:  A minimum investment of $500,000 is required. 

Procurement Plan:  A procurement plan to increase purchasing with Tigard-based
companies is required. 

Job Quality: 
 A.  Total compensation for 75 percent of company’s zone facility jobs (wages plus 

benefits) must exceed 200 percent of Oregon minimum wage after one year of 
employment (Oregon minimum wage is $9.10 per hour as of 2/2014);

 B.  Must provide benefits to employees that meet or exceed the national average 
of non-mandated benefits for the size of the company, and 

 C. Must offer sufficient training and advancement opportunities for all employees. 

Application Fee:  There is an application fee of one tenth of one percent (.001) of the value 
of the invest ment for qualified property that is proposed in the application, capped 
at $50,000. 

Community Service Fee:  Companies applying for the extended abatement of up to two 
additional years must pay a community service fee. This fee is calculated at a rate 
of 25 percent of the abated taxes for years four and five, and is paid by the eligible 
business to the City of Tigard.

EXPRESSION OF INTEREST

If you are interested in participating in Tigard’s Enterprise Zone, please contact the 
City of Tigard’s Economic Development Manager Lloyd Purdy at 503.718.2442.

Businesses interested in Tigard’s Enterprise Zone program can obtain the state 
application online at: http://www.oregon.gov/DOR/PTD/docs/303-029.pdf

Tigard’s Enterprise Zone was created 
in 2014 to induce additional private-
sector investment and jobs as well  
as a short-term benefit to a project’s 
cash flow.

   Encourage Tigard-based entre- 
 preneurs and firms to start up 
and grow.

   Prompt bigger re/investments 
than might otherwise occur.

   Accelerate investment, expan - 
sion and hiring.

   Expand employment.

   Bolster early success of business 
projects.

   Attract investment and facilities 
that would move or locate 
outside of the City of Tigard.



   

AIS-2350       C.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Briefing on Two Upcoming IGA's with Metro for Trail Segments

Prepared For: Steve Martin, Public Works Submitted By: Steve
Martin,
Public
Works

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Council
Business
Mtg - Study
Sess.

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Council will be briefed on upcoming intergovernmental agreements (IGA)  with Metro.  The
first two will be discussed in detail, as they are near completion:
1. An IGA for an easement and maintenance of a trail near Sunrise Lane.

2. An IGA for the construction and maintenance of a trail near Tiedeman Avenue and
Woodard Park.

The following two IGAs will also be brought to council's attention:
3. An IGA to allow the Fanno Creek Trail to be built on the Fields and Brown properties for
the Regional Flexible Funding Account grant.

4. An IGA to maintain the infrastructure that Friends of Bull Mountain Park will add to Bull
Mountain Park.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Staff recommends council receive the briefing and give staff direction, if needed.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Council will be briefed on two draft IGAs currently being reviewed by staff; maps are
attached that show these segments. 

1. The first IGA is to receive and maintain a trail segment that connects Sunrise Lane to
Sandridge Lane.  There is currently a small paved trail in this area that is on private property. 



Metro is negotiating to purchase the property, and the IGA will allow Tigard to maintain this
trail segment.  The trail connects the future Westside Trail and several neighborhoods on Bull
Mountain to Sunrise Lane and the future Sunrise Community Park.  This trail segment is
identified in the Neighborhood Trails Plan as #9 (it is erroneously marked #14 on the photo).
This IGA will apply to future METRO acquisitions in Tigard under this METRO program.

2. The second IGA is for Tigard to be reimbursed for up to $660,000 in Metro bond funds
for the design and construction of a bridge over Fanno Creek and the connecting trail
segments for realignment of the Fanno Creek Trail adjacent to Tiedeman Avenue.  There is
no required match for this funding grant, however Tigard's responsibility will be to construct
and maintain the trail segment.  This project will remove one dangerous turn on the existing
trail and move the trail off Tiedeman Avenue and onto the Metro-owned Swann property and
Woodard Park. This trail segment is identified in the Greenway Trail System Master Plan as
project "H".

If time permits, staff will brief the council on two other IGAs that are still in process of
development.  That briefing will be informational and will inform council as to IGA status and
provide them opportunity to give direction as to having these items in future study sessions. 
Those agreements are:

3. An IGA to allow the city to build the Fanno Creek Trail from the Library through the
Fields and Brown properties.  This is mostly a formality, as the city is already committed to
building and maintaining the future trail in this area. 

4. An IGA will be required for the Friends of Bull Mountain Park to receive their grant from
Metro to build a shelter, playground, and trail segments.  The IGA assures the city will
maintain these facilities and add to the parks inventory when they are completed in Bull
Mountain Park.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Council approves all IGAs.  These IGAs will help further the city's strategic plan for
walkability.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

There has been no previous discussion on these IGAs.

Fiscal Impact

Fiscal Information:

The fiscal impact for these IGAs will involve budgeting for maintenance of the trail



The fiscal impact for these IGAs will involve budgeting for maintenance of the trail
sections.  Additionally, the Tiedeman realignment will require the City to pay invoices to be
reimbursed by Metro for construction of the bridge and trail.  Better fiscal information
should be available for these items when the IGAs come back for Council approval.

Attachments

Tiedeman Description

Tiedeman Map

Sunrise Area

Sunrise Aerial



Tigard Greenway Trails System Master Plan  April 28, 2011 

Recommended Greenway Trails 

  115 

FANNO CREEK TRAIL – TIEDEMAN AVENUE CROSSING 

REALIGNMENT (ALIGNMENT 5B) 
H 

Summary Cost Opinion

This alignment would improve the difficult Fanno 

Creek Trail crossing of Tiedeman Avenue. The City is 

constructing short-term improvements, including: 

signage, curb ramps, and high-visibility crossings. 

This alignment would additionally eliminate the 90 

degree turns currently required in this segment and 

cross Fanno Creek via a bridge near the existing road 

bridge. The trail would connect to the Fanno Creek 

Trail in Woodard City Park. The land this alignment 

crosses is currently owned by Metro under the terms 

of a life estate. Trail use is prohibited on the property 

until the life estate is relinquished and would be 

subject to Metro approval thereafter. 

Length: 450’ 

High Design Option: Alignment 

· Design: 12’ permeable asphalt, precast 

concrete bridge, fencing 

· Planning-level cost: $274,000 

Medium Design Option: Alignment 

· Design: 10’ asphalt, wood bridge, 

Planning-level cost: $173,000 

Low Design Option: Length: Alignment 

· Design: 6’ gravel, wood bridge 

· Planning-level cost: $139,000 

 

Opportunities

· Enhances safe routes to schools opportunities 

· Improves safety and user comfort on a popular 

segment of a regional trail 

Constraints 

· Majority of trail in flood plain 

· Crossing improvements on Tiedemann Avenue 

· Requires bridge over Fanno Creek 

· 105’ in ‘strictly limit’ habitat area 









   

AIS-2371       D.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes  

Agenda Title: City Manager Evaluation Criteria and Process

Submitted By: Dana Bennett, City Management

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Council
Business
Mtg - Study
Sess.

Public Hearing: Yes Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Initiating the City Manager's Annual Performance Evaluation Process

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Council to review attached 2015 City Manager evaluation criteria and process and
provide guidance/direction to staff regarding any desired changes to criteria, process and/or
evaluator list.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Please see the attached memo to Council regarding the prior year's process. Also attached is a
blank copy of the following documents -- the 2014 evaluation tool, the 2014 external partner's
evaluation questions, and also revised tools for the 2015 evaluation process for Council
consideration.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

This is the first meeting for Council to consider the 2015 City Manager's evaluation process.

Attachments

City Mgr. 2015 Process Memo to Council 

City Mgr. 2014 Eval Form

City Mgr. 2014 External Partner Questions

City Mgr. 2015 Eval Form Draft



City Mgr. 2015 External Partner Questions Draft



City of Tigard

Memorandum

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Dana Bennett, Human Resources Director

Re: City Manager Annual Performance Review

Date: October 1, 2015

In accordance with the Employment Agreement for City Manager Marty Wine, the City Council 
is required to conduct an annual performance review in December 2015. The first step to be 
taken by Council is to decide on the criteria and process to be used for the evaluation. This is 
scheduled for your October 13th meeting, during a study session. On November 10, 2015 during 
a business meeting, the Council will request public input on the criteria and process that has 
been selected, as required by employment law for public employees. Following these two steps, 
then I will initiate the process of collecting information/evaluations data to compile. Once that 
process is completed, the performance evaluation will take place during an executive session.

Last year’s performance review of the City Manager included the following process/steps:

1) The City Council decided to have both the council and other evaluators complete a written 
performance review of the City Manager for the prior 12 month period. The Council 
approved a review form to be used and a list of raters/evaluators. A copy of the completed 
final review is attached. The format that was used by external evaluators was a set of 
questions, as the external evaluators would not have the benefit or opportunity of observing 
internal operations, last year’s list of questions is also attached.

2) The Human Resources Director coordinated the distribution of forms to all raters.

3) The Human Resources Director received all completed review forms and collated ratings 
and comments into two final documents: one that incorporated all City Council comments 
and ratings, and a second which incorporated all ratings and comments from the other
evaluators. The information was transferred without reference to the rater’s name, and each 
category/criteria was assigned an average score.

4) Both documents were submitted to the Council for their review prior to the date of the 
performance review of the City Manager. 



5) If there were no further changes, both documents were provided to the City Manager prior 
to the actual review. 

6) A performance review was conducted for the City Manager with the City Council in an 
Executive Session. 

The other evaluators who provided input for last year’s evaluation, in addition to City Council 
included:

External Partners:  TDA Board (Murphy, DeAngelo, Mollahan Shearer, Thomburg and 
Stevenson), Tom Anderson (Planning Commission), Randy Ealy (City of Beaverton, 
Chief Administrative Officer), Joel Rubin (CFM Strategic Communications Inc., VP 
Federal Affairs), Mike Duyck (TVFR, Fire Chief), Alan Kennedy (TVFR, Battalion 
Chief), Joel Komarek (City of Lake Oswego, LO-Tigard Water Project), Scott Lazenby
(City of Lake Oswego, City Manager)

All Department Directors: Toby LaFrance (Finance and IT Director), Dennis 
Koellermeier (LO-Tigard Water Project Director), Margaret Barnes (Library Director), 
Chief Orr (Chief of Police), Liz Newton (Assistant CM), Kenny Asher (CD), Brian Rager 
(PW), Nadine Robinson (Central Services Director) and Dana Bennett (HR Director)

Other Staff: Joanne Bengtson (Exec. Assistant to the CM), Loreen Mills (Assistant to 
the CM), Rudy Owens (Communications Strategist) and Lloyd Purdy (Economic 
Development Manager)

Based upon some Council feedback regarding last year’s tool, the form has been modified to 
address some of the concerns that were raised, while largely maintaining the same core rating
dimensions. A copy of the 2015 City Manager Goals, that were established as a result of the 
Council’s 2014 performance review and feedback, have been built into a draft evaluation tool 
that will be before Council, to measure the City Manager’s performance against the stated goals 
and objectives

The issues before the City Council for your October 13th meeting are:

1) What criteria does the Council wish to include in the review document (a draft tool is 
attached for your consideration based on feedback from last year’s review)

2) What process do you want to use to collect this information (note any changes from last 
year)

3) Who do you want to include for this year’s evaluator list (note any changes from last year) 

I will be at the meeting of the 13th to collect any feedback or direction and to assist in any way I 
can. 

Thank you



P a g e | 1  

CITY OF TIGARD
CITY MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Review period:                January 2014- December 2014

I. In completing this evaluation, please consider the City-wide core values adopted to set the standard for service 
excellence at the City of Tigard (“Get it Done”, “Do the Right Thing”, and “Respect and Care”).

Please use the following criteria:  4 = Exceeds Expectations; 3 = Fully Effective; 2 = Developing; 1 = Needs Improvement;         
NA = Not applicable (have not observed this area during the evaluation period).

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

II. Evaluate and discuss the City Manager’s overall job performance in achievement of the GOALS set for the 
current review period. Base your evaluation upon the job requirements, achievement of the goals established during 
the past review period, and your assessment of the City Manager’s accomplishments.

1. GOAL 1 -Economic Development
a. Establish an ED strategy so Tigard is organized to support developing the local economy
b. Set up staff resources to carry out and support the strategy
c. Engage a community committee or group to help with and carry out the strategy
d. Create transportation connections by continuing to pursue Ash Avenue rail crossing
e. Downtown Tigard and Urban Renewal District
f. Advance plaza development through property acquisition
g. Pursue a housing redevelopment project
h. Pursue a retail and mixed-use project
i. Create a bike/pedestrian connection with Tigard Triangle

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 2  

2. GOAL 2 -Financial Stability: build the city's financial reserves
a. Work with employees to establish "fair share" benefit contribution
b. Defer or delay projects or find more efficient ways to do business
c. Pursue local option levy in spring of 2014
d. Find creative solutions to increase revenues
e. Plan for Growth: River Terrace Community Plan substantially complete, bring entitlement/zoning decisions 

to Council as soon as possible (in calendar year 2013 if possible); communication with annexing residents to 
understand service desires

f. Community recreation: find financing to support increasing recreation capacity in Tigard
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

3. GOAL 3 -LO-Tigard Water Partnership: continue to build partnership relationships and keep 
current sources and project on track
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

4. GOAL 4 -Community Engagement: develop venues to meet with the public quarterly to gather input 
on key issues facing the City, including:

a. Annexation
b. Transportation/HCT

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 3  

5. GOAL 5 -State and Regional Relations
a. Effectively represent Tigard on revenue reform issues in 2013
b. Work with neighboring jurisdictions to advance joint transportation and economic development goals at the 

state and federal level
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

III. Evaluate and discuss the City Manager’s job performance for the current review period. Please provide 
specific examples to support your assessment/evaluation. Consider the City Manager’s performance in the following 
areas.

a. Administrative Ability/Professional Skills including planning, organizing, time management, decision-
making, and organizational/strategic thinking
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

b. Personnel Functions including supervision, delegation, labor relations, and leadership/management style
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

c. Budget and Finance including financial management and operational efficiency
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

d. Community Relations including public service, sensitivity, public involvement, and media relations
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 4  

e. Intergovernmental Relations including representation and developing resources
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

f. Interpersonal Skills/Individual Characteristics including professionalism, creativity, ethics, and 
adaptability
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

g. Communications including community/public, employees, and Council
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

h. Economic Growth & Development including strategy, vision and community engagement
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS (OPTIONAL)



P a g e | 5  

IV. Are there areas of exceptional performance that should be particularly noted? Provide specific examples.

V. Are there areas of performance needing more attention or improvement? Provide specific examples.

ESTABLISHMENT OF GOALS FOR UPCOMING RATING PERIOD

List and discuss your expectations and suggested goals for the City Manager for the upcoming performance 
evaluation period. Goals should be: (1) related to community goals, (2) may include new projects or ongoing fundamental 
portions of the position, and (3) should include specific measures including outcomes and timeframes.

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS (OPTIONAL)

Please provide any additional comments on the City Manager’s performance review in the space provided here.



E x t e r n a l  P a r t n e r s  E v a l u a t i o n  F o r m P a g e | 1  
R e v i s e d  2 0 1 4

CITY OF TIGARD
CITY MANAGER EXTERNAL PARTNER EVALUATION FORM

Review period:                January 2014- December 2014

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

1. How has Marty’s leadership impacted the City of Tigard’s partnership/relationship with you and your 
organization?

2. What has Marty done to increase, improve, or enhance the partnership/relationship with you and your 
organization?  

3. What are some areas where Marty could improve the City’s partnership/relation with you and your 
organization?  



P a g e | 1  

CITY OF TIGARD
CITY MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Review period:                January 2015- December 2015

I. In completing this evaluation, please consider the City-wide core values adopted to set the standard for service 
excellence at the City of Tigard (“Get it Done”, “Do the Right Thing”, and “Respect and Care”).

Please use the following criteria:  4 = Exceeds Expectations; 3 = Fully Effective; 2 = Developing; 1 = Needs Improvement;         
NA = Not applicable (have not observed this area during the evaluation period).

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

II. Evaluate and discuss the City Manager’s overall job performance in achievement of the GOALS set for the 
current review period. Base your evaluation upon the job requirements, achievement of the goals established during 
the past review period, and your assessment of the City Manager’s accomplishments.

1. GOAL 1 –Economic/Community Development
a. Adopt Tigard Triangle Strategic Plan and Enable Future Development Capacity
b. Enable Groundbreaking in River Terrace by Summer 2015
c. Make Downtown Tigard a Place Where People Want to Be
d. Purchase Park Plaza

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

2. GOAL 2 –Recreation
a. Provide Recreation Opportunities for the residents of Tigard 
b. Fund and Hire Recreation Coordinator

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

3. GOAL 3 – Homelessness
a. Address Homelessness -- squatting, camps, and panhandling through robust public policy 

discussions/resources that include our Downtown area and throughout Tigard  

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 2  

4. GOAL 4 –Strategic Vision
a. Lead the Implementation of the City’s Strategic Plan

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

5. GOAL 5 –Community Engagement
a. Expand Opportunities to Engage People in the Community
b. Provide Open Communication
c. Promote Trust
d. Make Network Neighborhoods Websites active and useful for all of council and community outreach and 

volunteer project purposes (e.g., neighborhood volunteer coordination, functions, promote city recreation, 
events and activities, list city events and social grant awards, identify neighborhood nuisances that include 
vagrant and pandering activities and homeless camp siting policy review, etc.)

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

6. GOAL 6 –Council Support/General Improvements
a. Balance history and context on issues before Council and help Council develop collegial style
b. Assist Mayor in efficient Council Meetings
c. Prevent Waste
d. Fund and Hire additional Police if assessment determines need for RT this year

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

7. GOALS 7 –State and Regional Relations
a. Help Facilitate Intergovernmental Communications
b. Advance Tigard’s membership on JPACT and MPAC

RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 3  

III. Evaluate and discuss the City Manager’s job performance for the current review period. Please provide 
specific examples to support your assessment/evaluation. Consider the City Manager’s performance in the following 
areas.

a. Professional Skills/Decision Making Ability to anticipate and analyze problems and map effective 
solutions. In making decisions considers the best available facts, projections, and evidence and to the extent 
that resources permit, ensures that such tools are available. Has a solid understanding of all departmental 
functions within city government.
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

b. Leadership Sets the performance tone and culture of the organization, recognizes opportunities, capitalizes 
on partnerships, promotes trust, builds and motivates teamwork, provides vision and direction, encourages 
and seeks to develop the skills and abilities of others. Treats all with respect and sets the standard for 
performance accountability by example.
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

c. Personnel/Risk/Labor Relations Understands contract negotiations, labor strategy and contract 
administration. Equitably, fairly and with consideration addresses issues related to labor matters. Recognizes 
the value of excellent staff and seeks to maintain high performers while balancing the containment of costs. 
Implements effective programs and decisions to ensure management and control of liability and loss.
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

d. Budget and Finance Including financial management and operational efficiency such as accurately and 
concisely reports and projects the financial condition. Management practices and policies are designed to 
maintain or achieve a sound long-range financial condition. Obtains the best possible result for the money 
spent, and monitors efficiency, service improvement and effectiveness for programs. 
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 4  

e. Community Relations Including public service, sensitivity, public involvement, and media relations
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

f. Intergovernmental Relations Develops good working relationships with other local, county, regional, state 
and federal agencies and effectively represents city interests
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

g. Interpersonal Skills/Individual Characteristics Including professionalism, creativity, honesty, ethics, and 
adaptability
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

h. Communications Provides Council with well-informed concise oral and written communication, responds 
to the direction of the majority of the Council--while still recognizing the concerns of the minority, 
approachable and responsive, is able to represent Council to the community through forums, publications 
and other venues. Pursues an outreach style of management as a spokesperson for city issues.  
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4

i. Economic Growth & Development Including strategy, vision and community engagement
RATING: NA 1 2 3 4



P a g e | 5  

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS (OPTIONAL)

IV. Are there areas of exceptional performance that should be particularly noted? Provide specific examples.

V. Are there areas of performance needing more attention or improvement? Provide specific examples.

ESTABLISHMENT OF GOALS FOR UPCOMING RATING PERIOD

List and discuss your expectations and suggested goals for the City Manager for the upcoming performance 
evaluation period. Goals should be: (1) related to community goals, (2) may include new projects or ongoing projects, and (3) 
should include specific measures including outcomes and timeframes.

1. Goal/Project/Training:

2. Goal/Project/Training:

3. Goal/Project/Training:

4. Goal/Project/Training: 

5. Goal/Project/Training:

6. Goal/Project/Training:

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS (OPTIONAL)

Please provide any additional comments on the City Manager’s performance review in the space provided here.

City Manager’s Signature: Date:

Mayor’s Signature: Date:



E x t e r n a l  P a r t n e r s  E v a l u a t i o n  F o r m P a g e | 1  
R e v i s e d  2 0 1 4

CITY OF TIGARD
CITY MANAGER EXTERNAL PARTNER EVALUATION FORM

Review period:                January 2015- December 2015

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

1. How has Marty’s leadership impacted the City of Tigard’s partnership/relationship with you and your 
organization?

2. What has Marty done this year to increase, improve, or enhance the partnership/relationship with you and 
your organization?

3. What are some things that Marty could do differently that would help the City of Tigard in its relationship 
with you and your organization?

4. Other observations you would like to share?



   

AIS-2386       3. A.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Receive and File: Council Calendar and Council Tentative Agenda

Submitted By: Carol Krager, Central Services

Item Type: Receive and File Meeting Type: Consent -
Receive and
File

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Receive and file the Council Calendar and the Tentative Agenda for future council meetings. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

No action is requested; these are for information purposes.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Attached are the Council Calendar and the Tentative agenda for future Council meetings.
  

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A - Receive and File Items

Attachments

Council Calendar

Tentative Agenda



 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor & City Council/City Center Development Agency Board 

  
 

FROM: Carol A. Krager, City Recorder 
 
RE: Three-Month Council/CCDA Meeting Calendar 
 
DATE:  October 6, 2015 
 
  
October 
  6 Tuesday City Center Development Agency – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall  
  8  Thursday Voters Forum – 6:00-7:30 p.m. Twality Middle School Commons,  
  14650 SW 97th Avenue 
 13* Tuesday Council Business/CCDA Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
 16 Friday Council Tailgate - 5:00-6:30 p.m. (before football game, Tigard High Tennis Courts  
  9000 SW Durham Road    
 20* Tuesday Council Workshop Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall  
 27*  Tuesday  Council Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
 
November  
  3 Tuesday City Center Development Agency – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall (ELECTION DAY) 
 10* Tuesday Council Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
 17* Tuesday Council Workshop Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall  
 24*  Tuesday  Council Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
 
December 
  1 Tuesday City Center Development Agency – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall  
  8* Tuesday Council Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
15* Tuesday Council Workshop/Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall  
22*  Tuesday  Council Training & Groundrules Meeting – 5:30-9:30 p.m, Location TBD 
 
 
 
Regularly scheduled Council meetings are marked with an asterisk (*). 
 
 
i:\adm\city council\council calendar\3-month calendar word format.doc 



Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  CCDA Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
10/5/2015 11:01 AM - Updated 

1 | P a g e  
i:\citywide\tentagenda\october 5, 2015.docx 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

2036 10/13/2015 Norma Alley AAA October 13, 2015 Business and CCDA Meeting    
  

2073 10/13/2015 Norma Alley ACCSTUDY 15 Minutes - Council Liaison Reports City Management 12/22/2014  
2347 10/13/2015 Lloyd Purdy ACCSTUDY 10 Minutes - Tigard Enterprise Zone Expansion with City 

of Lake Oswego 
Community 
Development 

10/05/2015  

2350 10/13/2015 Steve Martin ACCSTUDY 10 Minutes - Briefing on Two Upcoming IGA's with Metro 
for Trail Segments 

Public Works 10/05/2015  

2371 10/13/2015 Dana Bennett ACCSTUDY 10 Minutes - City Manager Evaluation Criteria and Process City Management Newton L, Asst 
City Manager 

 

 Total Time: 45 of 45 Minutes Scheduled – STUDY SESSION IS FULL 
  

2286 10/13/2015 Carol Krager CCBSNS 1  20 Minutes - Legislative Session Wrap-up City Management Newton L, Asst 
City Manager 

 

2303 10/13/2015 Norma Alley CCBSNS 2  20 Minutes - Develop 2016 Federal and State 
Legislative Agenda 

City Management Newton L, Asst 
City Manager 

 

2192 10/13/2015 Lloyd Purdy CCBSNS 3  25 Minutes - QJ Public Hearing: Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment and Zone Change for Fields Trust 

Community 
Development 

Pagenstecher G, 
Assoc Planner 

 

2316 10/13/2015 Carissa 
Collins 

CCBSNS 4  10 Minutes - FY 2016 First Quarter Budget 
Supplemental 

Finance and 
Information 
Services 

10/05/2015  

2344 10/13/2015 Carissa 
Collins 

CCBSNS 5  5 Minutes - FY 2016 City Center Development Agency 
Budget Supplemental 

Finance and 
Information 
Services 

10/05/2015  

2329 10/13/2015 Lisa Shaw CCBSNS 6  10 Minutes - Consideration of Taser purchase contract Police 10/05/2015  
2379 10/13/2015 Carol Krager CCBSNS 7  10 Minutes - 72nd and Dartmouth Intersection 

Improvements Developer Costs 
Finance and Info 
Services 

LaFrance T, 
Fin/Info Svcs 
Director 

 

 Total Time: 100 of 100 Minutes Scheduled – MEETING IS FULL 
  

 10/16/2015   October 16, 2015 Tailgate with the Council 
Tigard High School Football Game 5:00-6:30 p.m. 

   

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2036&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2073&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2347&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2350&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2371&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2286&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2303&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2192&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2316&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2344&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2329&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2379&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1


Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  CCDA Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
10/5/2015 11:01 AM - Updated 

2 | P a g e  
i:\citywide\tentagenda\october 5, 2015.docx 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

2037 10/20/2015 Norma Alley AAA October 20, 2015 Workshop and Business Meeting    
  

2330 10/20/2015 Buff Brown CCWKSHOP 1  50 Minutes - Tigard Transportation Advisory 
Committee (TTAC) / City Council Joint Meeting 

Community 
Development 

Brown, B., Assoc 
Transp Planner 

 

2320 10/20/2015 Carissa 
Collins 

CCWKSHOP 2  30 Minutes - Discussion on Sidewalk Gap Program Finance and Info 
Services 

Asher, K, Comm 
Dev Dir. 

 

2326 10/20/2015 Norma Alley CCWKSHOP 3  75 Minutes - Discussion on Parks & Recreation Charge Finance and Info 
Services 

Rager B, PW 
Director  

 

2365 10/20/2015 John Floyd CCWKSHOP 4  30 Minutes - Heritage Crossing Continuation Community 
Development 

McGuire, T, Asst 
CD Director 

 

 Total Time: 185 of 180 Minutes Scheduled – MEETING IS OVER SCHEDULED 
  

2038 10/27/2015 Norma Alley AAA October 27, 2015 Business Meeting    
  

2074 10/27/2015 Norma Alley ACCSTUDY 1  15 Minutes - Council Liaison Reports City Management 12/22/2014  
2359 10/27/2015 Joseph 

Barrett 
ACCSTUDY 2  5 Minutes - Discussion on Upcoming Contracts Finance and Info 

Services 
Barrett J, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

2312 10/27/2015 Carol Krager ACCSTUDY 3  25 Minutes - Update from Metro Councilor Dirksen Central Services 09/16/2015  

 Total Time: 45 of 45 Minutes Scheduled – STUDY SESSION IS FULL 
  

2383 10/27/2015 Joanne 
Bengtson 

CCBSNS 1  5 Minutes - Proclaim Manufacturing Day in Tigard City Management 09/28/2015  

2387 10/27/2015 Carol Krager CCBSNS 2  10 Minutes - Tree for All Award Presentation City Management Krager C, City 
Recorder 

 

2322 10/27/2015 Judy Lawhead CCBSNS 3  5 Minutes - Briefing on an Agreement with the City of 
Beaverton Related to Maintenance of Barrows Road 

Public Works Rager B, PW 
Director  

 

2349 10/27/2015 Sherri Russell CCBSNS 4  10 Minutes - Consider a Resolution Concurring with 
Washington County Findings Regarding Right-of-Way 
Vacation of an Unnamed Street 

Public Works Barrie, L, Sr. 
Admin Spec.  

 

2342 10/27/2015 Lloyd Purdy CCBSNS 5  10 Minutes - Enterprise Zone: Resolution Expanding 
Tigard Enterprise Zone 

Community 
Development 

Purdy, L, Econ 
Development Mgr 

 

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2037&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2330&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2320&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2326&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2365&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2038&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2074&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2359&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2312&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2383&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2387&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2322&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2349&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2342&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1


Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  CCDA Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
10/5/2015 11:01 AM - Updated 

3 | P a g e  
i:\citywide\tentagenda\october 5, 2015.docx 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

2364 10/27/2015 Laura Barrie CCBSNS 6  30 Minutes - First Quarter CIP Council Update Public Works Barrie, L, Sr. 
Admin Spec.  

 

 Total Time: 70 of 100 Minutes Scheduled 
  

2141 11/03/2015 Norma Alley AAA November 3, 2015 CCDA Meeting – ELECTION NIGHT 
Mayor Cook Absent 

   

  
2134 11/03/2015 Sean Farrelly CCDA 1  20 Minutes - Downtown Housing Inventory and Report Community 

Development 
Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

2135 11/03/2015 Sean Farrelly CCDA 2  20 Minutes - Downtown Jobs Inventory and Report  Community 
Development 

Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

2127 11/03/2015 Sean Farrelly CCDA 3  25 Minutes - Future of Saxony Site - Update Community 
Development 

Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

2133 11/03/2015 Sean Farrelly CCDA 4  20 Minutes - Brownfield Initiative Update Community 
Development 

Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

 Total Time: 85 of 180 Minutes Scheduled – MEETING IS CLOSED 
  

2039 11/10/2015 Norma Alley AAA November 10, 2015 Business Meeting    
  2075 11/10/2015 Norma Alley ACCSTUDY 1  15 Minutes - Council Liaison Reports City Mgt 12/22/2014  

2310 11/10/2015 Judy Lawhead ACCSTUDY 2  10 Minutes - Briefing on an Agreement with Metro 
Regarding a Grant to Develop Dirksen Nature Park 

Public Works 08/26/2015  

2357 11/10/2015 Joseph 
Barrett 

ACCSTUDY 3  20 Minutes - Discussion on Upcoming Contracts Finance and Info 
Services 

Barrett J, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

 Total Time: 45 of 45 Minutes Scheduled – STUDY SESSION IS FULL 
  2323 11/10/2015 Sherri Russell CCBSNS 1  10 Minutes - Consider Authorizing the City Manager to 

Sign an Agreement with Beaverton Related to 
Maintenance of Barrows Road 

Public Works Rager B, PW 
Director  

 

2360 11/10/2015 Joseph 
Barrett 

CCBSNS 2  10 Minutes - Contract Award Dirksen Nature Park 
Environmental Education Center & Pathway Improvement 

Finance and Info 
Services 

Barrett J, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2364&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2141&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2134&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2135&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2127&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2133&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2039&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2075&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2310&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2357&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2323&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2360&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1


Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  CCDA Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
10/5/2015 11:01 AM - Updated 

4 | P a g e  
i:\citywide\tentagenda\october 5, 2015.docx 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

2381 11/10/2015 John Floyd CCBSNS 3  20 Minutes - Tentative Continuance Date for Heritage 
Crossing 

Community 
Development 

Floyd J, Associate 
Planner 

 

2382 11/10/2015 Lisa Shaw CCBSNS 4  15 Minutes - Update to Chronic Nuisance Property 
Ordinance (TMC 7.42) 

Police Shaw L, Police 
Business Manager 

 

2389 11/10/2015 Judy Lawhead CCBSNS 5  10 Minutes - Briefing on an IGA with the Oregon 
Department of Transportation for Design and 
Construction of New Sections of Fanno Cr. Trail 

Public Works McCarthy M, 
St./Trans Sr. Proj 
Eng 

 

2368 11/10/2015 Dana Bennett CCBSNS 6  15 Minutes - City Manager Evaluation Criteria and 
Process Adoption 

City Management Bennett, D, HR 
Director 

 

2375 11/10/2015 Lloyd Purdy CCBSNS 7  15 Minutes - Intent to Pursue Grant Funding Community 
Development 

Purdy, L, Econ 
Development Mgr 

 

 Total Time: 95 of 100 Minutes Scheduled 
  

2040 11/17/2015 Norma Alley AAA November 17, 2015 Workshop Meeting    
  

2338 11/17/2015 Steve Martin CCWKSHOP 1  50 Minutes - Joint Meeting with the Park and 
Recreation Advisory Board 

Public Works Martin S, Division 
Manager 

 

2327 11/17/2015 Norma Alley CCWKSHOP 2  60 Minutes - Continued Discussion on Parks & 
Recreation Charge 

Finance and Info 
Services 

LaFrance T, 
Fin/Info Svcs 
Director  

 

2325 11/17/2015 Carissa 
Collins 

CCWKSHOP 3  20 Minutes - Continued Discussion on the Sidewalk 
Gap Program  

Finance and Info 
Services 

Collins C, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

2167 11/17/2015 Lloyd Purdy CCWKSHOP 4  20 Minutes - Economic Development Update Community 
Development 

Purdy, L, Econ 
Development Mgr 

 

2363 11/17/2015 Liz Hormann CCWKSHOP 5  30 Minutes - Safe Routes to School Update  Community 
Development 

Hormann L, SRTS 
Program Coord 

 

 Total Time: 180 of 180 Minutes Scheduled – MEETING IS FULL 
  

2041 11/24/2015 Norma Alley AAA November 24, 2015 Business Meeting    
  

2076 11/24/2015 Norma Alley ACCSTUDY 1  15 Minutes - Council Liaison Reports City Management 12/22/2014  

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2381&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2382&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2389&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2368&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2375&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2040&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2338&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2327&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2325&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2167&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2363&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2041&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2076&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1


Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  CCDA Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
10/5/2015 11:01 AM - Updated 

5 | P a g e  
i:\citywide\tentagenda\october 5, 2015.docx 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

2388 11/24/2015 Mike Lueck ACCSTUDY 2  10 Minutes - Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Mandated 
5 year Review  

Public Works Rager B, PW 
Director 

 

2384 11/24/2015 Dennis 
Koellermeier 

ACCSTUDY 3  20 Minutes - Briefing on Lake Oswego/Tigard Water 
Partnership Activities 

Public Works Koellermeier D, 
LOT Water Proj 
Coord 

 

 Total Time: 45 of 45 Minutes Scheduled – STUDY SESSION IS FULL 
  

2311 11/24/2015 Judy Lawhead CCBSNS 1  10 Minutes - Authorize the City Manager to Sign an 
Agreement with Metro Regarding a Grant to Develop 
Dirksen Nature Park 

Public Works Staedter C, Project 
Coordinator 

 

2390 11/24/2015 Judy Lawhead CCBSNS 2  10 Minutes - Consider Authorizing the City Manager to 
Sign an IGA with ODOT for Design and Construction of 
New Sections of the Fanno Creek Trail 

Public Works McCarthy M, 
St/Trans Sr Proj 
Eng 

 

2378 11/24/2015 Joseph 
Barrett 

CCBSNS 3  10 Minutes - Contract Award - Street Sweeping 
Services 

Finance and 
Information 
Services 

Barrett J, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

1758 11/24/2015 Carol Krager CCBSNS 4  15 Minutes - PLACEHOLDER - Google Franchise 
Agreement 

City Management Mills L, Asst to 
City Manager 

 

2380 11/24/2015 Norma Alley CCBSNS 5  10 Minutes - Update on the Strategic Plan City Management Wyatt K, 
Management 
Analyst 

 

 Total Time: 55 of 100 Minutes Scheduled 
  

2142 12/01/2015 Norma Alley AAA December 1, 2015 CCDA Meeting    
  

2125 12/01/2015 Sean Farrelly CCDA 15 Minutes - Fanno Creek Overlook Update Community 
Development 

Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

2136 12/01/2015 Sean Farrelly CCDA 45 Minutes - Annual Report on the Urban Renewal District Community 
Development 

Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

 Total Time: 60 of 180 Minutes Scheduled 
  

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2388&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2384&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2311&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2390&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2378&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1758&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2380&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2142&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2125&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2136&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1


Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  CCDA Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
10/5/2015 11:01 AM - Updated 

6 | P a g e  
i:\citywide\tentagenda\october 5, 2015.docx 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

2042 12/08/2015 Norma Alley AAA December 8, 2015 Business Meeting    
  

2077 12/08/2015 Norma Alley ACCSTUDY 15 Minutes - Council Liaison Reports City Mgt 12/22/2014  
2369 12/08/2015 Dana Bennett ACCSTUDY 30 Minutes - ORS 192.660 (2)(i) Executive Session City Mgt 09/14/2015  

 Total Time: 45 of 45 Minutes Scheduled – STUDY SESSION IS FULL 
  

2353 12/08/2015 Liz Lutz CCBSNS 1  5 Minutes - Appoint Audit Committee Members Finance and Info 
Services 

Lutz L, Conf Exec 
Asst 

 

2354 12/08/2015 Liz Lutz CCBSNS 2  5 Minutes - Appoint Budget Committee Members Finance and Info 
Services 

Lutz L, Conf Exec 
Asst 

 

2358 12/08/2015 Joseph 
Barrett 

CCBSNS 3  10 Minutes - Contract Award - Utility Billing Mailing 
Services 

Finance and Info 
Services 

Barrett J, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

2324 12/08/2015 Carissa 
Collins 

CCBSNS 4  15 Minutes - Info. PH: Sidewalk Gap Program Finance and Info 
Services 

Collins C, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst 

 

2293 12/08/2015 Norma Alley CCBSNS 5  20 Minutes - Placeholder - Update on Homelessness City Management Newton L, Asst 
City Manager 

 

 Total Time: 55 of 100 Minutes Scheduled 
  

2043 12/15/2015 Norma Alley AAA December 15, 2015 Workshop Meeting    
  

 12/22/2015   December 22, 2015 Council Training 
Location TBD from 5:30-9:30 p.m. 

   

 

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&sfor=ALL&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=10&beg_meetyr=2015&end_meetmth=12&end_meetyr=2015&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2042&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2077&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2369&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2353&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2354&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2358&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2324&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2293&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=2043&rev_num=0&rpt_inbox=Y&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&cg=ALL&sstr=&rpt_mt=Y&sfor=ALL&beg_meetyr=2015&rpt_title=Y&rpt_dept=Y&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&FINALFROM=&orig=ALL&fp=CABINETA&fr_seq=&end_meetmth=12&inbox=ALL&dept=ALL&doctype=ALL&to_seq=&div=ALL&agarea=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&HARTKEYWORDS=&beg_meetmth=10&formid=AG_MEMO&numLines=ALL&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&end_meetyr=2015&attexpireto=&mt=&StartRow=1


   

AIS-2391       3. B.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Approve City Council Meeting Minutes

Submitted By: Carol Krager, Central Services

Item Type: Motion Requested Meeting Type: Consent
Agenda

Public Hearing: Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Approve City Council meeting minutes.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve minutes as submitted.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Attached council minutes are submitted for City Council approval: 
September 8, 2015
September 15, 2015
September 22, 2015

  

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A 

Attachments

September 8, 2015 Draft Council Minutes

September 15, 2015 Draft Council Minutes

September 22, 2015 Draft Council Minutes





TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 1 of 12 
 
 

      

 

City of Tigard  
Tigard City Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 

 
 STUDY SESSION 

 
Council Present: Mayor Cook, Councilor Woodard, Councilor Henderson, Councilor Goodhouse, and 
Council President Snider 

 
Staff Present: City Manager Wine, Assistant City Manager Newton, City Attorney Ramis, City Recorder 
Krager, Parks Manager Martin, Assistant Community Development Director McGuire, and Associate 
Planner Floyd 

 
Mayor Cook called the study session to order at 6:30 p.m. 

A. COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS   

Councilor Henderson said the Tigard Youth Advisory Council members will host a chalk walk 
activity at the Downtown Tigard Street Fair.  The youth are publicizing and coordinating it. 
  
Councilor Goodhouse reported on a Westside Economic Alliance meeting.  He also reported on 
a Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee (TTAC) meeting and said a loan from the Gas Tax 
Fund is required to begin the Wall Street planning. 
 
Mayor Cook attended a Washington County Coordinating Committee (WCCC) meeting where 
the proposed list of Transportation Development Tax (TDT) projects was amended. The Roy 
Rogers Road widening project was included. The Major Streets Transportation Improvement 
Program (MSTIP) planning for the next round beginning in 2019 will start earlier than usual.  
There is $35 million annually for five years available and Tigard will be submitting projects for 
inclusion on the list.  

 
B. RECEIVE LAND USE PROCESS BRIEFING 
   

City Attorney Ramis gave a refresher on the quasi-judicial public hearing process.  He said once 
the hearing winds down, five things need to get managed in a coordinated way.  1) The 120-day 
clock cannot be exceeded and staff will keep council apprised of this date.  There may be a 
request for a waiver depending on what the city wants to accomplish.  2) A final statement by 
staff is needed so council can ask questions and staff can comment on the evidence.  At the 
close of oral testimony staff loses any opportunity to comment further unless council reopens  
 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 2 of 12 
 
 

the record.  3) The applicant has the burden of proof so they have the right to give the last word. 
They can do this by filing a final written submission.  No evidence is allowed after this. 4) 
Council deliberates to reach a decision. 5) Findings are adopted describing the decision. City 
Attorney Ramis said these five things usually need to happen in a short timeframe.    

 
Mr. Ramis said once the record is closed council enters deliberation to determine their decision, 
but could also elect to reopen the record if they think there is additional information or a 
different option needed.  This requires a meeting notice and is a new opportunity for people to 
comment.  He referred to the Heritage Crossing quasi-judicial public hearing on the agenda later 
in this meeting and stated there is a request that council reopen the record.  He recommended 
that if council decides tonight to reopen the record, it be done well before deliberation because 
there is no point in deliberating and then deciding to reopen.   

 
City Attorney Ramis said the specific request by the applicant tonight is that council reopen the 
record to consider a map showing a compromise proposal.  This map is not before council so he 
was speaking generally, not specifically, but said it suggests a compromise and partial zone 
change.  If council is interested in adding this to the record and deliberating about it, they will 
need to motion to reopen the record and work with staff to select a date for a continued hearing 
which will need to be noticed.  The applicant in this case has offered to pay for the notice.  The 
continued hearing would be specifically targeted on this compromise, but everyone who has 
testified has the opportunity to testify again on the issues raised by staff.  The final point is 
adoption of findings.  Mayor Cook clarified that this would not go back through the Planning 
Commission. Councilor Henderson asked why it would not and City Attorney Ramis said it was 
reasonable to characterize this as a proposal for conditions, but Council could decide that this 
change is so substantially different or extreme that they want to remand it back to the Planning 
Commission or ask the applicant to do a new application.  The city code is silent on this subject 
so it is up to council.   

 
Regarding findings, City Attorney Ramis said council should make their decision tentative 
subject to reviewing findings submitted by staff for review and adoption.  Usually the prevailing 
party is consulted because they have the burden to defend the findings if the case goes to the 
Land Use Board of Appeals.  He said if a land use application is approved, the city’s position is 
that it is the applicant’s burden to defend it, so for that reason it is fair to allow them substantial 
input into what the findings say.  Staff reviews the findings to make sure they do not set a bad 
precedent or are at odds with the city’s code. 

 
City Attorney Ramis described the outline for the hearing tonight.  There will be a brief staff 
report which will be a short statement on the status of the case, a call for disclosures and 
conflicts, a brief attorney procedural statement since testimony guidelines are not needed, and 
council deliberation.  He said if anyone on council wished to reopen the record, the logical point 
to do that is at the deliberation stage.   
 
Councilor Woodard said the process was confusing and City Attorney Ramis agreed it is not 
typical to have the applicant come in with new evidence after the record and hearing are closed.  
He said council could elect to deliberate and make a decision tonight on the evidence already in 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 3 of 12 
 
 

the record. If they want to see the new evidence the hearing must be continued, the record 
opened for the new evidence and an opportunity allowed for everyone to hear the new 
information and testify on the case. 

 
City Manager Wine said the purpose of having the city attorney discuss this with council was to 
receive generic information on what council should do when it comes time to deliberate on a 
quasi-judicial land use matter. Staff wishes to formalize the steps so the process is smoother in 
the future. 

 
C. UPDATE ON YOUTH SPORTS LEAGUE AGREEMENTS   

 
Assistant City Manager Newton introduced this item and acknowledged former Tigard Little 
League (TLL) President Kim Kelleher, who has been helping with the process, and was present 
tonight.  Ms. Newton said she spoke with Southside Soccer just prior to this meeting. She will 
loop back with their representative one more time but the agreement has already been 
distributed to their board and no comments were received.  She praised both league 
representatives for their thoughtful comments and commitment.  She said staff and the leagues 
have reached agreement on some key assumptions and these are listed in the staff report.   
 
Ms. Newton said the TLL had some suggestions and she covered these briefly. She said in her 
35 years with the city there was a period where park staff was cut back to one employee.  Public 
Works parks staff are concerned that if that unlikely event happened again the city would be in 
the position where the fields might not be maintained and the agreement would need to be 
terminated.  She said both Southside and Little League understand that the city would not 
necessarily want to terminate the agreement but might need to until things recovered.  Councilor 
Henderson asked if an arbitrator would be used in that instance. Ms. Newton replied that when 
this happened before, the city had a plan and that was to go out for a levy.  The levy passed so 
there was just a nine-month period where the city did not have the funding to maintain the fields 
for league use. It would be a budget/council decision.    
 
Their second concern is about the term of the agreement. TLL suggested that the term be for an 
initial 15 years with the option for two renewals rather than an initial ten years with three 
renewals. Early discussions with council showed a preference for ten years but she did not know 
if this was a deal breaker and asked for feedback. 

 
The last concern is that the agreement allowed 14 days to cure the breach if there is a violation 
in the contract.  TLL pointed out they are working with volunteers so more time may be needed.  
City Attorney Rihala suggested 30 days and TLL requested 60.  Ms. Newton requested that 
council decide.  
 
Councilor Woodard said he was not present when this was first discussed and he had some 
concerns. He asked why other leagues would not have these same opportunities when the ten-
year period passes. He said the term goes above and beyond what would be fair compensation. 
Ten years is fair but he had problems with qualifying statements and challenges that might come 
from other leagues.  The two leagues are paying for their own operations but the taxpayers 
might take the position that their taxes are paying for wear and tear on the fields.   



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 4 of 12 
 
 

 
Council President Snider asked if another league met the qualifications if there was anything 
that would stop the city from forming a similar agreement with them for city facilities. Ms. 
Newton said that was true.  Mayor Cook said they would need to bring in some capital for 
improving a field for him to support this.   
 
Council President Snider said he did not think the termination wording was needed in the case 
of a dire financial issue with the city. He suggested a middle-ground where they can use the 
field but the city does not guarantee the field condition.  He said terminating the agreement for 
a few months and then restarting it when a levy is passed is not logical. Ms. Newton said staff 
is taking on the responsibility for making sure the field is safe for children to play on. 

 
Councilor Goodhouse suggested instead of termination in a dire financial time for the city, the 
agreement could state that the users would need to maintain the field so it does not deteriorate 
too much in the time it takes the city to recover and take over maintenance again. 
 
Councilor Henderson said there was a communication problem between the leagues and the 
city and the cure was an annual meeting.  He asked if just one meeting each year was adequate 
and would there be more if an issue develops.  City Manager Wine said that scenario is 
covered in Section 16 Dispute Resolution.   
 
Mayor Cook said alternate language as suggested by Councilors Snider and Goodhouse was 
fine with him for the first question.  He said a 15-year term was good and after serving on 
these boards, he understands the leagues’ desire for 60 days to cure a contract breach. 
Councilor Goodhouse and Council President Snider agreed with the 60 days and a 15-year 
term. Councilor Woodard said he preferred a ten year term.  He asked for, and Assistant City 
Manager Newton said she will provide, the calculations from the Finance Department on the 
property contribution payments made by the leagues.  Ms. Newton said she will incorporate 
this feedback into the league agreements and they will come to council for consideration on 
September 22. 

 
D. RECEIVE UPDATE ON TIGARD/BEAVERTON IGA FOR JOINT LAND 

PARTITION 
 
 Assistant Community Development Director McGuire directed council to a map showing a 

parcel of land that straddles Scholls Ferry Road and is located partially within both Tigard and 
Beaverton.  West Hills Development Corporation has purchased the property and wishes to 
partition it into two parcels north of Scholls Ferry Road located in the Beaverton City limits, 
and one parcel south of Scholls Ferry Road located within the Tigard city limits. 

 
 Mr. McGuire said an IGA between Beaverton and Tigard will provide an efficient approach to 

achieve this partition. Beaverton would have primary authority and will use their development 
code process in their portion and Tigard’s development code for the area south of Scholls  

 Ferry Road.  Beaverton will prepare a staff report for Tigard to review and then they will 
approve the entire partition.  Council President Snider asked if it is a recommended practice 
for a city to approve another city’s land use action.  City Attorney Ramis said it is allowed in  



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 5 of 12 
 
 

 the intergovernmental agreement section of the statute and it is his recollection that this 
was done with Tualatin previously for the Bridgeport Village shopping center. City Manager 
Wine said the IGA would be on a future council consent agenda. 

   
 Administrative Items:  Assistant City Manager Newton asked if council would be available on January 

28 for the winter outreach Town Hall at Summerfield. 
 
     The Study Session ended at 7:27 p.m. 
 

        
1.      BUSINESS MEETING  

 
A.     At 7:34 p.m. Mayor Cook called to order the meeting of the Tigard City Council and Local 

Contract Review Board.   
 

B.     City Recorder Krager called the roll. 
        Present       Absent    
   Councilor Henderson      
   Council President Snider      
   Councilor Woodard      
   Mayor Cook       
   Councilor Goodhouse      
 
    C.       Mayor Cook asked everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.    
 

D.      Mayor Cook asked Council and Staff for Non-Agenda Items.   None. 
 

   
2.      CITIZEN COMMUNICATION   

 
A.      Follow-up to Previous Citizen Communication –   None. 

 
B. Tigard High School Student Envoy –  

 
 Associated Student Body President Shaina Azbari reported on recent and upcoming 

activities at Tigard High School.  A staff breakfast hosted annually by the class presidents 
was held on August 31. The Powerhouse Coffee Shop began operations, raising money for 
various entities.  Today was Freshmen Orientation, hosted by the Link Crew.  There are 
over 500 freshmen this year and over 160 upper classmen volunteered to help to make their 
first day of high school an easier adjustment.  An Open Table cultural event, educating 
students on different cultures and uniting them with food will be held on September 21 at 
the Commons.  Homecoming is scheduled on October 2 for the game and parade with the 
dance on October 3.  The theme this year is “Night under the Big Top.” The October 9 
football game will be a “pink out” supporting breast cancer research, raising money and 
awareness for the Susan G. Komen Foundation. Mayor Cook said he was impressed with 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 6 of 12 
 
 

the number of students attending the first football game even though school had not begun 
for the year.  

 
C.   Tigard Area Chamber of Commerce – Tigard Chamber CEO Mollahan will give an update 

at the September 22 meeting.   
 

D.   Citizen Communication –  Zachery Dean, 7814 SW Cedarcrest Street, Tigard, OR, said 
he was elected as the new Tigard Youth Advisory Council (TYAC) president and is 
looking forward to helping out the council and the city.  TYAC will be helping at the 
Downtown Tigard Street Fair with the chalk walk.  Anyone can participate and will be 
assigned a space on the Burnham Street sidewalk to show off their artistic skills with chalk.  
Mayor Cook noted that the Tigard Downtown Street Fair is from 11 a.m. to 5 p.m. on 
Saturday, September 12, with food, beer garden, wine, booths and entertainment. 
Councilor Henderson noted that people will have an opportunity to meet Tigard’s newest 
police dog, Diesel.    

 
 

3.     CONSENT AGENDA: (Tigard City Council and Local Contract Review Board) –  
 

A.   RECEIVE AND FILE: 

1.  Council Calendar 
2.  Council Tentative Agenda for Future Meeting Topics 
 

B. APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES: 

 July 14, 2015 Minutes 
 
 

C. AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT WITH CLEAN 
WATER SERVICES AND BEAVERTON REGARDING BARROWS ROAD 
SANITARY SEWER PHASE 3  

  
Council President Snider moved for approval of the Consent Agenda.  Councilor Woodard 
seconded the motion.  

Yes  No           
   Councilor Henderson   
   Council President Snider  
   Councilor Woodard   
   Mayor Cook    
   Councilor Goodhouse   
 
Mayor Cook announced that the Consent Agenda was approved unanimously. 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 7 of 12 
 
 

 
 

4.    CONTINUATION OF QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING – APPEAL OF 
HERITAGE CROSSING ZONE CHANGE AND SUBDIVISION (ZON2015-
00002/SUB2015-00001/VAR2015-00001)     

 

 

a.    Mayor Cook announced that tonight’s council deliberations are to focus on the appeal 
filed by the applicant.  Final written arguments were due on July 28, 2015 and the record 
and hearing are closed.  There will be a statement by the city attorney regarding 
procedures.   

 
 b.   City Attorney Ramis said because the proceedings are at the point of deliberation he 

could dispense with going over testimony guidelines because no testimony will be taken 
tonight.   

 
c. Mayor Cook asked if any members of Council wished to report any exparte contact or 

information gained outside the hearing, including any site visits.  Councilor Goodhouse 
said he runs and drives by the site daily.  Council President Snider said he lives in the 
neighborhood and has been paying more attention to the area and the density.  
Councilor Woodard said he walks by the site.  Councilor Henderson related that he has 
admired the site for years. Mayor Cook said some people came to a National Night Out 
event and asked if they could talk to him about this and he said no, it was in a quasi-
judicial process and they respected that and they did not discuss it. 

 
Mayor Cook asked if all members had familiarized themselves with the application and 
no one said they had not.  He asked if there were any challenges from the audience 
pertaining to the council’s jurisdiction to hear this matter or if there was a challenge on 
the participation of any member of the council.  There were none stated. 

    
d. Mayor Cook called for final remarks by staff. 

 
Associate Planner Floyd said this is a proposal for a concurrent zone change and 
subdivision.  The zone change would convert 9.1 acres of land from R-12 to R-7.  The 
site is located on Hall Boulevard just north of the intersection on Durham Road.  On 
July 14, 2015, staff and the applicant both made presentations regarding the three 
approval criteria.  This is before council on appeal from the Planning Commission’s  

 
decision to deny the request.  On July 14, after staff and the applicant made 
presentations regarding the three approval criteria, council took oral and written 
testimony from the public and closed the record with one exception. The applicant was 
allowed to provide final written argument by July 28, 2015.  The applicant met the 
deadline and provided their argument which is in the staff report before council.  Staff 
had no comment on the argument.    

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 8 of 12 
 
 

Mr. Floyd said the city council is obligated to make a decision within 120 days of the 
application being deemed complete.  The 120 days expired on July 23, 2015.  The 
applicant provided an extension until tonight.  Council must make a decision to uphold 
the Planning Commission decision, overturn the decision, or reopen the record to 
consider new evidence, which will require re-noticing the project.  City Attorney Ramis 
concurred with the staff remarks. 

 
e. Mayor Cook asked if council had any questions or comments before consideration of a 

motion. 
 
Councilor Goodhouse moved to reopen the record. Mayor Cook asked for the reason 
and Councilor Goodhouse responded, “for additional information.”  Council President 
Snider seconded the motion.  He added that he was prepared to make a decision tonight 
and is always troubled by late in the game information but he understands the applicant 
has additional information that may be a compromise. He said he did not want to stifle a 
compromise and would prefer to make a motion, but without even knowing what it is, 
can support the general concept that there might be a better way for everyone.  
Councilor Woodard said he was also concerned to learn that there is additional 
information but he cannot know what it is at this point.  He said he agreed with 
reopening the record.  He said he also was prepared to make a decision but this got him 
curious and he does not want to feel like he is blinded in any area so he agreed with 
opening the record. Council President Snider asked City Attorney Ramis to clarify the 
process. 

 
City Attorney Ramis said it made sense for the staff to determine what hearing schedule 
dates might be available, select one, ask the applicant if they are willing to extend to that 
date, and then put that in the record. 
 

Associate Planner Floyd said staff had not received an official submittal of a compromise 
solution and in terms of noticing, would need four weeks lead time in order to satisfy 
requirements for newspaper publication and mailing notification to the neighbors.  The 
absolute soonest date would be October 6, 2015, provided the applicant could provide 
materials tomorrow.  He said staff would feel more comfortable with mid-October.  He 
asked the city recorder what dates were available and asked if council had a preference 
regarding their availability.  City Manager Wine said if council is willing to hold a 
combined business and workshop meeting they could meet on October 20 or after that, 
the October 27 business meeting.  Councilor Woodard noted he was unavailable on 
October 27.   Associate Planner Floyd said the October 20th date is within the 245-day 
maximum extension period.   

 
City Attorney Ramis said applicant’s counsel indicated to him that they would be 
agreeable to an extension to the 120-day clock to a date that is two weeks beyond the 
date of the hearing in order to provide an opportunity to prepare adoption findings.  He 
said they will put that in writing. 

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 9 of 12 
 
 

Mayor Cook asked if there was any additional discussion.  Council President Snider asked 
if council would be hearing the additional information tonight and City Attorney Ramis 
said there will be a hearing on the date set, council will receive a staff report and will 
consider the evidence taken that night.  
 
Councilor Goodhouse and Council President Snider withdrew their motion and second. 
 
Mayor Cook moved to continue the hearing to the date certain of October 20 and reopen 
the record, give the public notice that they will be able to comment, extend the 120-day 
rule to two weeks from the October 20 date to give time for hearing procedures. 
Councilor Woodard seconded the motion.  There was no further discussion.  

 
  

Yes  No           
   Councilor Henderson   
   Council President Snider  
   Councilor Woodard   
   Mayor Cook    
   Councilor Goodhouse   
 

Mayor Cook announced that the motion passed unanimously.  
 

 
5. INFORMATIONAL PUBLIC HEARING – CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 

APPROVING  CENTURYLINK FRANCHISE AGREEMENT      
 

a. Mayor Cook opened the public hearing.  
 

b. Staff Report: Network Administrator Sears introduced Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission Administrator Fred Crist. Mr. Crist said there is a 
unanimous recommendation from MACC for a CenturyLink cable franchise in the 
Tigard area and four other MACC jurisdictions. He said it is a franchise similar to 
Comcast in that they wish to roll out a cable TV service but it would only be for the 
small area where they are currently providing telecommunications service, in north and 
northeast Tigard near Highway 217.  The term is just five years in order to inspire 
additional build out.       

  
 

c. Public Testimony -   No one signed up to speak  
   
d. Council Discussion and Questions – There were none. 
 
e. Mayor Cook closed the public hearing. 
 
f. Council Discussion and Consideration 
 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 10 of 12 
 
 

Councilor Woodard moved to approve Ordinance No. 15-14.  Councilor Henderson seconded 
the motion.  There being no further discussion, Mayor Cook asked City Recorder Krager to 
read the number and title of the ordinance. 
 

 ORDINANCE NO. 15-14 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TIGARD 
 GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE CABLE FRANCHISE TO QWEST 
 BROADBAND SERVICES, INC. D/B/A CENTURYLINK  

 
 City Recorder Krager conducted a roll-call vote. 

 
Yes  No           

   Councilor Henderson     
   Council President Snider   
   Councilor Woodard    
   Mayor Cook     
   Councilor Goodhouse    
 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 
6.    RECEIVE UPDATE FROM GREATER PORTLAND INC. ON REGIONAL 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT      
 

Economic Development Manager Purdy introduced Greater Portland Inc. (GPI) Vice 
President Derek Olson who was present to give a report on GPI and their services.   
 

 Mr. Olson gave an overview of GPI’s services and their work plan.  They are a regional 
public/private partnership that came together for three core functions:  marketing, 
recruitment, and retention/expansion. Their territory is bi-state and they approach what is 
beneficial for the region as a whole.   He noted that companies looking for a location look at 
regions first and once a decision is made, GPI helps them focus on specific areas based on 
land availability and other factors. 
 
The GPI work plan is Uniting Regionally to Compete Globally.   They build cross-border and 
cross-sector collaboration that leverages the region’s assets, engages leadership and aligns 
efforts to compete in the global market.  They develop best practices and other efforts to 
show cities how to grow and develop their economy. 
 
Their Stay and Grow in Greater Portland effort develops tools and services that support local 
community partners in their ongoing efforts to retain and grow existing traded-sector 
companies in the region. Work is focused on bread and butter industries to retain them. They 
do not control incentives but piece together taxes, etc. 
 
Choose Greater Portland creates targeted awareness of the regional value proposition as a 
place for businesses.  They re-launched their website and targeted the Silicon Valley with 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 11 of 12 
 
 

advertising.  Their website is new and designed for those not familiar with the region. It is 
targeted for site selectors and Tigard helped pioneer this focus.  Research and analysis has 
been expanded, with information on comparative costs, utilities and taxes.  Mr. Olson said 
GPI can also do modeling of what additional jobs would do for an area.  This is information a 
city might use to develop incentives.  

 
  Economic Development Manager Purdy said site selection for the state does not zero in on 

Tigard.  GPI shares inquiries with his real estate professionals and if there seems to be a fit, 
that connection is made. When communities collaborate it is better for the region as a whole. 

 
 Councilor Henderson asked who the biggest competitor to the Portland area is.  Mr. Olson 

said they look at who we are compared to and also with what cities they would like to be 
compared to.  He mentioned Salt Lake City and Austin but not Seattle so much.  San 
Francisco area companies are looking at the Portland area for expansion.  Companies are 
looking for access to Asia and that is why GPI partners with the ports of Vancouver and 
Portland.  One area that is a strength and also a weakness is that wages are lower here; we are a 
cost competitive large metro area in the west coast states.  Our software industry is up and 
coming.  There are workforce challenges but many of our competitors face the same thing.  

 
 In response to a question about the Port of Portland losing its container business, Mr. Olson 

said that was a negative but the container business was always a small part of the Port’s 
business. Most exports were already going through Seattle, Long Beach or by air.  It does 
impact some in this region such as hay and other agricultural products.  Because other 
Portland competitors are land-locked, such as Cincinnati and Salt Lake, it is a loss but not a 
crippling one.  The port leaders are working hard to replace it.  For some, air cargo is more 
important than sea cargo and the PDX airport is doing well.  

 
 Mayor Cook said he appreciates GPI’s effort to help cities retain businesses.  Mr. Olson said it 

is also about growing trust and building relationships with businesses and they hope to do 
even more in those areas. Mayor Cook gave Mr. Olson a city of Tigard pin. 

 
 

7.   EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 
 
 

 
8.     NON AGENDA ITEMS - None     

 
 

 
9.  ADJOURNMENT 
   

At 8:39 p.m. Councilor Woodard moved for adjournment.  Council President Snider seconded 
the motion and all voted in favor.  

 
                        



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 8, 2015 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 12 of 12 
 
 

         Yes          No 
   Councilor Henderson    
   Council President Snider   
   Councilor Woodard    
   Mayor Cook     
   Councilor Goodhouse    

 
   

 
_________________________________ 

        City Recorder Carol A. Krager 
 

Attest: 
    
Mayor John L. Cook 
 
Date:    

 
 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 1 of 6 
 

City of Tigard  
Tigard City Council Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2015 

 

 
1. BUSINESS/WORKSHOP MEETING – September 15, 2015  

    
A. At 6:33 p.m. Mayor Cook called the meeting of the Tigard City Council to order 
 
B. City Recorder Krager called the roll.   
   
                Present           Absent 
  Councilor Goodhouse    
  Councilor Henderson    
  Council President Snider  
  Councilor Woodard       
  Mayor Cook       
 
C. Mayor Cook asked everyone to stand and join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
D. Mayor Cook called to council and staff for any Non-Agenda Items. City Manager Wine said 

she had an item to present at the end of the meeting. 

 
2. PROCLAIM PLAY BALL MONTH & HONOR TIGARD/TUALATIN CITY LITTLE 

LEAGUE TEAM        
 
 Mayor Cook proclaimed September as Play Ball Month and honored the Tigard/Tualatin City Little 

League Team and their coaches and manager.  Mayor Cook said when attending the United States 
Council of Mayors Conference in June he heard about a joint initiative from the U.S. Council of 
Mayors and Major League Baseball. Tigard joined many other cities to promote sports activities 
(baseball and softball).    

 
 Mayor Cook said the Tigard-Tualatin City Softball Team represents Oregon District 4 and is a 

majors division of 11-12 year olds.  The city recognizes them for making it to the World Series.  He 
commended them for their goodwill and sportsmanship and noted that Fusion is the team name 
because they are two leagues joined together.  Manager Steve Dardis, and Coaches Howard Hoyle 
and Steve Harms were present with many of the team members.  Mayor Cook presented the 
manager and coaches with baseballs and a city pin and the players with t-shirts and city pins. 

 
 
 
 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 2 of 6 
 

3. CONTINUED DISCUSSION ON THE STREET MAINTENANCE FEE  
    

Finance and Information Services Director LaFrance led the discussion and was joined by Streets 
and Transportation Senior Project Engineer McCarthy.  He reviewed the history of the street 
maintenance fee program.  He said the focus tonight would be on how council’s policy direction 
from January and March, 2015 was included in proposed changes and to confirm if council feels this 
is ready for a public hearing.   
 
Mr. LaFrance said the city’s public outreach included both residential and commercial customers.  
Key results from the outreach presented to council in January showed that residential customers did 
not want to pay a higher share.  Responses were mixed regarding the commercial share.  
Commercial customers did not want to pay more; residents thought commercial customers could 
pay more.  Both felt commercial and residential should pay for right-of-way maintenance.  
Responses leaned towards businesses paying for right-of-way maintenance in areas that are largely 
commercial.  There was no clear direction on the program to cap parking lot spaces at 250 and there 
was a question as to if we should raise the cap.  Council direction was to remove the cap so 
additional spaces create revenue. Council directed that the road type splits in the code remain the 
same. 
 
Mr. LaFrance said the street maintenance fee pays for Tigard’s Pavement Management Program 
(PMP).  In 2009 council set a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) goal of 72-75. The city’s PCI is 
currently a little below that.  Council wishes to raise the PCI to 80-82, which would be less costly to 
maintain once achieved. However, much work needs to be done to rise to that PCI.  $11 million 
over ten years would be added to the PMP.  ADA requirements for curb cuts have been added and 
Tigard’s current code is ambiguous about whether the street maintenance fee can pay for these.  
Earlier, council indicated they wish to amend the code to allow the use of street maintenance fee 
dollars including these federally required sidewalk curb cuts.  
 

  Councilor Henderson said staff provided no information identifying what the ADA curb cut 
costs are.  Mr. LaFrance said that is not currently split out from the total.  Appendices A and B 
include the cost of curb cuts.  Councilor Henderson asked if the city needs to subsidize that in a fee 
increase and how much that would be.  Engineer McCarthy said the city has been doing 50 curb cuts 
per year at around $5,000 per ramp which is 12-13 percent of the overall program.  He said that is 
figured into the calculations going forward.  Councilor Henderson commented that it is normally a 
residential cost and not necessarily a commercial one.  Engineer McCarthy said the ADA ramps are 
built into the cost of the street.  
  
Finance and Information Services Director LaFrance said looking ahead, arterial roads will become 
the largest share.  This road type is paid 62 percent by commercial customers so there is a general 
shift towards higher costs for commercial customers. The fee increase for commercial customers 
would be larger than residential customers will bear. 
 
Mr. LaFrance said once the backlog is taken care of the street maintenance fee will lower.  He 
directed council to Table 5 in the staff report attachment which shows impacts of the backlog.  In 
this case, the share of different street type costs is a one-third, two-thirds split.  It would cost $2.34  



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 3 of 6 
 

more per month for residents and .66 cents per parking spot per month for businesses.  The $50,000 
charge for commercial right-of-way maintenance adds about .12 cents per parking spot.  He said the 
commercial fee would be doubled.   

 
 Councilor Henderson said he understands how the figures were arrived at but doubling the 

commercial street maintenance fee did not seem logical.  He said when businesses are charged more, 
they pass it along through their prices to consumers.  He said this is concerning to him. 

 
Mr. LaFrance discussed how the commercial and residential fees were reached. Council agreed that 
the dollar figures were clear, but requested that Mr. LaFrance work on the table showing 
percentages. 

 
 Council President Snider said it is well described and thought through. It reflects council’s policy 

direction at the high level and makes sense.  He said he thought it good that businesses pass their 
expenses on to customers who do not live in the area but use the roads.  He said if the city is serious 
about reducing the backlog this needs to be done. 

 
 Councilor Goodhouse said he was favorable to the idea of passing it onto businesses.  He noted that 

commercial drivers are using side streets and take detours through neighborhoods. He asked if 
catching up on the backlog will prevent any future backlogs.  Engineer McCarthy replied that is the 
goal but an unknown is the future cost of asphalt which could limit what the city can afford to do 
each year. 

 
 Councilor Henderson said when Tigard goods and services cost more than goods and services in 

other cities, it is hard to believe customers will want to shop here.  Council President Snider said he 
did not think Washington Square would lose any customers.  He said there was no rationale for the 
cap. Mayor Cook said he mentioned this to the general manager of Washington Square so they are 
aware they will see an increase.  Council President Snider commented they have been getting a 
subsidy for all these years.  Councilor Goodhouse mentioned that their customers take nearby side 
streets. 

 
 Councilor Henderson commented that it would be good if Portland was having this conversation. 

He said while it is understandable that maintaining the CPI at a high level saves money, the CPI 
jump is sizable for a small town. He commented that the politics were strong last time this was 
considered and council did not err by talking to businesses.    

 
 Transportation Project Engineer McCarthy said Hillsboro recently doubled their fee.  West Linn and 

Oregon City are currently at $10 per month.  Councilor Goodhouse asked about projections for 
what will be raised by River Terrace construction.  Mr. LaFrance said for the next ten years River 
Terrace roads will be brand new.  He said when homes are occupied this will increase the residential 
base and there will be more people to spread the costs.  Engineer McCarthy commented that these 
new residents will also be driving on other Tigard streets.  

  
 Finance and Information Services Director LaFrance asked if council wanted to move forward with 

code changes or fees.  He asked if a hearing should be scheduled or was another workshop 
discussion desired.  Mayor Cook acknowledged the outreach already done but suggested further 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 4 of 6 
 

outreach to residents and commercial customers with actual dollars listed.  Council President Snider 
said it needs to be clear what the city is trying to achieve. Councilor Goodhouse mentioned that a 
question came up at the Cooking with the Council event about why a road that already looked good 
was being paved.  He said people need to hear that preventive maintenance on good roads is easier 
and cheaper in the long run.   Council President Snider suggested tying communication about this to 
the future and sharing that everyone’s cost will get cheaper by the mile.  

 
 Councilor Henderson said in the past we found our street maintenance program was not working.  

We are increasing the index and must do some extra work.  He acknowledged previous councils 
were brave to tackle this and did a good job of protecting Tigard’s streets.  He said he is still upset 
about the federally demanded ADA curb cuts having to come out of this budget. 

 
 City Manager Wine confirmed that the street maintenance fee report reflects the direction council is 

prepared to consider.  She said staff will replicate the residential outreach poll and extend it to 
businesses, perhaps through Tigard’s Chamber of Commerce or the city’s fall community survey. 
Staff will put the feedback results in a report for Council so they will have it before considering any 
policy changes. Council President Snider suggested giving survey responders information about the 
public hearing date.   

 
 
4. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER VACATION OF PUBLIC UTILITY 

EASEMENT ADJACENT TO ASH AVENUE    
 
 a. Mayor Cook opened the public hearing. 
 
 b. City Attorney Olsen gave a statement describing procedures. 
 
 c.  Mayor Cook asked council if they have any conflicts of interest.    None were mentioned. 

Mayor Cook asked council members to declare any contacts about this case with a member 
of the public or if they have independent knowledge or relevant facts, such as from a visit to 
the site in question.  Councilor Goodhouse said he walked past the site. 

 
d. Statement by Mayor Cook: 

 
  Mayor Cook said the conduct for tonight’s hearing shall be as follows: 
 
  1. City staff will summarize the written staff report. 
  2. Council will take public comment. 
  3. Staff will have an opportunity to respond. 
 

Council members may also ask the staff and witnesses questions throughout the hearing. 
After the record is closed the City Council will deliberate.  During deliberations, the City 
Council may re-open the public portion of the hearing if necessary to receive additional 
evidence before making a decision.  

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 5 of 6 
 

e. Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly gave a brief staff report and said this easement is 
 no longer needed. Utility providers and adjacent property owners were notified and only  
 one response was received. Frontier said they have no objections to the vacation. 
 
f. Public Testimony:  Mayor Cook asked if anyone in the audience wanted to speak.  No one 
 testified.   
 
g. Staff response to public testimony:  (Not needed as there was no public testimony.) 
 
h. Mayor Cook closed the public hearing. 
 
i. Council consideration of Ordinance No. 15-15 
 
Councilor Goodhouse moved for adoption of Ordinance No. 15-15.  Council President Snider 
seconded the motion.  City Recorder Krager read the number and title of the ordinance: 

 

  ORDINANCE NO. 15-15  AN ORDINANCE VACATING APPROXIMATELY 100  
  SQUARE FEET OF PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG SW ASH AVENUE  
  IN THE CITY OF TIGARD, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON (VAC2015- 
  00001) AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

There was no further discussion. Mayor Cook asked City Recorder Krager to conduct a roll-call 
vote. 
 

      Yes  No     
  Councilor Goodhouse     
  Councilor Henderson    
  Council President Snider  
  Councilor Woodard (absent)       
  Mayor Cook       
 
Mayor Cook announced that Ordinance No. 15-15 passed by a unanimous vote of council. 

 
 

5. PREVIEW AND UPDATE ON THE LIBRARY’S AUTOMATED MATERIALS HANDLING  

 Library Director Barnes said the Lyngsoe automated materials handling system is fully operational 
and has been well received by library patrons. Efficiencies in checking in items and returning them 
to the shelves have improved.  She said council will be given a demonstration at the library at the 
end of this meeting.   

 Councilor Henderson mentioned he heard a comment about volunteers losing 189 hours because of 
automation.  Library Director Barnes said the 189 hours represents 4.5 FTE volunteers which was a 
fluctuating workforce.  She said they love their volunteers but they do not meet the same schedule 
requirements as for employees. The automated system provides a more consistent work flow and 
also frees up other volunteer opportunities.  She said staff spent six months meeting with volunteers 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 

 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    | www.tigard-or.gov   Page 6 of 6 
 

to offer them other areas of the library where assistance is needed. She acknowledged that the 
check-in process changed dramatically and for the public good but there are many other activities 
that have been transferred over to volunteers.    

 At 7:42 p.m. Mayor Cook said the council would go over to the library to see a demonstration on 
the new automated materials handling system.  He announced that the meeting would adjourn from 
the library.   

 At 7:45 p.m. Councilor Henderson left the meeting.  Mayor Cook, Council President Snider, 
Councilor Goodhouse, City Manager Wine, Assistant City Manager Newton, and City Recorder 
Krager went to the Tigard Public Library where Library Director Barnes gave a tour and 
demonstrated the automated materials handling system.  Council identified some security concerns 
and asked about the unit cost for checking in library materials and the difference in efficiency since 
the new system was implemented.  Ms. Barnes said she will have this data by the next budget 
preparation cycle.  

 
 6.  NON AGENDA ITEMS * This item was heard prior to council leaving Town Hall to tour the Library.   
 City Manager Wine said she sent a memo to council outlining content of materials the city will use to 

educate and inform voters on the three measures on the November ballot.  She encouraged council 
to read them and give her any comments.  She said all materials have been reviewed by the Secretary 
of State.  The only other planned election activity council will be a public forum to be scheduled for 
October. Councilor Henderson asked if council suggests changes would the material have to go back 
to the Secretary of State’s office for review. City Manager Wine said it would.  

  
 7. EXECUTIVE SESSION   None Scheduled. 
 
 8. ADJOURNMENT   At 8:20 p.m. Council President Snider moved for adjournment and Councilor 

Goodhouse seconded the motion. The motion passed. 
 

      Yes  No     
  Councilor Goodhouse     
  Councilor Henderson (left at 7:45 p.m.)    
  Council President Snider  
  Councilor Woodard (absent)       
  Mayor Cook       
       
 
      ________________________________ 

 Carol A. Krager, City Recorder 

Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
John L. Cook, Mayor 

   ____________________ 
   Date 
 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 1 of 7

City of Tigard
Tigard City Council Meeting Minutes
September 22, 2015

STUDY SESSION

Council Present: Mayor Cook, Councilor Henderson, Councilor Goodhouse, Council President Snider and 
Councilor Woodard

Staff Present: City Manager Wine, Assistant City Manager Newton and Deputy City Recorder Alley

A. COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

Councilor Woodard reported the Park and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) had a robust discussion on 
the ballot measure and had decided to wait until after the election to continue discussions. The PRAB agreed 
they wish to have a five year recreational plan. Councilor Woodard reported on his travels to the National 
Parks and Recreation Association Conference stating the U.S. Surgeon General noted he was a proponent of 
walkability and encouraged cities to begin moving in that direction. He went over the sessions he attended 
noting they were very robust educational sessions on developing recreation and he would be willing to share 
the material.

Councilor Henderson reported the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Plan has been completed 
and he will provide the councilors and staff with a copy. He expressed excitement for the Plan and wished for 
the Council and staff to begin promoting the CDBG program. He announced the Tigard Youth Advisory 
Council’s (TYAC) Chalk Walk was not a great success, but the ambition was there. The city of Forest Grove 
is a great example of a successful Chalk Walk program and the TYAC will look to glean information from 
them.

Mayor Cook stated there was a SW Corridor Meeting with the same presentation Council recently received 
shown at the meeting. There will be future meetings and he will keep the Council informed of those dates 
when they are set. He stated the LOT Water Project is under budget and ahead of schedule. The committee 
recently approved the purchase of a filter that was originally cut from the budget due to costs. It was the 
committee’s wish to purchase the filter now with the money left in contingency at the reduced costs quoted 
for the four already being purchased rather than wait five-plus years to purchase it at a higher cost.

B. EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 6:29 p.m. Mayor Cook announced that the Tigard City Council was entering into Executive Session to 
review and evaluate, pursuant to standards, criteria, and policy directives adopted by the governing body, the 
employment-related performance of a public officer under ORS 192.660(2)(i). The Executive Session ended 
at 7:06 p.m.

C. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS – These were announced during the Business Meeting under Non 
Agenda Items.

Study Session adjourned at 7:30 p.m.



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 2 of 7

1. BUSINESS MEETING     
A. Mayor Cook called the City Council meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
B. Deputy City Recorder Alley called the roll: 

Name Present Absent
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

C. Mayor Cook led the Pledge of Allegiance.
D. Mayor Cook asked Council and Staff for any Non-Agenda Items. City Manager Wine said she had six 

administrative items to go over.

2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATION

A. Follow-up to Previous Citizen Communication – None stated.

B. Tigard Area Chamber of Commerce – No report given.

C. Citizen Communication - Noone signed up.

3. CONSENT AGENDA: (Tigard City Council)

A. Approve Minutes for: 
 July 28, 2015
 August 18, 2015
 August 25, 2015

B. Consider a motion approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the city of Beaverton regarding 
a joint land partition

C. Consider a Proclamation declaring October 11-17, 2015 as Community Action Week – This item was 
pulled from the Consent Agenda to be voted upon separately.

Councilor Woodard moved for approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilor Goodhouse seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Name Yes No
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

Mayor Cook introduced the future Community Action Executive Director Rene Bruce. Ms. Bruce requested 
the Council consider approving a proclamation declaring October 11-17, 2015, as Community Action Week. 
She invited the Council to an Empowerment Summit to be held October 13, 2015 from 7:30-10:00 a.m. at 
the NW Event Center in Hillsboro. She also announced there is a The Changing Face of Poverty in 
Washington County exhibit open at the Hillsboro Civic Center Plaza Building until November 21, 2015.



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 3 of 7

Councilor Henderson moved to approve a Proclamation declaring October 11-17, 2015, as Community 
Action week. Council President Snider seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Name Yes No
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

4. CONSIDER A MOTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT 
WITH THE TIGARD-TUALATIN SCHOOL DISTRICT REGARDING JOINT USE OF PROPERTY

Parks Manager Martin summarized the staff report and recommended approval authorizing the city manager 
to sign the agreement. Mr. Martin noted the agreement terms will be introduced to the parents at the Back to 
School Night on September 30th.

Councilor Woodard shared his concern that there were not consulting services provided from a recreational 
expertise to draft the agreement. He noted he preferred to see the agreement approved after the recreational 
coordinator was hired and had the opportunity to review it. 

City Manager Wine commented the agreement is a step toward pursuit of looking at a better way to make use 
of underused school district fields and establish a partnership between the city and the school district. This 
agreement sets the stage for future opportunities.

Councilor Woodard asked how many Tigard residents the fields in the agreement would serve. Mr. Martin 
said he did not have a specific number, but knew the Metzger area is under served with parks and the need is 
there. Councilor Woodard asked if any concern had been expressed over servicing an area that is not specific 
to Tigard. He said there is good and bad to investing dollars in an area not in Tigard. Mr. Martin said the 
school is inside Tigard and serves a lot of Tigard residents. The Park and Recreation Advisory Board
recommends approval and Metzger Elementary is mentioned in the Parks Master Plan.

Council President Snider moved to authorize the city manager to sign an agreement with the Tigard-Tualatin 
School District regarding joint use of property. Councilor Woodard seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.

Name Yes No
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

5. CONSIDER A MOTION APPROVING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE CITY OF TIGARD AND 

TIGARD LITTLE LEAGUE AND THE CITY OF TIGARD AND SOUTHSIDE SOCCER CLUB    

Assistant City Manager Newton summarized the staff report pointing out the highlighted changes in the 
agreements from the September 8 council meeting and recommended approval of the agreements.

Councilor Woodard expressed concern with the contract being approved prior to the recreational coordinator 
being hired as things in the contract may affect their job responsibilities. In addition, he was concerned for 
the contract’s length of term being fifteen years and felt it was too long and may not be equitable for the tax 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 4 of 7

payer. In time, the cost of inflation creates disparity in revenue for the city and the loss of collection of an 
administrative fee. He stated he had grave concerns with the term and concessions made. Ms. Newton stated 
the agreements are requiring the leagues to reserve the field time where they are actually going to use the field. 
This allows fields to be opened up to other users who would pay the administrative fees. The city also added 
the preclusion of closing the parks when the fields are in use.

Council President Snider commented he understands this contract is for the good of the community by 
providing a service to the children in Tigard and is clearly not a cost recovery model. It was about how much 
the city is willing to lose, not recover, for a public good and service. Ms. Newton said the city loses about 
$30,000 in fees from both leagues in a year.

Tigard Little League Representative Kim Kelleher commented she understands the different positions and 
concerns expressed tonight. She noted she is a little biased that a recreational coordinator is not going to 
create a program supporting a baseball or soccer league. She said a lot of work had been put into negotiating 
the contract before the Council and was hopeful the Council would support it as presented.

Councilor Goodhouse said the length of the contract gives the organization certainty and stability of what 
they can operate within to provide service to the families in the communities and he supports the contracts as 
presented.

Mayor Cook said in the many negotiations over the last two years, both sides do not feel like they got 
everything they wanted, but concessions were made from all parties. He said there are some aspects in the 
agreements he really liked which is why he supports it.

Councilor Woodard expressed concern the members on the negotiating team did not have the expertise to 
negotiate recreational contracts and there was a possibility something was missed that an expert might have 
caught. He reiterated his concern for the increased cost of maintaining the fields that the city would be 
responsible for. Ms. Newton said the city will continue discussions with the leagues regarding replacement of 
equipment with the city driving those discussions.

Councilor Woodard expressed concern that the check and balances were not in place and the term is too 
long.

Council President Snider moved for approval of agreements between the city of Tigard and Tigard Little 
League and the city of Tigard and Southside Soccer Club. Councilor Goodhouse seconded the motion. The 
motion passed with the following votes of the Council:

Name Yes No Absent
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

Councilor Henderson moved to amend the contracts to have an executive review every three years. Councilor 
Woodard seconded the motion. The motion failed with the following votes of the Council:

Name Yes No Absent
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 5 of 7

Councilor Woodard moved to amend the contracts to reduce the term of the contracts to five year renewal 
periods for the contract to last fifteen years. Councilor Henderson seconded the motion. The motion was 
withdrawn.

Mayor Cook asked if the Tigard Little League would be amenable to the amendment. Ms. Kelleher said if the 
amendment would be for ten years that would probably be amenable. This amendment would have to be 
taken back to the League Board as it is significantly off from what was discussed.

Councilor Woodard moved to amend the contracts to reduce the term of the contracts to ten years with two 
five year renewals. Councilor Henderson seconded the motion. The motion failed with the following votes of 
the Council:

Name Yes No Absent
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

6. CONSIDER A MOTION AUTHORIZING A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

APPLICATION FOR COMMERCIAL STREET SIDEWALK PROJECT   

Senior Transportation Planner Brown summarized the staff report provided in the packet and asked for 
Council’s approval to authorize staff to apply for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
application for a section of sidewalk on Commercial Street from Lincoln Street to 95th Avenue.

Councilor Henderson expressed concern ensuring the project happens and the city does not pull out of the 
project. Mr. Brown said he is more than confident the city can deliver on meeting all the stipulations of the 
grant.

Councilor Henderson moved authorizing a Community Development Block Grant Application for 
Commercial Street Sidewalk Project. Council President seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.

Name Yes No
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

7. CONSIDER A MOTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A US DEPARTMENT 
OF COMMERCE EDA GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE HUNZIKER INFRASTRUCTURE 

PROJECT   

Economic Development Manager Purdy presented the staff report notifying staff intends to pursue a grant 
for the Hunziker Infrastructure Project.



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 6 of 7

Councilor Henderson moved authorizing the city manager to sign a US Department of Commerce EDA 
grant application for the Hunziker Infrastructure Project. Council President Snider seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.

Name Yes No
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 

8. NON AGENDA ITEMS   

City Manager Wine reported on the following:

 Requested a start time for the January 28, 2016 Summerfield Gathering - Consensus was to meet at 
the Summerfield Clubhouse from 6:00-7:30 p.m.

 Announced the council staff is working on an open forum to discuss the ballot measure to be held 
on October 8, 2015. Additional details will follow.

 Provided dates for possible Council training follow-up with Lenny Borer and requested the Council 
let staff know what dates work best. Council consensus was to have two sessions at two hours each 
or a Saturday for four hours. Ms. Wine said she would come back with additional dates.

 Requested guidance on how Council would like to proceed in purchasing clothing with the city’s logo 
on it for Council to wear at meetings. Consensus was to purchase clothing with the city’s logo.

 Reminded the Council’s Tailgate to be held on October 16, 2015 at the Tigard High School Tennis 
Courts from 5:00-6:30 p.m.

 Announced the December 22, 2015 Council meeting has been cancelled.

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION    

At 9:08 p.m. Mayor Cook announced that the Tigard City Council was entering into Executive Session to 
discuss exempt public records under ORS 192.660(2)(f). He said the City Council would adjourn from Red 
Rock Creek Conference Room at the conclusion of the Executive Session. The Executive Session ended at 
10:09 p.m.

10. ADJOURNMENT

At 10:09 p.m. Council President Snider motioned to adjourn the meeting. Councilor Goodhouse seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved by a unanimous vote of City Council present.

Name Yes No
Mayor Cook 
Councilor Goodhouse 
Councilor Henderson 
Council President Snider 
Councilor Woodard 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 22, 2015
City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 7 of 7

_______________________________
Norma I. Alley, Deputy City Recorder

Attest:

______________________
Mayor, City of Tigard

Date: _________________



   

AIS-2286       4.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 20 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Legislative Session Wrap-up

Prepared For: Liz Newton, City Management Submitted By: Carol
Krager,
Central
Services

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Council
Business
Meeting -
Main

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Wrap-up of the 2015 State Legislative Session and 2015 federal lobbying efforts.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

State Senator Ginny Burdick and State Representative Margaret Doherty will share their
perspectives on the 2015 state legislative session with council.
Staff will present a brief summary of the 2015 federal lobbying efforts

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The city had a very successful year advocating for its legislative priorities in partnership
with elected representatives in 2015. Mayor Cook made the trip to Salem at least monthly to
attend regular meetings with Senator Burdick and other legislators; and met monthly with
Representative Doherty to advance Tigard's legislative priorities. Highlights include
Representative Doherty's tireless efforts on the city's behalf to obtain $1.5 million in lottery
back bonds for future infrastructure improvements to the Hunziker Industrial
Core. Representative Doherty also introduced HJR 1; a bill requesting the US Postal Service
recognize Tigard as a city designation in the 97223 and 97224 zip codes. Both Representative
Doherty and Senator Burdick testified in support of the legislation which passed both
chambers. Senator Burdick  co-chaired the Joint House-Senate Committee on Marijuana
Legislation successfully passing rules for implementation of the legislation. 

For your reference, the city's 2015 State Legislative Agenda is attached.

At the end of April, Mayor Cook spent a couple of days in Washington, DC meeting with



representatives of federal agencies and the city's congressional delegation to present and
discuss Tigard's legislative priorities. Attached are summary notes from those meetings
prepared by Joel Rubin of CFM. A couple of items are noteworthy: The city was encouraged
to apply for a clean-up grant through the Brownfield program and the Mayor accepted an
invitation to participate in the Mayor's Institute on City Design this November in Houston.
An initial meeting to discuss potential projects is scheduled in Tigard at the end of October. 

A copy of the city's 2015 Federal Legislative Agenda is attached.

 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A

Attachments

2015 Federal Lobbying Trip Follow-up

Federal Legislative Agenda

State Legislative Agenda



Environmental Protection Agency, Brownfield Program: David Lloyd

Action Items:
 $200,000 is the maximum amount for cleanup grants per site. Tigard can submit 3 

separate applications for the 3 potential sites the City hopes to acquire in the next few 
months. So the total request could be up to $600,000.

 Tigard should continue to work closely with local EPA staff as the assessment moves 
forward. In addition, Tigard should continue to consult with CCLR on any cleanup grant 
proposals.

 When preparing for the Cleanup application, Tigard should review EPA’s “Getting 
Started Early” resource: http://www.epa.gov/brownfields/pdfs/getting-started-early-on-
preparing-your-assessment-cleanup-proposal.pdf

 EPA expects to release the 2016 Cleanup grant guidelines sometime August. The 
application will be open approximately 30-60 days.

 Tigard must own the site at the time of application submittal.

Notes:
EPA staff provided the following guidance as Tigard moves forward:

 The All Appropriate Inquiry (AAI) document cannot be older than 180 days at the time 
of submission. This is your liability protection.

 When preparing a cleanup application, it is important to tell a story. The narrative should 
be concise and explanatory. Tigard should incorporate its vision for the City and 
highlight aspects of its strategic plan. EPA staff also suggested explaining the amount of 
water in the community and the need to protect the streams and creeks from 
contamination.

 Reviewers are looking for a sound approach— what is your plan and how will it be 
conducted? Budget and tasks should be clear.

 It’s also important to explain how you will leverage your project with other resources. 
What do you have to keep this project going?

 Partnerships and your relationship with the state are key. Explain these roles.
 Commitment letters are also important. If an entity is contributing money, there must be 

documentation.

Economic Development Administration: Barrett Haga
Action Items:

 Barrett was impressed with the City's preparation and materials. He indicated this project 
would be very competitive.

 Tigard should keep continue to in touch with David Porter as the Hunziker project moves 
forward.

 David Porter can conduct a pre-application evaluation, which can be helpful as the 
application is drafted. Tigard can also invite EDA regional directors to look at the 
project. This may help David “sell" the project to the selection committee.

 Barrett explained that the 3rd and 4th quarters generally have the most funds available for 
projects.

Notes:



 EDA funds applications that present a strong needs assessment, provide compelling data 
and seek measurable outcomes.

 Should Tigard receive funding, Barrett suggested that Tigard designate the area as a 
“Department of Commerce” site. This could help with branding and marketing the site to 
future companies.

 Tigard should think about what the site will look like 20 years from now. So Tigard 
might want to consider renaming to “Hunziker Commercial Core” or “Hunziker Business 
Core”… this is strictly a branding strategy.

DOJ Community Oriented Policing Services: Danielle Ouellette
Action Items:

 The COPS Hiring Application will open mid-May. Staff expect to have a “soft launch” 
where applicants can view guidelines. Grant proposals will likely be due the end of June. 
Awards will be announced September 30th.

 $134 million available for FY 2015 grants. The program supports 75 percent of the 
approved entry-level salaries and fringe benefits of each newly hired and/or rehired full-
time officer, up to $125,000 per officer position over three years. Agencies are required 
to retain officer(s) in the 4th year.

 Tigard may want to nominate the police officer responsible for solving the theft of home 
appliances case for the Goldstein Award. The award recognizes officers who solve 
difficult cases and are creative in their approach to catching perpetrators.

Notes:
 Reviewers focus on crime data (compiled over the past 3 years), budget, unemployment 

rate and the community policing development plan. Staff explained that there is some 
flexibility on the crime data time frame provided you report 3 years total.

 Although crime statistics and fiscal need are significant parts of the application, the 
narrative section allow agencies to go into detail to highlight need and present their story. 
It is important Tigard elaborates in this section.

 As in previous years, priorities will focus on the community policing strategy. Staff also 
explained that the hiring of veterans, gun violence, school-resource officers, trust 
problems and homeland security will likely still be priority funding areas.

 In 2014, the office received 1800 applications and 215 proposals were funded. Tigard 
will be competing against local agencies in areas with populations less than 150,000.

Mayors's Institute on City Design: Jeff Jamawat

Notes:

 MICD offered an invitation to Mayor Cook to attend the regional session in Houston, 
Texas in November.

 MICD will work with the Mayor and City staff to come up with three potential case 
studies to present at the conference.

Senator Ron Wyden: Lauren Goldschmidt and Ryan Abraham



 CFM will work with Wyden's scheduler to get him out to Tigard this summer.
 Wyden supports a long-term transportation reauthorization bill and is continuing to work 

on a funding plan. CFM will track Wyden’s new legislation that would provide up to $45 
billion in “Move America” infrastructure tax credits and up to $180 billion in 
“Move America Bonds,” a new kind of tax-exempt vehicle used to finance road, bridge, 
port, rail and airport projects. The bonds would be similar to tax-exempt facility 
bonds without the customary government ownership requirements, as long as 
the facilities are generally available for public use. The tax credits are aimed at freeing up 
private equity for infrastructure projects, by giving states the ability to either sell the 
credits to raise capital or allocate them to a project sponsor.

 Wyden will continue to support Tigard’s projects and CFM will coordinate with his 
office on support letters for any future grant submissions.

Senator Jeff Merkley: Liz Cooney
 Merkley is supportive of Tigard’s projects, and CFM will coordinate support letters as 

federal grant applications are submitted.

Congresswoman Suzanne Bonamici: Sarah Round
Bonamici supports a long-term transportation reauthorization bill and a funding mechanism thar 
will enable Congress to pass the legislation.



TIGARD, OREGON.  Located just eight miles 
southwest of Portland, Tigard is Oregon’s 12th largest 
city with a population of 50,044. The city is largely 
residential and offers a mix of industrial, commercial 
and retail space which results in a daytime population 
around 100,000. Because of the demand placed on 
its transportation, water and public safety resources, 
Tigard faces big-city infrastructure issues.
  Tigard is ideally located to meet regional 
employ ment demand. The region’s workforce lives 
here. What’s lacking, however, is infrastructure that 
supports business expansion here. 
  Late in 2014, the City Council adopted a strategic 
plan to become “the most walkable community in the  
Pacific Northwest where people of all ages and abilities  
enjoy healthy and interconnected lives.” This 20-year  
strategic vision, along with four strategic goals, will 
provide guidance and direction for the city’s priorities 
over the long term by leveraging and building on our 
strengths to grow Tigard as a thriving community.
  Tigard continues to work with its regional 
partners toward creative solutions that address 
infrastructure and service delivery challenges. We are 
committed to responsible stewardship of public funds 
and to making sound fiscal decisions that will guide 
us to a sustainable future. 

 POLICY ITEMS

  The Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Act which would 
require the U.S. Department of Transportation to set a 
performance measure to reduce the number of 
bicyclists and pedestrians killed on our roads. 

FY 2016 Program Levels
Maintain adequate funding levels for TIGER, CDBG, 
HOME, BYRNE, EDA, and COPS funding.

  COPS Hiring and Technology Funding
  Tigard strongly supports additional funding for the COPS 

Hiring and Technology programs. The city plans to apply 
for a COPS position in 2015 to advance public safety 
through community policing. There are very few funding 
options at the federal level to help police departments 
purchase equipment, despite the fact that federal 
mandates continue to require costly upgrades. Federal 
funds for equipment upgrades are important, especially 
for police departments with cash strapped budgets.  

Protect Municipal Bonds
Protect tax exempt municipal bonds from being eliminated or 
limited. Since federal income tax was instituted in 1913, 
interest earned from municipal bonds issued by state and 
local governments have been exempt from federal taxation. 
These bonds are the primary financing mechanism for state 
and local infrastructure projects, with three-quarters of the 
infrastructure projects in the U.S. built by state and local 
governments, and with over $3.7 trillion in outstanding tax- 
exempt bonds, issued by 30,000 separate government units. 

Local governments save an average of 25 to 30 percent on 
interest costs with tax-exempt municipal bonds as compared 
to taxable bonds because investors are willing to accept 
lower interest on tax-exempt bonds in conjunction with the 
tax benefit. If the federal income tax exemption is eliminated 
or limited, states and localities will pay more to finance 
projects, leading to less infrastructure investment, fewer 
jobs, and greater burdens on citizens.

Secure a Tigard ZIP Code
State Representative Margaret Doherty has introduced a 
measure urging the United States Postmaster General to 
recognize ZIP codes 97223 and 97224 as Tigard ZIP codes 
that are separate and distinct from Portland ZIP codes.

Robust Transportation Reauthorization Bill
Congress should develop a comprehensive transportation 
reauthorization bill that would create jobs by providing 
robust funding for bridges, highways, mass transit and 
other local infrastructure needs. Within the reauthorization 
bill, Tigard strongly supports inclusion of: 

  The bipartisan Innovations in Surface Trans
portation Act, which creates a grant program that  
would put transportation funds in the hands of local 
communities. The Innovation grants would be awarded 
on merit by a panel with representatives from state  
and local jurisdictions, ensuring that funds go to 
well-conceived projects with the most local support. 
Needed projects in Tigard with local support include:

	   Hall Boulevard – Burnham Street to Durham Road
   This project will add turn lanes at key intersections, 

illuminate, add transit stop amenities and fill in the 
sidewalk gap along Hall Boulevard from downtown 
Tigard to Durham Road. Sidewalks along Hall 
Boulevard are one of the top priorities identified by 
citizens to make the city more walkable.

REQUEST AMOUNT: $7,100,000

	   Highway 217 Interchange with 72nd Avenue
   Evaluate and develop a conceptual design to address 

transportation issues in the interchange of Highway 
217 with 72nd Avenue. This project will focus on 
planning, not construction, for ramp terminals, cross 
street and streets intersecting 72nd Avenue.

  REQUEST AMOUNT: $1,000,000

  Safe Routes to Schools. A key aspect of the city’s 
recently adopted vision is to ensure that children have 
safe routes to walk to school. In July 2012, Congress 
passed the transportation law MAP-21. As part of that 
law, they folded the Safe Routes to School program 
into a new program called Transporta tion Alternatives 
and cut funding by approximately 30 percent. When 
Congress considers the next transportation bill in 
2015, the city supports increased funding for Safe 
Routes to School and a sustained federal commitment 
to these critical safety projects.  

Photo: Doug Vorwaller



City of Tigard
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223
www.tigard-or.gov

City of Tigard, Oregon

2015 

Federal Legislative Agenda
 HUNZIKER INDUSTRIAL CORE

Tigard’s Hunziker Industrial Core project represents a 
unique and exciting opportunity to redevelop industrial 
land in an urban setting. When complete, the project will 
foster significant economic growth and provide long-term 
high-skill, high-wage job opportunities for the region. 

The core includes more than 138 acres of industrial-zoned 
property located three-quarters of a mile from Interstate 5,  
one-half mile from Highway 217 and immediately 
accessible by existing rail. In this area, 96 acres are 
developed but underutilized. Forty-two acres are 
undeveloped but limited in their development potential. 
The area exemplifies the challenge inner-ring suburban 
cities face when trying to support business growth. 

A private developer is working on a 225,000 square foot 
development on 18 acres; an estimated $22 million 
private investment and home to 115–300 new jobs. New 
infrastructure here will support new investment and 
redevelopment on the adjacent 120 acres of industrial 
property. This sets the stage for another 300–500 jobs 
and $35 million in private investment.

Through a state grant, and in partnership with local 
property owners, Tigard completed a Public Infrastructure 
Finance Plan in 2014. The total cost of public infrastruc-
ture (roads, water, wastewater and stormwater) to support 
private sector development in the Hunziker Industrial Core 
is estimated at about $10.5 million. The city is seeking 
$1.5 million from the U.S. Department of Commerce 
Economic Development Administration program to fund 
some of the public infrastructure improvements.

REQUEST AMOUNT: $1,500,000

For more information…
More information about these projects and Tigard’s 
vision for the future can be found on our website at  
www.tigard-or.gov. Please don’t hesitate to contact us 
for additional information. 

  Mayor John L. Cook, 503-718-2476,  
mayorcook@tigard-or.gov

  City Manager Marty Wine, 503-718-2486,  
marty@tigard-or.gov

  Assistant City Manager Liz Newton, 503-718-2412, 
liz@tigard-or.gov



Economic Development and Land Use

  Support funding and policies to facilitate 

  Request funding for infrastructure to 

  

  

Finance 

  Property Tax Reform: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Transportation

  

  

   

Other Focus Areas

   
 

  Support increased resources for persons 



Legislative AgendaLegislative Agenda
Tigard, Oregon

2015

“She flies with her own wings.” –Judge Jessie Quinn Thornton

City of Tigard
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

www.tigard-or.gov

~  



   

AIS-2303       5.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 20 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Develop 2016 Federal and State Legislative Agenda

Prepared For: Kent Wyatt, City Management Submitted By: Norma
Alley,
Central
Services

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Council
Business
Meeting -
Main

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Council is asked to identify potential areas or issues for advocacy on the state and federal level
for the upcoming year. This could include ways to partner with neighboring jurisdictions on
issues of common interest, or key legislation that will be considered that Tigard should track
and communicate with our state and federal legislative delegation

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Discuss the city's 2016 state and federal legislative priorities and direct staff to prepare State
and Federal Legislative Agendas.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Each fall, city council adopts state and federal legislative priorities for the coming year. The
2015 Oregon legislature recognized Tigard's legislative agenda by granting $1.5 million to build
public infrastructure in the Hunziker Industrial Corridor. 
 
 The purpose of this discussion is to provide council an opportunity to review priorities from
the past year, consider council goals, citizen's priorities, and issues and opportunities the city
may face in the coming year and reach consensus on priorities for 2016.

The state legislature will convene in February for a short session. A majority of their action
will focus around policies fixes. It is unclear whether the state legislature will address
transportation funding.

Attached are the state and federal legislative agendas from 2015. The League of Oregon Cities



has not released its 2016 legislative priorities. This discussion will center around updating the
2015 agendas to accurately reflect the Council's legislative priorities.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Based on council consensus on priorities, council may request further clarification on issues
not raised in this summary.

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Represent Tigard at the regional, state and federal level to advocate for tax reform and other
funding opportunities.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

11/25/14: Adoption of the city's 2015 State and Federal Legislative Agenda.

Attachments

2015 State Legislative Agenda

2015 Federal Legislative Agenda



Economic Development and Land Use

   Support funding and policies to facilitate 
for brownfield mediation and clean-up. 

   Request funding for infrastructure to 
support development of the underutilized 
Hunziker Industrial Core and support 
funding for SB 246 which would provide 
funds and authority to Business Oregon 
which could assist in assembling 
infrastructure funding for the area.

   Support renewal of the State’s Vertical 
Housing and Development program 
(which sunsets Jan. 2016). The city 
recently established a VHD program which 
will be an important tool in advancing 
targeted development in the downtown 
urban renewal district.

   Advocate for legislative funding of the 
Oregon Transportation Forum on Climate 
Smart Communities

Finance 

   Property Tax Reform: 

  		Support referral to voters that would 
allow local control of temporary 
property tax outside of statewide caps; 

  		Support an amendment of the state 
constitution that would reset a property’s 
assessed value to its real market value at 
the time of sale or construction; 

  		Support a statutory change regarding 
the way new property is added to the 
tax rolls to provide the option of 
applying a city-wide changed property 
ratio to new property. 

   Allow for price comparison when procuring 
the services of architects and engineers. 

   Oppose preemption of the ability of cities 
to manage and receive compensation for 
the use of public ROW. 

   Advocate for a change to the current fiscal 
year (July 1 to June 30) as mandated by 
state law to a calendar that better 
coincides with the legislative session.

Transportation

   Support passage of a comprehensive 
transportation funding and policy package 
to address multi-modal needs with a 
priority of maintaining and preserving 
existing infrastructure.

   Support legislative priorities that address 
traffic congestion, economic development 
and jobs.

   Request funding for improvements to  
SW Hall Boulevard – Burnham Street to 
Durham Road. This project will add turn 
lanes at key intersections, illuminate, add 
transit stop amenities and fill in the 
sidewalk gap along Hall Boulevard from 
downtown Tigard to Durham Road. 
Side walks along Hall Boulevard are one of 
the top priorities identified by citizens to 
make the city more walkable. 

 Request Amount: $7,100,000

Other Focus Areas

   Advocate for legislative changes that  
will clarify and enhance public safety  
and local control related to marijuana 
dispensaries. 

   Support increased resources for persons 
with mental health issues, especially in 
crisis situations.



Legislative AgendaLegislative Agenda
Tigard, Oregon

2015

“She flies with her own wings.” –Judge Jessie Quinn Thornton

City of Tigard
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

www.tigard-or.gov

Oregon’s 2015 
Regular Legislative Session:
February 2 – July 11 (est.)

Sen. Ginny Burdick
SENATE DISTRICT 18

900 Court St. NE, S-213
Salem, OR 97301

sen.ginnyburdick@
state.or.us

Rep. Margaret Doherty
HOUSE DISTRICT 35

900 Court St. NE, H-282
Salem, OR 97301

rep.margaretdoherty@
state.or.us

~  
councilmail@tigard-or.gov

Tigard City Council

Councilor
Marland Henderson

Councilor 
Marc Woodard

Councilor 
John Goodhouse

Mayor 
John Cook

Council President 
  Jason Snider

Oregon uses a system of single-member districts to elect its 
legislators. Each of the 90 members represent a designated 
senatorial or representative district, meaning each 
Oregonian is represented by a single senator and a single 
representative. Representative districts have a population 
of about 63,850; Senate districts contain about 127,700 
people. These district lines are redrawn every ten years.



TIGARD, OREGON.  Located just eight miles 
southwest of Portland, Tigard is Oregon’s 12th largest 
city with a population of 50,044. The city is largely 
residential and offers a mix of industrial, commercial 
and retail space which results in a daytime population 
around 100,000. Because of the demand placed on 
its transportation, water and public safety resources, 
Tigard faces big-city infrastructure issues.
  Tigard is ideally located to meet regional 
employ ment demand. The region’s workforce lives 
here. What’s lacking, however, is infrastructure that 
supports business expansion here. 
  Late in 2014, the City Council adopted a strategic 
plan to become “the most walkable community in the  
Pacific Northwest where people of all ages and abilities  
enjoy healthy and interconnected lives.” This 20-year  
strategic vision, along with four strategic goals, will 
provide guidance and direction for the city’s priorities 
over the long term by leveraging and building on our 
strengths to grow Tigard as a thriving community.
  Tigard continues to work with its regional 
partners toward creative solutions that address 
infrastructure and service delivery challenges. We are 
committed to responsible stewardship of public funds 
and to making sound fiscal decisions that will guide 
us to a sustainable future. 

 POLICY ITEMS

  The Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Act which would 
require the U.S. Department of Transportation to set a 
performance measure to reduce the number of 
bicyclists and pedestrians killed on our roads. 

FY 2016 Program Levels
Maintain adequate funding levels for TIGER, CDBG, 
HOME, BYRNE, EDA, and COPS funding.

  COPS Hiring and Technology Funding
  Tigard strongly supports additional funding for the COPS 

Hiring and Technology programs. The city plans to apply 
for a COPS position in 2015 to advance public safety 
through community policing. There are very few funding 
options at the federal level to help police departments 
purchase equipment, despite the fact that federal 
mandates continue to require costly upgrades. Federal 
funds for equipment upgrades are important, especially 
for police departments with cash strapped budgets.  

Protect Municipal Bonds
Protect tax exempt municipal bonds from being eliminated or 
limited. Since federal income tax was instituted in 1913, 
interest earned from municipal bonds issued by state and 
local governments have been exempt from federal taxation. 
These bonds are the primary financing mechanism for state 
and local infrastructure projects, with three-quarters of the 
infrastructure projects in the U.S. built by state and local 
governments, and with over $3.7 trillion in outstanding tax- 
exempt bonds, issued by 30,000 separate government units. 

Local governments save an average of 25 to 30 percent on 
interest costs with tax-exempt municipal bonds as compared 
to taxable bonds because investors are willing to accept 
lower interest on tax-exempt bonds in conjunction with the 
tax benefit. If the federal income tax exemption is eliminated 
or limited, states and localities will pay more to finance 
projects, leading to less infrastructure investment, fewer 
jobs, and greater burdens on citizens.

Secure a Tigard ZIP Code
State Representative Margaret Doherty has introduced a 
measure urging the United States Postmaster General to 
recognize ZIP codes 97223 and 97224 as Tigard ZIP codes 
that are separate and distinct from Portland ZIP codes.

Robust Transportation Reauthorization Bill
Congress should develop a comprehensive transportation 
reauthorization bill that would create jobs by providing 
robust funding for bridges, highways, mass transit and 
other local infrastructure needs. Within the reauthorization 
bill, Tigard strongly supports inclusion of: 

  The bipartisan Innovations in Surface Trans
portation Act, which creates a grant program that  
would put transportation funds in the hands of local 
communities. The Innovation grants would be awarded 
on merit by a panel with representatives from state  
and local jurisdictions, ensuring that funds go to 
well-conceived projects with the most local support. 
Needed projects in Tigard with local support include:

	   Hall Boulevard – Burnham Street to Durham Road
   This project will add turn lanes at key intersections, 

illuminate, add transit stop amenities and fill in the 
sidewalk gap along Hall Boulevard from downtown 
Tigard to Durham Road. Sidewalks along Hall 
Boulevard are one of the top priorities identified by 
citizens to make the city more walkable.

REQUEST AMOUNT: $7,100,000

	   Highway 217 Interchange with 72nd Avenue
   Evaluate and develop a conceptual design to address 

transportation issues in the interchange of Highway 
217 with 72nd Avenue. This project will focus on 
planning, not construction, for ramp terminals, cross 
street and streets intersecting 72nd Avenue.

  REQUEST AMOUNT: $1,000,000

  Safe Routes to Schools. A key aspect of the city’s 
recently adopted vision is to ensure that children have 
safe routes to walk to school. In July 2012, Congress 
passed the transportation law MAP-21. As part of that 
law, they folded the Safe Routes to School program 
into a new program called Transporta tion Alternatives 
and cut funding by approximately 30 percent. When 
Congress considers the next transportation bill in 
2015, the city supports increased funding for Safe 
Routes to School and a sustained federal commitment 
to these critical safety projects.  

Photo: Doug Vorwaller



City of Tigard
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223
www.tigard-or.gov

City of Tigard, Oregon

2015 

Federal Legislative Agenda
 HUNZIKER INDUSTRIAL CORE

Tigard’s Hunziker Industrial Core project represents a 
unique and exciting opportunity to redevelop industrial 
land in an urban setting. When complete, the project will 
foster significant economic growth and provide long-term 
high-skill, high-wage job opportunities for the region. 

The core includes more than 138 acres of industrial-zoned 
property located three-quarters of a mile from Interstate 5,  
one-half mile from Highway 217 and immediately 
accessible by existing rail. In this area, 96 acres are 
developed but underutilized. Forty-two acres are 
undeveloped but limited in their development potential. 
The area exemplifies the challenge inner-ring suburban 
cities face when trying to support business growth. 

A private developer is working on a 225,000 square foot 
development on 18 acres; an estimated $22 million 
private investment and home to 115–300 new jobs. New 
infrastructure here will support new investment and 
redevelopment on the adjacent 120 acres of industrial 
property. This sets the stage for another 300–500 jobs 
and $35 million in private investment.

Through a state grant, and in partnership with local 
property owners, Tigard completed a Public Infrastructure 
Finance Plan in 2014. The total cost of public infrastruc-
ture (roads, water, wastewater and stormwater) to support 
private sector development in the Hunziker Industrial Core 
is estimated at about $10.5 million. The city is seeking 
$1.5 million from the U.S. Department of Commerce 
Economic Development Administration program to fund 
some of the public infrastructure improvements.

REQUEST AMOUNT: $1,500,000

For more information…
More information about these projects and Tigard’s 
vision for the future can be found on our website at  
www.tigard-or.gov. Please don’t hesitate to contact us 
for additional information. 

  Mayor John L. Cook, 503-718-2476,  
mayorcook@tigard-or.gov

  City Manager Marty Wine, 503-718-2486,  
marty@tigard-or.gov

  Assistant City Manager Liz Newton, 503-718-2412, 
liz@tigard-or.gov



   

AIS-2192       6.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 25 Minutes  

Agenda Title: QJ Public Hearing: Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zone
Change for Fields Trust

Prepared For: Gary Pagenstecher, Community Development 

Submitted By: Lloyd Purdy, Community Development

Item Type: Ordinance
Public Hearing - Quasi-Judicial

Meeting Type: Council
Business
Meeting -
Main

Public Hearing: Yes Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

The Fred W. Fields Trust proposes to amend the comprehensive plan map for their vacant
property at the southeast corner of Hunziker and Wall Street. The proposed amendment is
from 37.4 acres of Light Industrial (IL), 3.1 acres of Professional Commercial (CP), and 2.1
acres of Low Density Residential (L) to 18.3 acres of Light Industrial (IL) and 24.2 acres of
Mixed Use Employment (MUE). The proposal would also amend the zoning map from 37.4
acres of Industrial Park (I-P), 3.1 acres of Professional/Administrative Commercial (C-P), and
2.1 acres of Low-Density Residential (R-3.5) to 18.3 acres of I-P and 24.2 acres of MUE.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

The Planning Commission recommends approval to City Council of the proposed
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zone Change subject to the Findings in Section IV of
the attached staff report and the following recommended four conditions of approval (the
conditions of approval are more fully described in the key facts section):
 

1. The planned development overlay zone shall be applied concurrently with the proposed
MUE zone;
 

2. Future development within the MUE zone shall include a minimum of 280 non-retail jobs
to preserve employment land capacity consistent with the city’s amended 2011 EOA;
 

3. The site shall be limited to a maximum of 630 a.m. peak hour trips and 630 p.m. peak hour
trips. If the applicant or future property owners wish to allow for more trips, a
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA) with Transportation Planning Rule OAR
660-012-0060 analysis will be required to determine whether the limit can be revised or



removed. The trip cap shall be implemented as a condition of approval on subsequent land
use permits for proposed development and will be listed as a condition of approval in the
ordinance adopting the zone change, if approved by the City Council; and
 

4. The applicant shall record an easement, restrictive covenant or similar instrument on the
subject property that is acceptable to the city to ensure a 50-foot wide forested buffer is
maintained along the eastern property boundary abutting the Rolling Hills subdivision.
 

The proposed Mixed Use Employment Comprehensive Plan designation of the eastern
portion of the site will allow development despite existing slope constraints. It will also
reduce potential conflicts between uses on the subject property and abutting residential
development. The proposed zone change from I-P to MUE has the potential to increase
economic development in Tigard by allowing for a wider variety of potential development on
the site that is not limited by the physical attributes of the site.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Site Information and Proposal Description
The site is located on the southeast corner of Hunziker and Wall Street.  The proposal is to
amend the comprehensive plan map from 37.4 acres of Light Industrial (IL), 3.1 acres of
Professional Commercial (CP), and 2.1 acres of Low Density Residential to 18.3 acres of
Light Industrial and 24.2 acres of Mixed Use Employment (MUE). The proposal would also
amend the zoning map from 37.4 acres of Industrial Park (I-P), 3.1 acres of
Professional/Administrative Commercial (C-P), and 2.1 acres of Low-Density Residential
(R-3.5) to 18.3 acres of I-P and 24.2 acres of MUE. The application is required to meet
approval criteria set forth in the Tigard Municipal Code (TMC or Municipal Code) Title 18
Community Development Code. The application is submitted in response to site slopes and
other constraints which make the eastern portion of the site unsuitable for industrial uses. No
development plans accompany this land use application and no specific development plans
exist for the proposed MUE portion of the property.
 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 20, 2015 to consider the request and
take public testimony. The record was left open until August 3 for additional testimony, and
until August 10 for rebuttal testimony. All testimony was posted to the city’s website for
interested parties to review. The Commission continued the hearing to August 17, 2015 for
deliberation and to make their decision for recommendation of approval to Council.

Site History
The 42.5-acre property that is the subject of this application was owned by Fred W. Fields for
many years before his death in 2011. It is presently owned by the Fred W. Fields Trust. The
current zoning designations on the property have been in effect for several decades. A portion
of the industrially zoned part of the property was used by the Coe Manufacturing facility,
located at 7930 SW Hunziker Road, directly across Wall Street. Beginning in the early 1950s,
the southwestern end of the industrially zoned portion of the property was used as a
brick-making facility. Remnants of that facility still exist, including a concrete foundation. In



the late 1960s a rail spur was constructed along the western edge of the property abutting Wall
Street.  A single family home existed on the residentially zoned portion of the property, but
was demolished in 2012. Also in 2012, the Trust had an on-site horizontal mine shaft, which
was used for clay removal, filled in for safety reasons. There have been no other uses of the
property during the last 70 or so years. 

Neighborhood Testimony
Representatives of the Rolling Hills community, an area to the east of the subject
site, provided abundant written and oral public testimony throughout the hearing process. 
They submitted thirty comment letters with concerns over what the proposed change may
bring to their quality of life. Their testimony addressed four basic issues related to the quality
of life of the Rolling Hills neighborhood:
 

1) Identifying that traffic in the surrounding area is an issue of concern;
 

2) Requesting permanent closure of Varns Street at the Fields property to limit traffic through
the neighborhood;
 

3) Supporting continued maintenance of an historic 50-foot forested buffer along the full
length of the neighborhood on the west boundary; and
 

4) Requesting less intense zoning adjacent to the northern part of the neighborhood at 76th

and Crestview.
 

The commission supported the 50-foot forested buffer, as recommended through condition
#4, but found that the transportation-related issues and compatibility of adjacent uses would
be more appropriately addressed at the time when an application for development of the site
is submitted. These issues are very development specific and can be best addressed under a
planned development review procedure, as recommended through condition of approval #1.
 

Transportation Planning Rule Compliance
ODOT provided testimony addressing the assumptions underlying the applicant’s evidence
submitted to satisfy the Transportation Planning Rule requirement for zone changes. General
agreement was reached on the amount of development that would represent a reasonable
worst case scenario with a 0.30 Floor Area Ratio. However, a difference remains in deciding
which ITE Manual land use type is most appropriate to represent future development, with
respect to the number of trips generated. Where ODOT prefers the Business Park land use
type, the city agrees with the applicant that using the Office Park land use type better reflects
the types of development anticipated by the proposed zone change under MUE. The city
supports the August 3 memorandum from McKenzie that recommends a trip cap of 630 AM
and 630 PM peak hour trips be applied to the 24.56 acres subject to the zone
change.  (Condition of Approval #3)
 

Jobs Capacity Maintained



Recommended condition of approval #2 requires future development within the MUE zone
to include a minimum of 280 non-retail jobs to preserve employment land capacity consistent
with the city’s amended 2011 EOA. This condition is supported by the applicant and was not
an issue during the Commission hearing.
 

City of Tigard/Fields Trust Cooperation
The City has worked with Fred Fields over the years with respect to land use issues including
acquisition of property for the Library in the early 2000s and acquisition, with Metro, of
adjacent property to the east for natural resource conservation. This application is the
outcome of efforts between the Fields Trust and the city to unlock the economic
development potential of adjacent upland property, which has remained undeveloped in the
heart of the city. The central problem has been a mismatch between the existing Industrial
Park zoning designation and the slope of the subject site being unsuitable for industrial
development (see Attachment 2 of the application: Fields Property Development Analysis and
Opportunity Study, dated February 13, 2014).  The applicant’s narrative describes this
cooperative effort in detail.
 

In February 2014, the results of the Development Analysis were shared with the City’s
Planning Commission and City Council. Both bodies gave the Trust and staff feedback on the
Development Analysis, and expressed support for the overall direction recommended by that
analysis. Both bodies anticipated a follow-up application from the Trust requesting a
comprehensive plan map amendment and zone change consistent with the Development
Analysis recommendations.
 

Infrastructure Finance Plan
As a follow-up to the Development Analysis, the City applied for and received a grant from
the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) to prepare an
infrastructure finance plan for the Fields Trust property, as well as the surrounding Wall
Street/Hunziker Road industrial area to the west and north. The purpose of the study was to
quantify and size new public infrastructure for the area, with the hope of ultimately spurring
economic development. The infrastructure study recognized that not only would the Fields
Trust property need significant infrastructure investment, much of the adjacent industrial
property - especially to the west of Wall Street - would also benefit from public infrastructure
investment. The infrastructure plan was completed late last year and continues to inform the
City’s actions regarding the Wall Street/Hunziker Road area, as well as the Trust’s planning
for its property.
 

Economic Opportunities Analysis Amendment
In March 2015, the City Council adopted an amendment to its 2011 Economic Opportunities
Analysis (EOA) acknowledging that slope was not taken into account as a factor in
determining the suitability of vacant or redevelopable land in the city for industrial uses. Both
state law and Metro allow slope to be a limiting factor in the designation of industrial land.
(See OAR 660-009-0015(3)(a)(B) and Metro’s 2009 Urban Growth Report.) This omission
resulted in an overstatement of available and suitable industrial land in Tigard. In fact, it
obscured the city's deficit of industrial land supply.  The amendment allowed industrially



obscured the city's deficit of industrial land supply.  The amendment allowed industrially
zoned properties with significant slope, like the Fields Trust property, to be rezoned for more
feasible uses and highlights the need to consider job density in employment land development
and redevelopment.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

The Council may approve, approve with modifications, approve with conditions, deny or
adopt an alternative to an application for the legislative change or to remand to the
commission for rehearing and reconsideration on all or part of an application.

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Action on this item is supported by Tigard's Comprehensive Plan Goal 9.1 Policy 3, "The
City's land use and other regulatory practices shall be flexible and adaptive to promote
economic development opportunities, provided that required infrastructure is made available,"
and Council's 2014 Goal #6 to "develop and adopt strategic priorities, resources and
programs that support the local economy."  This action is also consistent with the city's
Strategic Plan Goal 2 Objectives 1 and 2 that see to "make best use of undeveloped and
underdeveloped land to increase the value of the city..." and "Build a healthy business climate
that attracts, serves and employs more Tigard residents." A complete review of relevant
comprehensive plan goals and policies is included in the attached staff report.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

June 16, 2015 Fields Industrial Property Project update March 24, 2015 Public Hearing for
Post Acknowledgement Plan Amendment to Economic Opportunity Analysis. December 9,
2014 pre-development update and presentation of draft MOU September 9, 2014 discussion
of the grant for the Public Infrastructure Finance Plan from the Department of Land
Conservation and Development August 9, 2014 update on Public Infrastructure Finance Plan
February 18, 2014 Fields Property Site Analysis study

Attachments

CPA2015-00004 (Fields Trust) Staff Report

CPA2015-00004 PC Minutes

Ordinance

Application Materials











































August 17, 2015                      Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF TIGARD 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Meeting Minutes 
August 17, 2015 

 
CALL TO ORDER   
President Rogers called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. The meeting was held in the Tigard Civic 
Center, Town Hall, at 13125 SW Hall Blvd. 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present: President Rogers 
 Vice President Fitzgerald 
 Commissioner Middaugh 
 Alt. Commissioner Mooney 
 Commissioner Muldoon 
 Commissioner Schmidt  
   
Absent: Alt. Commissioner Enloe; Commissioner Feeney; Commissioner Lieuallen 
 
Staff Present: Tom McGuire, Assistant Community Development Director; Gary 

Pagenstecher, Associate Planner; Doreen Laughlin, Executive Assistant; Lloyd 
Purdy, Economic Development Manager 

 
COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
CONSIDER MINUTES 
August 3 Meeting Minutes: President Rogers asked if there were any additions, deletions, or 
corrections to the August 3 minutes; there being none, Rogers declared the minutes approved as 
submitted.  
 
President Rogers explained to the audience that this is a continued hearing from July 20th and is 
open for Planning Commission Deliberation only. He said they will not be opening the record 
unless they have more questions for new information to be presented. They will consider the 
written testimony that had been submitted since the previous hearing.   
 
President Rogers opened the public hearing. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CONTINUED 
FIELDS TRUST PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE CHANGE – CPA2015-00004, 

ZON2015-00005 

REQUEST: The proposal is to amend the comprehensive plan map from 37.4 acres of Light 
Industrial (IL), 3.1 acres of Professional Commercial (CP), and 2.1 acres of Low Density Residential 
(L) to 18.3 acres of Light Industrial (IL) and 24.2 acres of Mixed Use Employment (MUE). The 
proposal would also amend the zoning map from 37.4 acres of Industrial Park (I-P), 3.1 acres of 
Professional/Administrative Commercial (C-P), and 2.1 acres of Low-Density Residential (R-3.5) to 
18.3 acres of I-P and 24.2 acres of MUE. APPLICANT:  Fred W. Fields Revocable Living Trust 



August 17, 2015                      Page 2 of 4 

LOCATION: Southwest corner of SW Hunziker Road & SW Wall Street ZONES: I-P: Industrial 
Park; C-P: Professional Commercial; R-3.5: Low-Density Residential  
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING STATEMENTS 
President Rogers read the required statements and procedural items from the quasi-judicial hearing 
guide. There were no abstentions; no challenges of the commissioners for bias or conflict of 
interest. Ex-parte contacts: None. Site visitations: Commissioners Schmidt, Middaugh, Muldoon, 
Rogers, Fitzgerald, Mooney had made site visits. No one wished to challenge the jurisdiction of the 
commission. 
 
DELIBERATION  
 
President Rogers asked each commissioner, one by one, to give their thoughts on the written 
testimony and the rebuttals that had been submitted and the case set before them. Following are 
comments from the commissioners:  

 The main concern written about was with regard to traffic. This case isn’t about a 
development; it’s basically just a zone change at this time.  

 In 1986 there was a Resolution to keep Varns Street closed. The city should recognize that 
when a development comes in.  

 Regarding the two pieces of property not in the Rolling Hills Development – the request to 
be considered wouldn’t be appropriate here. Again, this is just a zone change.  

 This request isn’t about extending the roads – this is a rezoning. When there is a planned 
development – we’ll address that then.  

 There was a concern about the commissioners not actually observing the neighborhood – 
we’ve all been there now and we’ve all seen it. It’s a great neighborhood – I appreciate the 
close-knit community and kind of wish I lived there.  

 I’m in support of the request. I hear the concerns, but believe they’re being addressed well. 

 I appreciate the testimony from the neighbors. 

 A good turnout from a passionate neighborhood. Once a development comes up, the 
opportunity to speak again will be here. 

 I’m facing the same type of thing in the Summerfield development. Everyone in my 
neighborhood figured the trees in our neighborhood would go on living a long, long time 
and now they’re building garden style/cottage type apartments and my neighborhood is up 
in arms. I get it – the fear is that everyone’s going to cut through our neighborhood and 
traffic flow is going to increase and they’re going to bypass Scholls Ferry – and as a 
paramedic I don’t want to see kids hurt in the neighborhood – none of that stuff. But the 
only thing we can do at the end of the day is participate in the public process. There are 
rules that are set up and I’ve chosen to get involved on the Planning Commission so that I 
can be involved on things like this. I would encourage everybody - and I know there are 
some open seats on this commission – so this is my plug - to get involved within the City.   

 So there are a bunch of issues here (in the written comments). There’s this whole concept 
of Varns Street. Again, I think this is not under consideration for the Planning Commission 
at this point. But if there was an agreement, the next step of this – regardless of what 
happens is - this process goes to the City Council. The City Council will hear this again. All 
of you here should attend. The piece about Varns Street you should bring up. If there was 
an agreement with the city you need to bring it to the Mayor and the Council – the elected 



August 17, 2015                      Page 3 of 4 

officials. We are all volunteers that were appointed by the current City Council. You need to 
contact the elected officials and make sure that hey – we had this agreement. Remember us!  

 When we eventually see a plan – that’s the point where we will get involved in the design, 
screening, conditions, etc. Right now we’re talking about general zone changes. So that’s a 
different process. We’re just a little early on this one. 

 Traffic Impact analysis – Undoubtedly, as I look at the 10,000 foot view, if we were to 
punch Varns through at that point it makes a direct shot into Hwy217; there’s no question 
in my mind what would happen to this neighborhood. Again, that conversation’s a little 
early – this is a different conversation here. What we should be encouraged with is that at 
the point the property is developed… there will be a traffic impact study done by the 
developer at that point. It’s a requirement – as well as a mitigation plan. For example, 
Walmart had to do a traffic study and they had to do traffic mitigation as well. That has to 
occur.  

 
REVIEW OF CONDITIONS 
 
At this point the commissioners looked at the language of the conditions and deliberated on what 
they wanted the motion to look like. After a short deliberation, there was a motion. 
 
MOTION  
 
Commissioner Fitzgerald made the following motion: 
 
“I move for approval of application CPA2015-00004, ZON2015-00005 and adoption of the 
findings and conditions of approval contained in the staff report based on the testimony 
received. Condition 1 - regarding Planned Development Overlay Zone as stated in the 
staff’s recommendation. Condition 2 – Protect Employment Capacity as stated in the staff 
recommendation. Condition 3 – as modified by ODOT with the time city required trip cap 
of 6:30 am and 6:30 pm peak hour trips be applied to the 24.56 acres subject to the zone 
change. Condition 4 – regarding the 50 foot historical forested buffer between the zones.” 
 
Commissioner Muldoon seconded the motion. 
 
A vote was taken; all were in favor, none opposed. 
 
MOTION PASSES UNANIMOUSLY 
 
City Council will hear this case on October 13th.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CLOSED 
 
FIVE MINUTE RECESS 
 
ATTORNEY RIHALA’S BRIEFING   
 
City Attorney Shelby Rihala gave the commissioners a briefing regarding the differences between 
hearing Quasi-Judicial and Legislative cases. They had a roundtable type discussion with the 
commissioners and staff asking questions that Attorney Rihala answered. The attorney distributed 





Doreen
Typewritten Text

Doreen
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

Doreen
Typewritten Text



 

ORDINANCE No. 15-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 15- 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT (CPA2015-00004) 
AND ZONE MAP AMENDMENT (ZON2015-00005) FOR  THE 42.6-ACRE FIELDS TRUST 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SW HUNZIKER ROAD & SW WALL 
STREET, TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP FROM 37.4 ACRES OF LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL (IL), 3.1 ACRES OF PROFESSIONAL COMMERCIAL (CP), AND 2.1 ACRES OF LOW 
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (L) TO 18.3 ACRES OF LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (IL) AND 24.2 ACRES OF 
MIXED USE EMPLOYMENT (MUE). THE PROPOSAL WOULD ALSO AMEND THE ZONING 
MAP FROM 37.4 ACRES OF INDUSTRIAL PARK (I-P), 3.1 ACRES OF 
PROFESSIONAL/ADMINISTRATIVE COMMERCIAL (C-P), AND 2.1 ACRES OF LOW-DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (R-3.5) TO 18.3 ACRES OF I-P AND 24.2 ACRES OF MUE. SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 1) APPLYING THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 
ZONE, 2) PRESERVERING EMPLOYMENT CAPACITY, 3) IMPOSING A TRIP CAP, AND 4) 
ENSURING A 50-FOOT FORESTED BUFFER.  THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS WASHINGTON 
COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR’S MAP AND TAX LOTS 2S1010001100, 2S101CA00100, 2S101DB00300, 
AND 2S101DB00400. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 18.380.030.A of the City of Tigard Community Development Code requires  
quasi-judicial zoning map amendments to be undertaken by means of a Type III-PC procedure, as governed 
by Section 18.390.050, using standards of approval contained in Subsection 18.380.030.B; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 18.380.030.A.2 of the City of Tigard Community Development Code requires the 
Planning Commission make a recommendation to the council on an application for a comprehensive plan 
map amendment; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 18.380.030.B.1 of the City of Tigard Community Development Code requires 
demonstration of compliance with all applicable comprehensive plan policies and map designations; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 18.380.030.B.2 of the Tigard Development Community Development Code requires 
demonstration of compliance with all applicable standards of any provision of this code or other applicable 
implementing ordinances; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 18.380.030.B.3 of the City of Tigard Community Development Code requires evidence of 
change in the neighborhood or community, or a mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan or zoning 
map as it relates to the property which is the subject of the development application; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 18.390.060.G of the Tigard Development Code, a recommendation by the 
Planning Commission, and a decision by the council, shall be based on consideration of Statewide Planning 
Goals and guidelines adopted under Oregon Revised Statues; any federal or state statutes or regulations found 
applicable; and any applicable Metro regulations; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 17, 2015, and recommended 
approval of CPA2014-00004/ZON2015-00005 by motion passed unanimously; and 
 



 

ORDINANCE No. 15-       
Page 2 

WHEREAS, the Tigard City Council held a public hearing on October 13, 2015, to consider the request for a  
quasi-judicial comprehensive plan and zone map amendment and determined that the amendments will not 
adversely affect the health, safety and welfare of the city and meet all applicable review criteria. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF TIGARD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA2015-00004) and Zone Change (ZON2015-00005) 

are hereby approved by the City Council, subject to the conditions of approval in the 
Planning Commission Recommendation to Council dated August 24, 2015. 

 
SECTION 2: The attached findings in the August 24, 2015 Planning Commission Recommendation are 

hereby adopted in explanation of the council’s decision (Exhibit “A”). 
 
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be effective 30 days after its passage by the Council, signature by the 

Mayor, and posting by the City Recorder. 
 
 
PASSED: By                                  vote of all Council members present after being read by number 

and title only, this            day of                                  , 2015. 
 
 
    
  Carol A. Krager, City Recorder 
 
 
APPROVED: By Tigard City Council this             day of                                        , 2015. 
 
 
    
  John L. Cook, Mayor  
 
Approved as to form: 
 
  
City Attorney 
 
  
Date 
 



















































































































































































































































































   

AIS-2316       7.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes  

Agenda Title: FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental

Prepared For: Carissa Collins 

Submitted By: Carissa Collins, Finance and Information Services

Item Type: Motion Requested
Resolution
Public Hearing -
Informational

Meeting Type: Council
Business
Meeting -
Main

Public Hearing 
Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: 

Yes 
 

Public Hearing Publication
Date in Newspaper: 

09/30/2015 

Information

ISSUE 

A first quarter supplemental amendment to the FY 2016 Adopted Budget is being requested.
The purpose of the supplemental is to account for revenues and expenses that were unknown
at the time of budget adoption. The amendment includes requested budget adjustments in city
operations and the Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve the FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The following is a list of items that require council action for the FY 2016 budget:

City Operations

Community Development 

Lighter, Quicker, Cheaper Project -  A request in the amount of $6,000 is needed to pay
for work that created an overlook destination in the Tigard Triangle within the existing
excess right-of-way at Dartmouth and 68th to capture a westward view over the city,
including access paths, benches, landscaping, and signage.

Central Services 

Payroll Allocation – A change in the allocation of payroll for the Director’s position is



required in order to reflect the actual span of duties resulting from the transfer of Fleet
Maintenance and Property Management from Public Works to Central Services. This
request will reduce the General Fund and Central Services Fund contributions by 10%
each for a total of $13,679. Fleet and Property Management Fund’s allocation will
increase by 20% or $13,679.
City Facilities – A request will carry forward a total of $30,000 to be used for the
purchase of benches at City Hall and Public Works for $20,000. In addition, $10,000 is
requested to pay for the installation of flooring at the Senior Center.

Finance & Information Services 

Citywide Phone System – A requested carry forward totaling $205,000 is needed to
purchase a citywide phone system including hardware as well as the maintenance contract.
Parks Utility Charge – A total of $60,000 is being requested to hire a consultant to
conduct a cost of rates study for development of a parks utility fee.

Police 

Grants/Donations– The most recent State Farm grant of $10,000 was awarded in May
2015 in order to support driver safety education and to purchase additional video /
kiosk displays. These funds will support the creation of the video. A total of $5,000 of
the award will be used to purchase and install an electronic display in the Police lobby. In
addition, a total of $1,893 of donated funds are remaining from a Tigard Rotary fund
raiser with proceeds to be used for special training and additional equipment for the
city's second police dog Diesel. Total requested carry forward is $11,893.
P25 Compliant Radios – A total of $10,000 is being recognized from the sale of 10
portable radios that were in surplus and sold to the Washington County Sheriff’s Office.
The proceeds will be used to purchase two additional P25 compliant radios to work
toward the city’s goal of replacing the entire inventory by the end of 2018.
Tasers– A request totaling $41,132 is required to replace 60 Taser Conducted Electrical
Weapons (CEWs) that have reached the end of their useful lives. In addition, support
had decreased due to the manufacturer’s support of their newer models.

 Public Works 

Wetland Mitigation Purchase – A total of $57,750 of Gas Tax funds is being requested
to pay for the wetland mitigation site at Hall/Wall St. This site has been found
non-compliant by Dept. of State Lands. The purchase of .33 acres of mitigation bank
credits is determined the least expensive option available to meet wetland mitigation
requirements.  The purchase must be made by November 2015. The other option
available was to develop a new restoration plan for the site, implement the plan, monitor
the site for a minimum of 3 (possibly 5) years, and hope to pass.
Intergovernmental Agreement: Erosion Control – This request in the amount of
$80,000 is for ongoing general fund appropriations to pay for erosion control
inspections provided by Clean Water Services.  The City of Tigard has entered into an
IGA with Clean Water Services to provide inspections at an estimated cost of $50,000 to
$80,000, and will be funded with permit revenues. IGA was approved by council on
8/18/2015.
Tigard St. Trail LQC – A request to carryover a total of $35,000 is needed to pay for the



completion of the Tigard Street Trail.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

River Terrace Stormwater Master Plan Implementation – A requested carry forward in
the amount of $62,000 is needed for the implementation of the River Terrace
Stormwater Master Plan including the development of the plan document.
Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) – A carry forward totaling $85,000 is needed to pay for
utility work and staff time for this project that is in partnership with Washington County.
The project was delayed due to a schedule change by the county.
95th Avenue/North Dakota Sidewalk – On May 19, 2015, city council amended the
Community Development Block Grant with Washington County to fill sidewalk gaps
and provide curbing and drainage improvements to be funded with a carryover amount
of $187,000.
North Dakota Bridge Repair – A total of $70,000 is required to pay for the emergency
repairs of the North Dakota Bridge and construction of a new walkway.
Hunziker Industrial Core – Upon recommendation of the Tigard Transportation
Advisory Committee, this new request in the amount of $200,000 will be used to support
the initial design of Wall/Tech Center Drive project and applying for federal grant
funding. The City Gas Tax Fund will be reimbursed in full by the proceeds from the $1.5
million state grant that was awarded in July 2015.
72nd Avenue/Dartmouth – A carryover totaling $10,000 is required to finalize payment
of the legal fees associated with the four Martin Properties that went through an
extensive federal process for acquisition.
Downtown Land Acquisition – A carry forward in the amount of $515,000 is required to
pay for the acquisition of the Saxony property that occurred on July 9, 2015.
Lake Oswego/Tigard Water Partnership - An additional appropriation of $6.66 million
is required to pay for Tigard's share of the partnership that was delayed during the prior
fiscal year. This request does not change the total cost of the project, just the timing of
the expenditures.

            Non Budgetary Impact Items 

Dirksen Nature Park – Design and construction funding has been reduced in FY 2016
and reallocated to FY 2017.
Park Land Acquisition – The purchase of the Lasich property is programmed for three
years beginning in FY 2017.
Fanno Creek Remeander – The request moves $336,628 from Parks Bond to Parks
Capital to reflect the actual location of the appropriation.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Do not approve the FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

2. Make Downtown Tigard a Place Where People Want to Be



2. Make Downtown Tigard a Place Where People Want to Be
3. Adopt Tigard Triangle Strategic Plan and Enable Future Development Capacity
4. Enable Groundbreaking in River Terrace by Summer 2015

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

None

Fiscal Impact

Cost: $12,514,713

Budgeted (yes or no): No

Where Budgeted (department/program): All Programs

Additional Fiscal Notes:

The total impact of this amendment will increase the FY 2016 Adopted Budget by
$12,514,713.  Although the supplemental consists of increased requirements, they are
partially offset by additional resources. These resources include transfers, contingency, and
beginning fund balances .  The remainder of the requests are offset by use of Reserve for
Future Expenditures, primarily the use of water bond proceeds for the LO/Tigard Water
Partnership.  Exhibits A, and B contain the details of each budgetary item to the impacted
fund(s) and the capital projects. Exhibit C summarizes the items by fund for all city funds.

Attachments

Resolution

Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C



 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-    
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY 2016 ADOPTED BUDGET TO ACHIEVE THE 
FOLLOWING: RECOGNITION OF GRANT REVENUES AND EXPENSES ALONG WITH 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS IN PUBLIC WORKS, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, POLICY & 
ADMINISTRATION, COMMUNITY SERVICES, AND THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
 
  
 
WHEREAS, the city acknowledges those items that were unknown at the time the FY 2016 Budget was 
adopted; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city recognizes approximately $12.5 million of unanticipated requirements in operations and 
the capital improvement program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city acknowledges that the increase in unanticipated requirements is offset by transfers, and 
carryforward of funds from the prior fiscal year as well as approximately $6.66 million from reserve for future 
expenditure. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:   
 
SECTION 1:    The FY 2015-16 Budget is hereby amended as detailed in Exhibits A and B. 
 
SECTION  : This resolution is effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
 
 
PASSED: This   day of   2015. 
 
 
 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 
 
 



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1CD01.  LQC-Dartmouth Overlook

Creation of an overlook destination in the Tigard Triangle with the existing right-of-way at 

Dartmouth and 68th to capture a westward view of the city. 

This action will show a decrease in General Fund contingency of $6,000 with an equal increase

in Community Development program expenditures.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   10,709,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     6,000$          4,043,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   22,231,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   6,000$         31,292,017$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     (6,000)$         1,114,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  -$             35,840,953$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1CS01. Payroll Allocation-Director

A request to change the salary allocation of the Central Service Director's position is needed to 

reflect the divisions that report to this position as a result of the reorganization of the City Management.

With this request, the salary and benefit split will be 40% Court, 20% City Recorder/Records, 

20% Design & Communications, and 20% Fleet & Property Management.

This action will show a decrease in Policy & Administration's program expenditures by $6,840 in 

General Fund, as well as a decrease of $6,840 in Policy & Administration's program expenses within

the Central Services Fund. Reserve for Future Expenditures will increase by the same amounts in both funds.

In turn, this action will show a decrease of $13,679 in Fleet & Property Management contingency with an

equal increase in Policy and Administration program expenditures.

Fund 1 of 3 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   10,709,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   22,231,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        (6,840)$         892,662$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   (6,840)$        31,279,177$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     1,120,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  (6,840)$        35,834,113$      

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    6,840$         5,961,790$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1CS01. Payroll Allocation-Director

A request to change the salary allocation of the Central Service Director's position is needed to 

reflect the divisions that report to this position as a result of the reorganization of the City Management.

With this request, the salary and benefit split will be 40% Court, 20% City Recorder/Records, 

20% Design & Communications, and 20% Fleet & Property Management.

This action will show a decrease in Policy & Administration's program expenditures by $6,840 in 

General Fund, as well as a decrease of $6,840 in Policy & Administration's program expenses within

the Central Services Fund. Reserve for Future Expenditures will increase by the same amounts in both funds.

In turn, this action will show a decrease of $13,679 in Fleet & Property Management contingency with an

equal increase in Policy and Administration program expenditures.

Fund 2 of 3 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Central Services Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 182,372$       182,372$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 33,872$         33,872$            

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 6,986,481$     6,986,481$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 22,593$         22,593$            

Miscellaneous 19,900$         19,900$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 698,824$        698,824$           

Total Resources 7,944,042$    -$             7,944,042$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration 7,591,137$     (6,840)$         7,584,297$        

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total 7,591,137$     (6,840)$        7,584,297$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds -$               -$                  

Contingency 150,000$        150,000$           

Total Budget 7,741,137$     (6,840)$        7,734,297$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 202,905$       6,840$         209,745$          

Total Requirements 7,944,042$    -$             7,944,042$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1CS01. Payroll Allocation-Director

A request to change the salary allocation of the Central Service Director's position is needed to 

reflect the divisions that report to this position as a result of the reorganization of the City Management.

With this request, the salary and benefit split will be 40% Court, 20% City Recorder/Records, 

20% Design & Communications, and 20% Fleet & Property Management.

This action will show a decrease in Policy & Administration's program expenditures by $6,840 in 

General Fund, as well as a decrease of $6,840 in Policy & Administration's program expenses within

the Central Services Fund. Reserve for Future Expenditures will increase by the same amounts in both funds.

In turn, this action will show a decrease of $13,679 in Fleet & Property Management contingency with an

equal increase in Policy and Administration program expenditures.

Fund 3 of 3 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Fleet/Property Management

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 113,138$        113,138$           

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 1,783,024$     1,783,024$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings -$               -$                  

Miscellaneous 29,686$         29,686$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 19,647$         19,647$            

Total Resources 1,945,495$    -$             1,945,495$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration 1,852,362$     13,680$        1,866,042$        

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total 1,852,362$    13,680$        1,866,042$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds -$               -$                  

Contingency 75,000$         (13,680)$       61,320$            

Total Budget 1,927,362$    -$             1,927,362$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 18,133$         -$             18,133$            

Total Requirements 1,945,495$    -$             1,945,495$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1CS02.  City Facilities-Carryforward

This request will carry forward a total of $30,000 to be used for the purchase of benches at City Hall for

$20,000, and $10,000 to pay for the installation of flooring at the Senior Center.

This action will result in a decrease in contingency in the Fleet/Property Management Fund

by $30,000 with an increase in Property Management program expenses.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Fleet/Property Management

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 113,138$        113,138$           

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 1,783,024$     1,783,024$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings -$               -$                  

Miscellaneous 29,686$         29,686$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 19,647$         19,647$            

Total Resources 1,945,495$    -$             1,945,495$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration 1,852,362$     30,000$        1,882,362$        

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total 1,852,362$    30,000$       1,882,362$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds -$               -$                  

Contingency 75,000$         (30,000)$       45,000$            

Total Budget 1,927,362$    -$             1,927,362$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 18,133$         -$             18,133$            

Total Requirements 1,945,495$    -$             1,945,495$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1FS01.  Citywide Phone System - Carryforward

This request will carryforward a total of $205,000 to be used for the purchase of  a citywide

phone system including hardware and maintenance contract.

This action will result in an increase in beginning fund balance in the Central Services Fund

by $205,000 with an equal increase in Policy and Administration program expenses.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Central Services Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 182,372$       205,000$      387,372$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 33,872$         33,872$            

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 6,986,481$     6,986,481$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 22,593$         22,593$            

Miscellaneous 19,900$         19,900$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 698,824$        698,824$           

Total Resources 7,944,042$    205,000$      8,149,042$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration 7,591,137$     205,000$      7,796,137$        

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total 7,591,137$     205,000$      7,796,137$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds -$               -$                  

Contingency 150,000$        150,000$           

Total Budget 7,741,137$     205,000$      7,946,137$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 202,905$       -$             202,905$          

Total Requirements 7,944,042$    205,000$      8,149,042$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1FS02.  Park Utility Fund Fee - Carryforward

A carryforward is requested to hire a consultant to conduct a cost of rates study for 

development of a parks utility fee. This will result in an increase in beginning fund balance

by $35,000 in General Fund and an increase in transfers out. Central Services Fund contingency 

will decrease by $25,000. Program expenditures in Policy and Administration will increase by 

a total of $60,000.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$  35,000$       10,744,593$     

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$    5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$    1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$    5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$    3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$       873,006$          

Interest Earnings 103,722$       103,722$          

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$  35,000$       41,830,903$     

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$    4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   22,231,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$       899,502$          

Public Works 4,118,322$    4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$  -$            31,286,017$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$    35,000$        3,469,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$    1,120,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  35,000$       35,875,953$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$            5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$  35,000$       41,830,903$     

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Central Services Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 182,372$       182,372$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 33,872$         33,872$            

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 6,986,481$    6,986,481$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 22,593$         22,593$            

Miscellaneous 19,900$         19,900$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 698,824$       35,000$        733,824$          

Total Resources 7,944,042$    35,000$       7,979,042$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration 7,591,137$    60,000$        7,651,137$        

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total 7,591,137$    60,000$       7,651,137$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds -$               -$                  

Contingency 150,000$       (25,000)$       125,000$          

Total Budget 7,741,137$    35,000$       7,776,137$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 202,905$       -$            202,905$          

Total Requirements 7,944,042$    35,000$       7,979,042$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PD01.  State Farm Teen Driver Safety Video & Tigard Rotary Donation - Carryforward

The most recent State Farm grant of $10,000 was awarded in May 2015 and was awarded to support driver

safety education and to purchase additional video / kiosk displays. These funds will support the creation 

of the video. A total of $5,000 of the award will be used to purchase and install an electronic display in the 

Police lobby. In addition, a total of $1,893 of donated funds are remaining from a fund raiser

with proceeds going to special training and additional equipment for the city's second police dog Diesel.

This action will show an increase in General Fund intergovernmental revenue by $11,893 with an equal

increase in Community Services program expenditures.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   10,709,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     10,000$        5,432,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     1,893$          3,039,908$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$   11,893$        41,807,796$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   11,893$        22,242,907$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   11,893$        31,297,910$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     1,120,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  11,893$        35,852,846$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   11,893$        41,807,796$      



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PD02. P25 Compliant Portable Radios

After declaring 10 portable radios as 'surplus', the PD sold them to the Washington County Sheriff's  

Office. With the sale of the 10 older radios, the PD intends to purchase two (2) additional P25 compliant 

radios to work toward our goal of replacing our entire inventory by the end of 2018.

As a result, General Fund intergovernmental revenues will increase by $10,000 with an equal increase in

Police program expenditures.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   10,709,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     10,000$        5,432,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$   10,000$        41,805,903$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   10,000$        22,241,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   10,000$        31,296,017$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     1,120,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  10,000$        35,850,953$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   10,000$        41,805,903$      



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PD03. Taser Upgrade

The department is proposing to replace 60 Taser Conducted Electrical Weapons (CEWs) which have 

reached the end of their useful lives. In addition, support for the city's CEWs has decreased due 

to the manufacturer's support of their newer models. As a result of this action, General Fund

contingency will decrease by $41,132 with an equal increase in Community Services program

expenditures.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   10,709,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   41,132$        22,272,146$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   41,132$        31,327,149$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     (41,132)$       1,078,868$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  -$             35,840,953$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW01. River Terrace Stormwater Master Plan - Carryforward

A total of $62,000 is required for the implementation of the River Terrace Stormwater Master Plan. 

As a result, beginning fund balance in the Stormwater Fund will increase by $52,000. In addition,

contingency will decrease by $10,000. In turn, capital program expenditures will increase by $62,000 in

the Stormwater Fund.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Stormwater Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 3,774,154$    52,000$       3,826,154$       

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 2,595,949$     2,595,949$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 7,936$           7,936$              

Miscellaneous 3,100$           3,100$              

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 6,381,139$     52,000$       6,433,139$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 1,738,126$     1,738,126$        

Program Expenditures Total 1,738,126$     -$             1,738,126$        

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress 1,265,096$     62,000$        1,327,096$        

Transfers to Other Funds 433,356$        433,356$           

Contingency 200,000$        (10,000)$       190,000$           

Total Budget 3,636,578$    52,000$       3,688,578$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 2,744,561$    -$             2,744,561$       

Total Requirements 6,381,139$     52,000$       6,433,139$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW02.  Wetland Mitigation Bank Purchase (Hall/Wall-Wall St. Extension)

This new request will appropriate $57,750 in Gas Tax Funds for the wetland mitigation site at Hall/Wall. 

This site has been found noncompliant by Dept. of State Lands. The purchase of .33 acres of mitigation

bank credits is determined the least expensive option available to meet wetland mitigation requirements.  

The purchase must be made by November 2015.

As a result of this action, Gas Tax beginning fund balance will increase by $57,750. Transfers will increase.

Public Works program expenditures will increase by the same amount.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Gas Tax Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 704,872$       57,750$       762,622$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 5,872$           5,872$               

Intergovernmental 3,070,117$     3,070,117$        

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 55,732$         55,732$             

Miscellaneous 62,818$         62,818$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 100,000$        100,000$           

Total Resources 3,999,411$    57,750$       4,057,161$        

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 2,166,046$     2,166,046$        

Program Expenditures Total 2,166,046$    -$             2,166,046$       

Debt Service 592,425$        592,425$           

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 229,389$        57,750$        287,139$           

Contingency 200,000$        200,000$           

Total Budget 3,187,860$    57,750$       3,245,610$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 811,551$        -$             811,551$           

Total Requirements 3,999,411$    57,750$       4,057,161$        

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$  10,709,593$     

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               57,750$        57,750$             

Total Resources 41,795,903$  57,750$       41,853,653$     

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   22,231,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     57,750$        4,176,072$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$  57,750$       31,343,767$     

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     1,120,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  57,750$       35,898,703$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$  57,750$       41,853,653$     



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW03.  Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward totaling $85,000 is required to pay for staff time and utility work that was not completed 

by June 30, 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance will increase by $8,500 in Gas Tax; $51,000 in 

Underground Utility; $8,500 in Sanitary Sewer, $8,500 in Stormwater; and$8,500 in the Water Fund. 

Transfers will increase with capital program expenditures increasing by $85,000 in the Transportation CIP

Fund.

Fund 1 of 6 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Gas Tax Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 704,872$       8,500$         713,372$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 5,872$           5,872$               

Intergovernmental 3,070,117$     3,070,117$        

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 55,732$         55,732$             

Miscellaneous 62,818$         62,818$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 100,000$        100,000$           

Total Resources 3,999,411$    8,500$         4,007,911$        

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 2,166,046$     2,166,046$        

Program Expenditures Total 2,166,046$    -$             2,166,046$       

Debt Service 592,425$        592,425$           

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 229,389$        8,500$          237,889$           

Contingency 200,000$        200,000$           

Total Budget 3,187,860$    8,500$         3,196,360$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 811,551$        -$             811,551$           

Total Requirements 3,999,411$    8,500$         4,007,911$        



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW03.  Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward totaling $85,000 is required to pay for staff time and utility work that was not completed 

by June 30, 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance will increase by $8,500 in Gas Tax; $51,000 in 

Underground Utility; $8,500 in Sanitary Sewer, $8,500 in Stormwater; and$8,500 in the Water Fund. 

Transfers will increase with capital program expenditures increasing by $85,000 in the Transportation CIP

Fund.

Fund 2 of 6 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Stormwater Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 3,774,154$    8,500$         3,782,654$       

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 2,595,949$     2,595,949$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 7,936$           7,936$               

Miscellaneous 3,100$           3,100$               

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 6,381,139$    8,500$         6,389,639$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 1,738,126$     1,738,126$        

Program Expenditures Total 1,738,126$    -$             1,738,126$        

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress 1,265,096$     1,265,096$        

Transfers to Other Funds 433,356$        8,500$          441,856$           

Contingency 200,000$        200,000$           

Total Budget 3,636,578$    8,500$         3,645,078$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 2,744,561$    -$             2,744,561$       

Total Requirements 6,381,139$    8,500$         6,389,639$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW03.  Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward totaling $85,000 is required to pay for staff time and utility work that was not completed 

by June 30, 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance will increase by $8,500 in Gas Tax; $51,000 in 

Underground Utility; $8,500 in Sanitary Sewer, $8,500 in Stormwater; and$8,500 in the Water Fund. 

Transfers will increase with capital program expenditures increasing by $85,000 in the Transportation CIP

Fund.

Fund 3 of 6 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Underground Utility Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 425,300$       51,000$        476,300$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 48,948$         48,948$             

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 7,160$           7,160$               

Miscellaneous -$               -$                  

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 481,408$       51,000$        532,408$          

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$             -$                 

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 320,477$        51,000$        371,477$           

Contingency 50,000$         50,000$             

Total Budget 370,477$       51,000$        421,477$          

Reserve For Future Expenditure 110,931$        -$             110,931$           

Total Requirements 481,408$       51,000$        532,408$          



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW03.  Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward totaling $85,000 is required to pay for staff time and utility work that was not completed 

by June 30, 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance will increase by $8,500 in Gas Tax; $51,000 in 

Underground Utility; $8,500 in Sanitary Sewer, $8,500 in Stormwater; and$8,500 in the Water Fund. 

Transfers will increase with capital program expenditures increasing by $85,000 in the Transportation CIP

Fund.

Fund 4 of 6 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Sanitary Sewer Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 3,586,876$    8,500$         3,595,376$       

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 16,549$         16,549$             

Intergovernmental 221,770$        221,770$           

Charges for Services 1,590,932$     1,590,932$        

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 100,333$        100,333$           

Miscellaneous 143,091$        143,091$           

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 5,659,551$    8,500$         5,668,051$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 1,960,087$     1,960,087$        

Program Expenditures Total 1,960,087$    -$             1,960,087$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress 984,693$        984,693$           

Transfers to Other Funds 76,934$         8,500$          85,434$             

Contingency 400,000$        400,000$           

Total Budget 3,421,714$    8,500$         3,430,214$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 2,237,837$    -$             2,237,837$       

Total Requirements 5,659,551$    8,500$         5,668,051$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW03.  Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward totaling $85,000 is required to pay for staff time and utility work that was not completed 

by June 30, 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance will increase by $8,500 in Gas Tax; $51,000 in 

Underground Utility; $8,500 in Sanitary Sewer, $8,500 in Stormwater; and$8,500 in the Water Fund. 

Transfers will increase with capital program expenditures increasing by $85,000 in the Transportation CIP

Fund.

Fund 5 of 6 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Water Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 20,245,015$  8,500$         20,253,515$     

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 31,335$         31,335$             

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services 18,827,178$   18,827,178$      

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 30,644$         30,644$             

Miscellaneous 10,933$         10,933$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 58,751$         58,751$             

Total Resources 39,203,856$  8,500$         39,212,356$     

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 8,682,558$     8,682,558$        

Program Expenditures Total 8,682,558$    -$             8,682,558$       

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 24,882,226$   8,500$          24,890,726$      

Contingency 500,000$        500,000$           

Total Budget 34,064,784$  8,500$         34,073,284$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,139,072$    -$             5,139,072$       

Total Requirements 39,203,856$  8,500$         39,212,356$     



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW03.  Walnut Street (116th/Tiedeman) - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward totaling $85,000 is required to pay for staff time and utility work that was not completed 

by June 30, 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance will increase by $8,500 in Gas Tax; $51,000 in 

Underground Utility; $8,500 in Sanitary Sewer, $8,500 in Stormwater; and$8,500 in the Water Fund. 

Transfers will increase with capital program expenditures increasing by $85,000 in the Transportation CIP

Fund.

Fund 6 of 6 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 379,619$       379,619$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings -$               -$                  

Miscellaneous -$               -$                  

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 1,083,448$     85,000$        1,168,448$        

Total Resources 1,463,067$    85,000$       1,548,067$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$             -$                 

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress 1,073,448$     85,000$        1,158,448$        

Transfers to Other Funds 57,410$         57,410$             

Contingency -$               -$                  

Total Budget 1,130,858$    85,000$       1,215,858$        

Reserve For Future Expenditure 332,209$       -$             332,209$          

Total Requirements 1,463,067$    85,000$       1,548,067$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW04. 95th Ave./N. Dakota Sidewalk - Capital Improvement Program

A carryforward is requested in the amount of $187,000 to fill sidewalk gaps and provide curbing and

drainage improvements. This action will result in an increase in beginning fund balance in Gas Tax by

$187,000 with an increase in transfers. In turn, capital program expenditures within the Transportation

CIP fund will increase by the same amount.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Gas Tax Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 704,872$       187,000$      891,872$          

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits 5,872$           5,872$              

Intergovernmental 3,070,117$     3,070,117$        

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings 55,732$         55,732$            

Miscellaneous 62,818$         62,818$            

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds 100,000$       100,000$          

Total Resources 3,999,411$     187,000$      4,186,411$        

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works 2,166,046$     2,166,046$        

Program Expenditures Total 2,166,046$    -$            2,166,046$       

Debt Service 592,425$       592,425$          

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress -$              -$                 

Transfers to Other Funds 229,389$       187,000$      416,389$          

Contingency 200,000$       200,000$          

Total Budget 3,187,860$    187,000$      3,374,860$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 811,551$        -$            811,551$           

Total Requirements 3,999,411$     187,000$      4,186,411$        

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 379,619$       379,619$          

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits -$              -$                 

Intergovernmental -$              -$                 

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings -$              -$                 

Miscellaneous -$              -$                 

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds 1,083,448$     187,000$      1,270,448$        

Total Resources 1,463,067$    187,000$      1,650,067$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works -$              -$                 

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$                 

Debt Service -$              -$                 

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress 1,073,448$     187,000$      1,260,448$        

Transfers to Other Funds 57,410$         57,410$            

Contingency -$              -$                 

Total Budget 1,130,858$     187,000$      1,317,858$        

Reserve For Future Expenditure 332,209$       -$            332,209$          

Total Requirements 1,463,067$    187,000$      1,650,067$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW05. North Dakota Bridge Repair - Capital Improvement Program

A request in the amount of $70,000 is needed to pay for the emergency repair work on the North 

Dakota Bridge, along with the construction of a new walkway.  

This action will increase beginning fund balance by $70,000 in Gas Tax; increase transfers; and 

increase capital improvement program expenses in the Transportation CIP Fund.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Gas Tax Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 704,872$       70,000$       774,872$          

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits 5,872$           5,872$              

Intergovernmental 3,070,117$     3,070,117$        

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings 55,732$         55,732$            

Miscellaneous 62,818$         62,818$            

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds 100,000$       100,000$          

Total Resources 3,999,411$     70,000$       4,069,411$        

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works 2,166,046$     2,166,046$        

Program Expenditures Total 2,166,046$    -$            2,166,046$       

Debt Service 592,425$       592,425$          

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress -$              -$                 

Transfers to Other Funds 229,389$       70,000$        299,389$          

Contingency 200,000$       200,000$          

Total Budget 3,187,860$    70,000$       3,257,860$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 811,551$        -$            811,551$           

Total Requirements 3,999,411$     70,000$       4,069,411$        

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 379,619$       379,619$          

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits -$              -$                 

Intergovernmental -$              -$                 

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings -$              -$                 

Miscellaneous -$              -$                 

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds 1,083,448$     70,000$        1,153,448$        

Total Resources 1,463,067$    70,000$       1,533,067$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works -$              -$                 

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$                 

Debt Service -$              -$                 

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress 1,073,448$     70,000$        1,143,448$        

Transfers to Other Funds 57,410$         57,410$            

Contingency -$              -$                 

Total Budget 1,130,858$     70,000$       1,200,858$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 332,209$       -$            332,209$          

Total Requirements 1,463,067$    70,000$       1,533,067$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW06.  Erosion Control - Intergovernmental Agreement with Clean Water Services

The City of Tigard has entered into an IGA with Clean Water Services to provide inspection services  

at an estimated cost of $80,000 to be funded with permit revenues. 

As a result, General Fund contingency will decrease by $80,000 with an equal increase in Public Works

program expenditures in Engineering's professional services account.

Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   10,709,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$         56,432$            

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   22,231,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     80,000$        4,198,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   80,000$       31,366,017$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     3,434,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     (80,000)$       1,040,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  -$             35,840,953$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   -$             41,795,903$      



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW07.  LQC - Tigard St. Trail

A carryforward in the amount of $35,000 is being requested to pay for completion of the Tigard Street

Trail. This action will increase beginning fund balance in General Fund by $35,000 with an equal increase

in transfers. Public Works program expenditures will increase by $35,000 in the Gas Tax Fund.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$  35,000$       10,744,593$      

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   14,330,765$      

Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     5,909,165$        

Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     1,352,420$        

Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     5,422,785$        

Charges for Services 3,038,015$     3,038,015$        

Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        873,006$           

Interest Earnings 103,722$        103,722$           

Miscellaneous 56,432$          56,432$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 41,795,903$  35,000$       41,830,903$      

Requirements

Community Development 4,037,179$     4,037,179$        

Community Services 22,231,014$   22,231,014$      

Policy and Administration 899,502$        899,502$           

Public Works 4,118,322$     4,118,322$        

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   -$             31,286,017$      

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     35,000$        3,469,936$        

Contingency 1,120,000$     1,120,000$        

Total Budget 35,840,953$  35,000$       35,875,953$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    -$             5,954,950$       

Total Requirements 41,795,903$  35,000$       41,830,903$      

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Gas Tax Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 704,872$       704,872$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 5,872$           5,872$               

Intergovernmental 3,070,117$     3,070,117$        

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 55,732$          55,732$             

Miscellaneous 62,818$          62,818$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 100,000$        35,000$        135,000$           

Total Resources 3,999,411$     35,000$       4,034,411$        

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works 2,166,046$     35,000$        2,201,046$        

Program Expenditures Total 2,166,046$    35,000$       2,201,046$       

Debt Service 592,425$        592,425$           

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 229,389$        229,389$           

Contingency 200,000$        200,000$           

Total Budget 3,187,860$    35,000$       3,222,860$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 811,551$        -$             811,551$           

Total Requirements 3,999,411$     35,000$       4,034,411$        



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW08. Hunziker Industrial Core - Capital Improvement Program

A request totaling $200,000 is required to conduct the initial design of the Wall St./Tech Center Drive

project. This design work will be used to apply for federal grant funding for construction of this project.

This action will show a decrease in contingency by $200,000 in the City Gas Tax Fund with an increase in

transfers. In turn, capital program expenditures within the Transportation CIP Fund will increase by

$200,000.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

City Gas Tax Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 126,479$       126,479$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental 612,802$        612,802$           

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 34,584$         34,584$             

Miscellaneous 32,052$         32,052$             

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 805,917$       -$             805,917$          

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$             -$                 

Debt Service 316,560$        316,560$           

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 3,208$           200,000$      203,208$           

Contingency 300,000$        (200,000)$     100,000$           

Total Budget 619,768$       -$             619,768$          

Reserve For Future Expenditure 186,149$       -$             186,149$           

Total Requirements 805,917$       -$             805,917$          

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 379,619$       379,619$          

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings -$               -$                  

Miscellaneous -$               -$                  

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 1,083,448$     200,000$      1,283,448$        

Total Resources 1,463,067$    200,000$     1,663,067$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$             -$                 

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress 1,073,448$     200,000$      1,273,448$        

Transfers to Other Funds 57,410$         57,410$             

Contingency -$               -$                  

Total Budget 1,130,858$    200,000$     1,330,858$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 332,209$       -$             332,209$          

Total Requirements 1,463,067$    200,000$     1,663,067$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW09. 72nd Ave./Dartmouth St. Intersection - Capital Improvement Program

This carryforward request in the amount of $10,000 is needed for legal fees associated 

with 4 Martin Properties not concluded in FY 2015. As a result, beginning fund balance

in the Transportation Development Fund will increase by $10,000. Transfers will increase and capital 

program expenditures will increase by $10,000 in the Transportation CIP Fund.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation Development Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 1,112,633$     10,000$       1,122,633$        

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits 700,000$       700,000$          

Intergovernmental -$              -$                 

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings 11,279$         11,279$            

Miscellaneous -$              -$                 

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds -$                 

Total Resources 1,823,912$     10,000$       1,833,912$        

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works -$              -$                 

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$                 

Debt Service -$              -$                 

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress 6,800$           6,800$              

Transfers to Other Funds 526,690$       10,000$        536,690$          

Contingency 250,000$       250,000$          

Total Budget 783,490$       10,000$       793,490$          

Reserve For Future Expenditure 1,040,422$    -$            1,040,422$       

Total Requirements 1,823,912$     10,000$       1,833,912$        

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 379,619$       379,619$          

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits -$              -$                 

Intergovernmental -$              -$                 

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings -$              -$                 

Miscellaneous -$              -$                 

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds 1,083,448$     10,000$        1,093,448$        

Total Resources 1,463,067$    10,000$       1,473,067$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works -$              -$                 

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$                 

Debt Service -$              -$                 

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress 1,073,448$     10,000$        1,083,448$        

Transfers to Other Funds 57,410$         57,410$            

Contingency -$              -$                 

Total Budget 1,130,858$     10,000$       1,140,858$        

Reserve For Future Expenditure 332,209$       -$            332,209$          

Total Requirements 1,463,067$    10,000$       1,473,067$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW10.  Downtown Land Acquisition - Capital Improvement Program

This request will carry forward $515,000 in Parks Bond CIP appropriation for the Saxony land 

acquisition that occurred on July 9th. This action will result in an increase in beginning fund 

balance of $515,000 in Parks Bond Fund with an increase in transfers. Total capital program expenditures 

will increase by $515,000 in the Parks Capital Fund.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Parks Bond Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 1,700,000$    515,000$      2,215,000$       

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits -$              -$                 

Intergovernmental -$              -$                 

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings 4,020$           4,020$              

Miscellaneous -$              -$                 

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds -$              -$                 

Total Resources 1,704,020$    515,000$      2,219,020$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works -$              -$                 

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$                 

Debt Service -$              -$                 

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress -$              -$                 

Transfers to Other Funds 1,382,013$     515,000$      1,897,013$        

Contingency -$              -$                 

Total Budget 1,382,013$    515,000$      1,897,013$        

Reserve For Future Expenditure 322,007$       -$            322,007$          

Total Requirements 1,704,020$    515,000$      2,219,020$       

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Parks Capital Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 298,740$       298,740$          

Property Taxes -$              -$                 

Franchise Fees -$              -$                 

Licenses & Permits -$              -$                 

Intergovernmental -$              -$                 

Charges for Services -$              -$                 

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$                 

Interest Earnings 3,015$           3,015$              

Miscellaneous -$              -$                 

Other Financing Sources -$              -$                 

Transfers In from Other Funds 3,151,561$     515,000$      3,666,561$        

Total Resources 3,453,316$    515,000$      3,968,316$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$                 

Community Services -$              -$                 

Policy and Administration -$              -$                 

Public Works -$              -$                 

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$                 

Debt Service -$              -$                 

Loans -$              -$                 

Work-In-Progress 3,151,561$     515,000$      3,666,561$        

Transfers to Other Funds 123,932$       123,932$           

Contingency -$              -$                 

Total Budget 3,275,493$    515,000$      3,790,493$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 177,823$       -$            177,823$          

Total Requirements 3,453,316$    515,000$      3,968,316$       



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW11 Lake Oswego Tigard Water Partnership - Capital Improvement Program

An additional appropropriation of $6,660,000 is required to pay for Tigard's share of the partnership.

due to a delay in timing of payment of expenditures from the prior fiscal year. The requested action

does not change the total cost of the project. As a result, the reserve for future expenditure will 

decrease by $3,260,000 in the Water CIP Fund. The Water SDC Fund  reserve for future expenditure will 

decrease by $3,400,000. Transfers will increase. Capital program expenditures will increase by $6,660,000 in

the Water CIP Fund.

Revised

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Water CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 17,223,215$   17,223,215$      

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits -$               -$                  

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 13,096$         13,096$             

Miscellaneous 5,318$           5,318$               

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds 18,840,921$   3,400,000$   22,240,921$      

Total Resources 36,082,550$  3,400,000$  39,482,550$     

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$             -$                 

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress 29,168,682$   6,660,000$   35,828,682$      

Transfers to Other Funds 231,256$        231,256$           

Contingency -$               -$                  

Total Budget 29,399,938$  6,660,000$  36,059,938$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 6,682,612$    (3,260,000)$ 3,422,612$       

Total Requirements 36,082,550$  3,400,000$  39,482,550$     



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1PW11 Lake Oswego Tigard Water Partnership - Capital Improvement Program

An additional appropropriation of $6,660,000 is required to pay for Tigard's share of the partnership.

due to a delay in timing of payment of expenditures from the prior fiscal year. The requested action

does not change the total cost of the project. As a result, the reserve for future expenditure will 

decrease by $3,260,000 in the Water CIP Fund. The Water SDC Fund  reserve for future expenditure will 

decrease by $3,400,000. Transfers will increase. Capital program expenditures will increase by $6,660,000 in

the Water CIP Fund.

Revised

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Water SDC Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 4,571,596$    4,571,596$       

Property Taxes -$               -$                  

Franchise Fees -$               -$                  

Licenses & Permits 873,715$        873,715$           

Intergovernmental -$               -$                  

Charges for Services -$               -$                  

Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                  

Interest Earnings 233$              233$                 

Miscellaneous -$               -$                  

Other Financing Sources -$               -$                  

Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                  

Total Resources 5,445,544$    -$             5,445,544$       

Requirements

Community Development -$               -$                  

Community Services -$               -$                  

Policy and Administration -$               -$                  

Public Works -$               -$                  

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$             -$                 

Debt Service -$               -$                  

Loans -$               -$                  

Work-In-Progress -$               -$                  

Transfers to Other Funds 299,130$        3,400,000$   3,699,130$        

Contingency 100,000$        100,000$           

Total Budget 399,130$       3,400,000$  3,799,130$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,046,414$    (3,400,000)$ 1,646,414$        

Total Requirements 5,445,544$    -$             5,445,544$       

























FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Affected City Funds
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 65,153,602$   1,251,750$    66,405,352$     

Property Taxes 14,330,765$    -$               14,330,765$      
Franchise Fees 5,909,165$      -$               5,909,165$        
Special Assessments -$                -$               -$                  
Licenses & Permits 3,062,711$      -$               3,062,711$        
Intergovernmental 9,327,474$      20,000$         9,347,474$        
Charges for Services 34,821,579$    1,893$           34,823,472$      
Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        -$               873,006$          
Interest Earnings 394,347$        -$               394,347$          
Miscellaneous 363,330$        -$               363,330$          
Other Financing Sources -$                -$               -$                  
Transfers In from Other Funds 23,953,152$    4,594,750$     28,547,902$      

Total Resources 158,189,131$  5,868,393$    164,057,524$   

Requirements
Community Development 4,037,179$      6,000$           4,043,179$        
Community Services 22,231,014$    63,025$         22,294,039$      
Policy & Administration 10,343,001$    295,000$        10,638,001$      
Public Works 18,665,139$    172,750$        18,837,889$      

Program Expenditures Total 55,276,333$   536,775$       55,813,108$     

Debt Service 908,985$        -$               908,985$          
Loans -$                -$               -$                  
Work-In-Progress 35,650,280$    7,789,000$     43,439,280$      
Transfers to Other Funds 32,000,957$    4,594,750$     36,595,707$      
Contingency 3,345,000$      (405,812)$      2,939,188$        

Total Budget 127,181,555$  12,514,713$   139,696,268$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 31,007,576$   (6,646,320)$  24,361,256$     

Total Requirements 158,189,131$  5,868,393$    164,057,524$   

1 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items:  Q1CD01, Q1CS01, Q1FS02, Q1PD01-03, Q1PW02, Q1PW06-07

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

General Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 10,709,593$   70,000$         10,779,593$    

Property Taxes 14,330,765$   -$               14,330,765$    
Franchise Fees 5,909,165$     -$               5,909,165$      
Special Assessments -$               -$               -$                
Licenses & Permits 1,352,420$     -$               1,352,420$      
Intergovernmental 5,422,785$     20,000$          5,442,785$      
Charges for Services 3,038,015$     1,893$            3,039,908$      
Fines & Forfeitures 873,006$        -$               873,006$         
Interest Earnings 103,722$        -$               103,722$         
Miscellaneous 56,432$          -$               56,432$           
Other Financing Sources -$               -$               -$                
Transfers In from Other Funds -$               57,750$          57,750$           

Total Resources 41,795,903$   149,643$       41,945,546$    

Requirements
Community Development 4,037,179$     6,000$            4,043,179$      
Community Services 22,231,014$   63,025$          22,294,039$    
Policy & Administration 899,502$        (6,840)$          892,662$         
Public Works 4,118,322$     137,750$        4,256,072$      

Program Expenditures Total 31,286,017$   199,935$       31,485,952$    

Debt Service -$               -$               -$                
Loans -$               -$               -$                
Work-In-Progress -$               -$               -$                
Transfers to Other Funds 3,434,936$     70,000$          3,504,936$      
Contingency 1,120,000$     (127,132)$       992,868$         

Total Budget 35,840,953$  142,803$       35,983,756$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,954,950$    6,840$           5,961,790$     

Total Requirements 41,795,903$   149,643$       41,945,546$    

2 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items:  Q1CS01-02

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Fleet/Property Management

ResourcesBeginning Fund Balance 113,138$      -$            113,138$     

Property Taxes -$             -$             -$            
Franchise Fees -$             -$             -$            
Special Assessments -$             -$             -$            
Licenses & Permits -$             -$             -$            
Intergovernmental -$             -$             -$            
Charges for Services 1,783,024$   -$             1,783,024$  
Fines & Forfeitures -$             -$             -$            
Interest Earnings -$             -$             -$            
Miscellaneous 29,686$        -$             29,686$       
Other Financing Sources -$             -$             -$            
Transfers In from Other Funds 19,647$        -$             19,647$       

Total Resources 1,945,495$  -$            1,945,495$  

Requirements
Community Development -$             -$             -$            
Community Services -$             -$             -$            
Policy and Administration 1,852,362$   43,680$        1,896,042$  
Public Works -$             -$             -$            

Program Expenditures Total 1,852,362$  43,680$       1,896,042$  

Debt Service -$             -$             -$            
Loans -$             -$             -$            
Work-In-Progress -$             -$             -$            
Transfers to Other Funds -$             -$             -$            
Contingency 75,000$        (43,680)$       31,320$       

Total Budget 1,927,362$  -$            1,927,362$  

Reserve For Future Expenditure 18,133$        -$            18,133$       

Total Requirements 1,945,495$  -$            1,945,495$  

3 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items:  Q1CS01, Q1FS01-02

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Central Services Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 182,372$     205,000$     387,372$      

Property Taxes -$             -$             -$              
Franchise Fees -$             -$             -$              
Special Assessments -$             -$             -$              
Licenses & Permits 33,872$        -$             33,872$         
Intergovernmental -$             -$             -$              
Charges for Services 6,986,481$   -$             6,986,481$    
Fines & Forfeitures -$             -$             -$              
Interest Earnings 22,593$        -$             22,593$         
Miscellaneous 19,900$        -$             19,900$         
Other Financing Sources -$             -$             -$              
Transfers In from Other Funds 698,824$      35,000$        733,824$       

Total Resources 7,944,042$  240,000$     8,184,042$    

Requirements
Community Development -$             -$             -$              
Community Services -$             -$             -$              
Policy and Administration 7,591,137$   258,160$      7,849,297$    
Public Works -$             -$             -$              

Program Expenditures Total 7,591,137$   258,160$     7,849,297$   

Debt Service -$             -$             -$              
Loans -$             -$             -$              
Work-In-Progress -$             -$             -$              
Transfers to Other Funds -$             -$             -$              
Contingency 150,000$      (25,000)$       125,000$       

Total Budget 7,741,137$   233,160$     7,974,297$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 202,905$     6,840$         209,745$      

Total Requirements 7,944,042$  240,000$     8,184,042$    

4 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW02-04, Q1PW05, Q1PW07

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Gas Tax Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 704,872$      323,250$       1,028,122$   

Property Taxes -$              -$               -$              
Franchise Fees -$              -$               -$              
Special Assessments -$              -$               -$              
Licenses & Permits 5,872$          -$               5,872$          
Intergovernmental 3,070,117$    -$               3,070,117$    
Charges for Services -$              -$               -$              
Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$               -$              
Interest Earnings 55,732$        -$               55,732$        
Miscellaneous 62,818$        -$               62,818$        
Other Financing Sources -$              -$               -$              
Transfers In from Other Funds 100,000$      35,000$          135,000$      

Total Resources 3,999,411$   358,250$       4,357,661$   

Requirements
Community Development -$              -$               -$              
Community Services -$              -$               -$              
Policy & Administration -$              -$               -$              
Public Works 2,166,046$    35,000$          2,201,046$    

Program Expenditures Total 2,166,046$   35,000$         2,201,046$   

Debt Service 592,425$      -$               592,425$      
Loans -$              -$               -$              
Work-In-Progress -$              -$               -$              
Transfers to Other Funds 229,389$      323,250$        552,639$      
Contingency 200,000$      -$               200,000$      

Total Budget 3,187,860$   358,250$       3,546,110$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 811,551$       -$              811,551$       

Total Requirements 3,999,411$   358,250$       4,357,661$   

5 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items:  Q1PW01, Q1PW03

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Stormwater Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 3,774,154$     60,500$         3,834,654$   

Property Taxes -$                -$               -$              
Franchise Fees -$                -$               -$              
Special Assessments -$                -$               -$              
Licenses & Permits -$                -$               -$              
Intergovernmental -$                -$               -$              
Charges for Services 2,595,949$      -$               2,595,949$    
Fines & Forfeitures -$                -$               -$              
Interest Earnings 7,936$            -$               7,936$           
Miscellaneous 3,100$            -$               3,100$           
Other Financing Sources -$                -$               -$              
Transfers In from Other Funds -$                -$               -$              

Total Resources 6,381,139$     60,500$         6,441,639$   

Requirements
Community Development -$                -$               -$              
Community Services -$                -$               -$              
Policy and Administration -$                -$               -$              
Public Works 1,738,126$      -$               1,738,126$    

Program Expenditures Total 1,738,126$     -$               1,738,126$    

Debt Service -$                -$               -$              
Loans -$                -$               -$              
Work-In-Progress 1,265,096$      62,000$          1,327,096$    
Transfers to Other Funds 433,356$        8,500$            441,856$       
Contingency 200,000$        (10,000)$         190,000$       

Total Budget 3,636,578$     60,500$         3,697,078$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 2,744,561$     -$               2,744,561$   

Total Requirements 6,381,139$     60,500$         6,441,639$   

6 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items:  Q1PW03

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Underground Utility Fund

ResourcesBeginning Fund Balance 425,300$    51,000$       476,300$   

Property Taxes -$            -$             -$           
Franchise Fees -$            -$             -$           
Special Assessments -$            -$             -$           
Licenses & Permits 48,948$       -$             48,948$     
Intergovernmental -$            -$             -$           
Charges for Services -$            -$             -$           
Fines & Forfeitures -$            -$             -$           
Interest Earnings 7,160$        -$             7,160$       
Miscellaneous -$            -$             -$           
Other Financing Sources -$            -$             -$           
Transfers In from Other Funds -$            -$             -$           

Total Resources 481,408$    51,000$       532,408$   

Requirements
Community Development -$            -$             -$           
Community Services -$            -$             -$           
Policy and Administration -$            -$             -$           
Public Works -$            -$             -$           

Program Expenditures Total -$           -$            -$          

Debt Service -$            -$            -$           
Loans -$            -$             -$           
Work-In-Progress -$            -$             -$           
Transfers to Other Funds 320,477$     51,000$        371,477$   
Contingency 50,000$       -$             50,000$     

Total Budget 370,477$    51,000$       421,477$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 110,931$     -$            110,931$    

Total Requirements 481,408$    51,000$       532,408$   

7 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW03

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Sanitary Sewer Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 3,586,876$    8,500$            3,595,376$   

Property Taxes -$               -$                -$              
Franchise Fees -$               -$                -$              
Special Assessments -$               -$                -$              
Licenses & Permits 16,549$          -$                16,549$         
Intergovernmental 221,770$        -$                221,770$       
Charges for Services 1,590,932$     -$                1,590,932$    
Fines & Forfeitures -$               -$                -$              
Interest Earnings 100,333$        -$                100,333$       
Miscellaneous 143,091$        -$                143,091$       
Other Financing Sources -$               -$                -$              
Transfers In from Other Funds -$               -$                -$              

Total Resources 5,659,551$    8,500$            5,668,051$   

Requirements
Community Development -$               -$                -$              
Community Services -$               -$                -$              
Policy and Administration -$               -$                -$              
Public Works 1,960,087$     -$                1,960,087$    

Program Expenditures Total 1,960,087$    -$               1,960,087$   

Debt Service -$               -$                -$              
Loans -$               -$                -$              
Work-In-Progress 984,693$        -$                984,693$       
Transfers to Other Funds 76,934$          8,500$             85,434$         
Contingency 400,000$        -$                400,000$       

Total Budget 3,421,714$     8,500$            3,430,214$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 2,237,837$    -$               2,237,837$   

Total Requirements 5,659,551$    8,500$            5,668,051$   

8 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW03

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Water Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 20,245,015$    8,500$           20,253,515$    

Property Taxes -$                 -$               -$                
Franchise Fees -$                 -$               -$                
Special Assessments -$                 -$               -$                
Licenses & Permits 31,335$           -$               31,335$           
Intergovernmental -$                 -$               -$                
Charges for Services 18,827,178$     -$               18,827,178$    
Fines & Forfeitures -$                 -$               -$                
Interest Earnings 30,644$           -$               30,644$           
Miscellaneous 10,933$           -$               10,933$           
Other Financing Sources -$                 -$               -$                
Transfers In from Other Funds 58,751$           -$               58,751$           

Total Resources 39,203,856$    8,500$           39,212,356$    

Requirements
Community Development -$                 -$               -$                
Community Services -$                 -$               -$                
Policy and Administration -$                 -$               -$                
Public Works 8,682,558$       -$               8,682,558$      

Program Expenditures Total 8,682,558$      -$              8,682,558$     

Debt Service -$                 -$               -$                
Loans -$                 -$               -$                
Work-In-Progress -$                 -$               -$                
Transfers to Other Funds 24,882,226$     8,500$            24,890,726$    
Contingency 500,000$         -$               500,000$         

Total Budget 34,064,784$    8,500$           34,073,284$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,139,072$      -$              5,139,072$     

Total Requirements 39,203,856$    8,500$           39,212,356$    

9 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW03-05, Q1PW08-09

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation CIP Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 379,619$       -$               379,619$      

Property Taxes -$              -$               -$             
Franchise Fees -$              -$               -$             
Special Assessments -$              -$               -$             
Licenses & Permits -$              -$               -$             
Intergovernmental -$              -$               -$             
Charges for Services -$              -$               -$             
Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$               -$             
Interest Earnings -$              -$               -$             
Miscellaneous -$              -$               -$             
Other Financing Sources -$              -$               -$             
Transfers In from Other Funds 1,083,448$    552,000$        1,635,448$   

Total Resources 1,463,067$    552,000$       2,015,067$   

Requirements
Community Development -$              -$               -$             
Community Services -$              -$               -$             
Policy and Administration -$              -$               -$             
Public Works -$              -$               -$             

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$               -$             

Debt Service -$              -$               -$             
Loans -$              -$               -$             
Work-In-Progress 1,073,448$    552,000$        1,625,448$   
Transfers to Other Funds 57,410$         -$               57,410$        
Contingency -$              -$               -$             

Total Budget 1,130,858$    552,000$       1,682,858$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 332,209$      -$               332,209$     

Total Requirements 1,463,067$    552,000$       2,015,067$   

10 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW10

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Parks Capital Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 298,740$      -$               298,740$     

Property Taxes -$              -$               -$             
Franchise Fees -$              -$               -$             
Special Assessments -$              -$               -$             
Licenses & Permits -$              -$               -$             
Intergovernmental -$              -$               -$             
Charges for Services -$              -$               -$             
Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$               -$             
Interest Earnings 3,015$           -$               3,015$          
Miscellaneous -$              -$               -$             
Other Financing Sources -$              -$               -$             
Transfers In from Other Funds 3,151,561$    515,000$        3,666,561$   

Total Resources 3,453,316$    515,000$        3,968,316$   

Requirements
Community Development -$              -$               -$             
Community Services -$              -$               -$             
Policy and Administration -$              -$               -$             
Public Works -$              -$               -$             

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$               -$             

Debt Service -$              -$               -$             
Loans -$              -$               -$             
Work-In-Progress 3,151,561$    515,000$        3,666,561$   
Transfers to Other Funds 123,932$       -$               123,932$      
Contingency -$              -$               -$             

Total Budget 3,275,493$   515,000$        3,790,493$  

Reserve For Future Expenditure 177,823$       -$               177,823$      

Total Requirements 3,453,316$    515,000$        3,968,316$   

11 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW10

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Parks Bond Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 1,700,000$    515,000$        2,215,000$   

Property Taxes -$              -$               -$             
Franchise Fees -$              -$               -$             
Special Assessments -$              -$               -$             
Licenses & Permits -$              -$               -$             
Intergovernmental -$              -$               -$             
Charges for Services -$              -$               -$             
Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$               -$             
Interest Earnings 4,020$           -$               4,020$          
Miscellaneous -$              -$               -$             
Other Financing Sources -$              -$               -$             
Transfers In from Other Funds -$              -$               -$             

Total Resources 1,704,020$    515,000$        2,219,020$   

Requirements
Community Development -$              -$               -$             
Community Services -$              -$               -$             
Policy and Administration -$              -$               -$             
Public Works -$              -$               -$             

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$               -$             

Debt Service -$              -$               -$             
Loans -$              -$               -$             
Work-In-Progress -$              -$               -$             
Transfers to Other Funds 1,382,013$    515,000$        1,897,013$   
Contingency -$              -$               -$             

Total Budget 1,382,013$    515,000$        1,897,013$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 322,007$      -$               322,007$     

Total Requirements 1,704,020$    515,000$        2,219,020$   

12 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW08

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

City Gas Tax Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 126,479$       -$               126,479$      

Property Taxes -$              -$               -$             
Franchise Fees -$              -$               -$             
Special Assessments -$              -$               -$             
Licenses & Permits -$              -$               -$             
Intergovernmental 612,802$       -$               612,802$      
Charges for Services -$              -$               -$             
Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$               -$             
Interest Earnings 34,584$         -$               34,584$        
Miscellaneous 32,052$         -$               32,052$        
Other Financing Sources -$              -$               -$             
Transfers In from Other Funds -$              -$               -$             

Total Resources 805,917$       -$               805,917$      

Requirements
Community Development -$              -$               -$             
Community Services -$              -$               -$             
Policy and Administration -$              -$               -$             
Public Works -$              -$               -$             

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$               -$             

Debt Service 316,560$       -$               316,560$      
Loans -$              -$               -$             
Work-In-Progress -$              -$               -$             
Transfers to Other Funds 3,208$           200,000$        203,208$      
Contingency 300,000$       (200,000)$       100,000$      

Total Budget 619,768$       -$               619,768$      

Reserve For Future Expenditure 186,149$       -$               186,149$      

Total Requirements 805,917$       -$               805,917$      

13 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW09

Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Transportation Development Tax Fund
Resources

Beginning Fund Balance 1,112,633$    10,000$         1,122,633$   

Property Taxes -$              -$               -$             
Franchise Fees -$              -$               -$             
Special Assessments -$              -$               -$             
Licenses & Permits 700,000$       -$               700,000$      
Intergovernmental -$              -$               -$             
Charges for Services -$              -$               -$             
Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$               -$             
Interest Earnings 11,279$         -$               11,279$        
Miscellaneous -$              -$               -$             
Other Financing Sources -$              -$               -$             
Transfers In from Other Funds -$              -$               -$             

Total Resources 1,823,912$    10,000$         1,833,912$   

Requirements
Community Development -$              -$               -$             
Community Services -$              -$               -$             
Policy and Administration -$              -$               -$             
Public Works -$              -$               -$             

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$               -$             

Debt Service -$              -$               -$             
Loans -$              -$               -$             
Work-In-Progress 6,800$           -$               6,800$          
Transfers to Other Funds 526,690$       10,000$          536,690$      
Contingency 250,000$       -$               250,000$      

Total Budget 783,490$      10,000$         793,490$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 1,040,422$    -$               1,040,422$   

Total Requirements 1,823,912$    10,000$         1,833,912$   

14 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW11
Revised
Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Water CIP Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 17,223,215$    -$              17,223,215$    

Property Taxes -$                 -$               -$                
Franchise Fees -$                 -$               -$                
Special Assessments -$                 -$               -$                
Licenses & Permits -$                 -$               -$                
Intergovernmental -$                 -$               -$                
Charges for Services -$                 -$               -$                
Fines & Forfeitures -$                 -$               -$                
Interest Earnings 13,096$           -$               13,096$           
Miscellaneous 5,318$             -$               5,318$             
Other Financing Sources -$                 -$               -$                
Transfers In from Other Funds 18,840,921$     3,400,000$     22,240,921$    

Total Resources 36,082,550$    3,400,000$    39,482,550$   

Requirements
Community Development -$                 -$               -$                
Community Services -$                 -$               -$                
Policy and Administration -$                 -$               -$                
Public Works -$                 -$               -$                

Program Expenditures Total -$                -$              -$               

Debt Service -$                 -$               -$                
Loans -$                 -$               -$                
Work-In-Progress 29,168,682$     6,660,000$     35,828,682$    
Transfers to Other Funds 231,256$         -$               231,256$         
Contingency -$                 -$               -$                

Total Budget 29,399,938$    6,660,000$    36,059,938$   

Reserve For Future Expenditure 6,682,612$      (3,260,000)$   3,422,612$     

Total Requirements 36,082,550$    3,400,000$    39,482,550$   

15 of 16



FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental
Summary of Budget Changes

Exhibit-C

Reference Budget Items: Q1PW11
Revised
Adopted Revised
Budget Amendment Budget

Water SDC Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 4,571,596$      -$              4,571,596$     

Property Taxes -$                 -$               -$                
Franchise Fees -$                 -$               -$                
Special Assessments -$                 -$               -$                
Licenses & Permits 873,715$         -$               873,715$         
Intergovernmental -$                 -$               -$                
Charges for Services -$                 -$               -$                
Fines & Forfeitures -$                 -$               -$                
Interest Earnings 233$                -$               233$               
Miscellaneous -$                 -$               -$                
Other Financing Sources -$                 -$               -$                
Transfers In from Other Funds -$                 -$               -$                

Total Resources 5,445,544$      -$              5,445,544$     

Requirements
Community Development -$                 -$               -$                
Community Services -$                 -$               -$                
Policy and Administration -$                 -$               -$                
Public Works -$                 -$               -$                

Program Expenditures Total -$                -$              -$               

Debt Service -$                 -$               -$                
Loans -$                 -$               -$                
Work-In-Progress -$                 -$               -$                
Transfers to Other Funds 299,130$         3,400,000$     3,699,130$      
Contingency 100,000$         -$               100,000$         

Total Budget 399,130$         3,400,000$    3,799,130$     

Reserve For Future Expenditure 5,046,414$      (3,400,000)$   1,646,414$      

Total Requirements 5,445,544$      -$              5,445,544$     

16 of 16



   

AIS-2344       8.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 5 Minutes  

Agenda Title: FY 2016 City Center Development Agency Budget
Supplemental

Prepared For: Toby LaFrance 

Submitted By: Carissa Collins, Finance and Information Services

Item Type: Motion Requested
Resolution
Public Hearing -
Informational

Meeting Type: City Center
Development
Agency

Public Hearing 
Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: 

Yes 
 

Public Hearing Publication
Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

A first quarter supplemental amendment to the FY 2016 Adopted Budget for the City Center
Development Agency (CCDA) is required. The purpose of the supplemental is to account for
revenues and expenses that were unknown at the time of budget adoption.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve the FY 2016 First Quarter Supplemental Budget Amendment for the CCDA.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

A carry forward in the amount of $15,000 is being requested to pay the remaining contract
and internal expenses associated with the dog park and the demolition of the Zuber House.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Do not approve the supplemental budget amendment.

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

Revitalization of downtown.

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

NA



Fiscal Impact

Cost: $15,000

Budgeted (yes or no): No

Where Budgeted (department/program): CCDA

Additional Fiscal Notes:

A carry forward in the amount of $15,000 is needed to pay the remaining contractual
agreement as well as internal expenses related to the dog park and demo of the Zuber House.

Attachments

Resolution

Exhibit A



CCDA Resolution No. 15-____
Page 1

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON
CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

RESOLUTION NO. 15-____

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AMENDMENT 
TO THE FY 2016 CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BUDGET

WHEREAS, the city acknowledges those items that were unknown at the time the FY 2016 Budget 
was adopted; and

WHEREAS, the CCDA recognizes a total of $15,000 in additional requirements that are offset by 
additional resources of equal amount.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Tigard City Center Development Agency that:

SECTION 1: The FY 2015-16 Budget is hereby amended as detailed in Exhibit A.

SECTION 2: This resolution is effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED: This ________ day of ______________________, 2015.

Chair – City of Tigard
City Center Development Agency

ATTEST:

   
Recorder – City of Tigard City Center Development Agency



FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental Exhibit A

Q1CCDA01.  Ash Avenue Dog Park - Capital Improvement Program

This request will carry forward $15,000 to FY 2016 to pay remaining contract and internal expenses 

associated with the relocation of the Ash Avenue Dog Park and demolition of the Zuber House.

As result, beginning fund balance in Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund will increase by 

$15,000 with an increase in transfers. Capital program expenditures within the Transportation CIP

Fund will increase by $15,000.

Fund 1 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 170,697$       15,000$       185,697$       

Property Taxes 397,792$       397,792$       

Franchise Fees -$              -$              

Licenses & Permits -$              -$              

Intergovernmental -$              -$              

Charges for Services -$              -$              

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$              

Interest Earnings 1,000$           1,000$           

Miscellaneous -$              -$              

Other Financing Sources -$              -$              

Transfers In from Other Funds -$              -$              

Total Resources 569,489$       15,000$       584,489$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$              

Community Services -$              -$              

Policy and Administration -$              -$              

Public Works -$              -$              

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$              

Debt Service 219,198$       219,198$       

Loans -$              -$              

Work-In-Progress -$              -$              

Transfers to Other Funds 175,300$       15,000$        190,300$       

Contingency -$              -$              

Total Budget 394,498$       15,000$       409,498$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure 174,991$       -$            174,991$       

Total Requirements 569,489$       15,000$       584,489$       

Fund 2 of 2 Adopted Revised

Budget Amendment Budget

Urban Renewal Capital Improvement Fund

Resources Beginning Fund Balance 445,700$       445,700$       

Property Taxes -$              -$              

Franchise Fees -$              -$              

Licenses & Permits -$              -$              

Intergovernmental -$              -$              

Charges for Services 84,000$         84,000$         

Fines & Forfeitures -$              -$              

Interest Earnings -$              -$              

Miscellaneous -$              -$              

Other Financing Sources -$              -$              

Transfers In from Other Funds 175,300$       15,000$        190,300$       

Total Resources 705,000$       15,000$       720,000$       

Requirements

Community Development -$              -$              

Community Services -$              -$              

Policy and Administration -$              -$              

Public Works -$              -$              

Program Expenditures Total -$              -$            -$              

Debt Service -$              -$              

Loans -$              -$              

Work-In-Progress 705,000$       15,000$        720,000$       

Transfers to Other Funds -$              -$              

Contingency -$              -$              

Total Budget 705,000$       15,000$       720,000$       

Reserve For Future Expenditure -$              -$            -$              

Total Requirements 705,000$       15,000$       720,000$       



   

AIS-2329       9.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Consideration of Taser purchase contract

Prepared For: Alan Orr Submitted By: Lisa Shaw,
Police

Item Type: Motion Requested Meeting Type: Council
Business
Meeting -
Main

Public Hearing 
Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: 

No 
 

Public Hearing Publication
Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

The Police Department plans to replace 60 outdated Taser Conducted Electrical
Weapons (CEWs) with a newer model.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to sign the Taser Assurance Program
contract for the purchase of 60 new Taser CEWs and their future replacement CEWs.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The Tigard Police Department plans to replace 60 existing X-26 CEWs with the newer
model, X-2. Although our authorized sworn position count is 68.0 FTE, not all sworn
personnel are mandated to carry CEWs. The Patrol Division will be issued 50 CEWs and
Services will be issued 10.

The Department has used Taser CEW products for 12 years, since the inception of issuing
CEWs to Tigard officers in 2003. A recent scan of the CEW market revealed that two other
companies who had previously offered similar products have since gone out of business;
the remaining vendor with a CEW product does not meet our technical needs.

Taser has phased out its production of the X-26 model currently used. We have started to
experience an increase in equipment breakage due to the end of the product’s useful life.
Support from Taser on the X-26 model has been reduced as it focuses on the newer models.
All Taser support for the X-26 product line will cease by 2019. Based on our department’s



review of Taser’s new offerings we have determined that the X-2 is the best CEW for our
training and tactical needs.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

If the contract is not approved, the department's CEWs will continue to break and eventually
Tigard officers will no longer carry this less-lethal weapon.

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

This purchase supports Tigard Police Department's goal to "Enhance the safety and security
of Tigard's residents, visitors and businesses".

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

Council will have received a memo regarding this information in the September 21st Council
newsletter.

Fiscal Impact

Cost: $133,160.30

Budgeted (yes or no): yes

Where Budgeted (department/program): Police

Additional Fiscal Notes:

Based on the quoted price within the Taser Assurance Plan, Tigard could acquire the
equipment this year for an up-front cost of $82,484.15 and an annual payment over the next
four years of $12,669. The total contract cost would be $133,160.30.
 

The initial cost would be split evenly between the Police Department’s Forfeiture Fund, and
a $41,242 request from Contingency during the Q1 Supplemental Budget process. Current
appropriation within the Forfeiture Fund is $70,000. The ongoing program costs of $12,669
will be budgeted for as a line item within the Police Department's operating budget starting
in FY 2016-17.

Attachments

Council Memo and Taser Quote

Taser Contract







Page 1 of 3

 
 
TASER International
Protect Life. Protect Truth.

 
17800 N 85th St.
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255
United States
Phone: (800) 978-2737
Fax:
 
David Frisendahl
(503) 718-2567
(503) 684-5654
david.frisendahl@tigard-or.gov

 

 
Quotation

Quote:  Q-30639-2
 Date: 8/10/2015 1:38 PM

 Quote Expiration: 10/30/2015
 Contract Start Date*: 8/10/2015

 Contract Term: 5 years

Bill To:
Tigard Police Dept. - OR
13125 SW Hall Boulevard
Tigard, OR 97223
US

Ship To:
David Frisendahl
Tigard Police Dept. - OR
13125 SW Hall Boulevard
Tigard, OR 97223
US

 
SALESPERSON PHONE EMAIL DELIVERY METHOD PAYMENT METHOD

Tom Recker (480) 463-2174 trecker@taser.com Fedex - Ground Net 30

 
*Note this will vary based on the shipment date of the product.

Due Net 30 + shipping at bottom

QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL BEFORE
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT ($) NET TOTAL

60 22003 HANDLE, YELLOW, CLASS III, X2 USD
1,029.95

USD 61,797.00 USD 0.00 USD 61,797.00

2 22003 HANDLE, YELLOW, CLASS III, X2 USD
1,029.95

USD 2,059.90 USD 2,059.90 USD 0.00

48 22501 HOLSTER, BLACKHAWK, RIGHT, X2,
44HT01BK-R-B

USD 65.85 USD 3,160.80 USD 0.00 USD 3,160.80

12 22504 HOLSTER, BLACKHAWK, LEFT, X2,
44HT01BK-L-B

USD 65.85 USD 790.20 USD 0.00 USD 790.20

150 22151 CARTRIDGE, PERFORMANCE, SMART,
25'

USD 31.50 USD 4,725.00 USD 0.00 USD 4,725.00

20 22155 CARTRIDGE, PERFORMANCE, SMART,
INERT SIM, 25'

USD 43.00 USD 860.00 USD 0.00 USD 860.00

200 22157 CARTRIDGE, PERFORMANCE, SMART,
TRAINING, 25'

USD 30.60 USD 6,120.00 USD 0.00 USD 6,120.00

76 22012 TPPM, BATTERY PACK, TACTICAL,
PINKY EXTENDER, X2/X26P

USD 54.50 USD 4,142.00 USD 0.00 USD 4,142.00

2 22012 TPPM, BATTERY PACK, TACTICAL,
PINKY EXTENDER, X2/X26P

USD 54.50 USD 109.00 USD 109.00 USD 0.00

2 22013 KIT, DATAPORT DOWNLOAD, USB, X2/
X26P

USD 164.75 USD 329.50 USD 329.50 USD 0.00



Page 2 of 3

QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL BEFORE
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT ($) NET TOTAL

60 85049 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW
ANNUAL PAYMENT, X2

USD 211.15 USD 12,669.00 USD 12,000.00 USD 669.00

60 85047 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW, X2 USD 0.00 USD 0.00 USD 0.00 USD 0.00

2 85047 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW, X2 USD 0.00 USD 0.00 USD 0.00 USD 0.00

Due Net 30 + shipping at bottom Total Before Discounts: USD 96,762.40

Due Net 30 + shipping at bottom Net Amount Due: USD 82,264.00

Due Year 2

QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL BEFORE
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT ($) NET TOTAL

60 85049 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW
ANNUAL PAYMENT, X2

USD 211.15 USD 12,669.00 USD 0.00 USD 12,669.00

Due Year 2 Total Before Discounts: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 2 Net Amount Due: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 3

QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL BEFORE
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT ($) NET TOTAL

60 85049 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW
ANNUAL PAYMENT, X2

USD 211.15 USD 12,669.00 USD 0.00 USD 12,669.00

Due Year 3 Total Before Discounts: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 3 Net Amount Due: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 4

QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL BEFORE
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT ($) NET TOTAL

60 85049 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW
ANNUAL PAYMENT, X2

USD 211.15 USD 12,669.00 USD 0.00 USD 12,669.00

Due Year 4 Total Before Discounts: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 4 Net Amount Due: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 5

QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL BEFORE
DISCOUNT

DISCOUNT ($) NET TOTAL

60 85049 TASER ASSURANCE PLAN CEW
ANNUAL PAYMENT, X2

USD 211.15 USD 12,669.00 USD 0.00 USD 12,669.00

Due Year 5 Total Before Discounts: USD 12,669.00

Due Year 5 Net Amount Due: USD 12,669.00

Subtotal USD 132,940.00

Estimated Shipping & Handling Cost USD 220.15

Grand Total USD 133,160.15



Page 3 of 3

 
 

 
 

TASER International, Inc.’s Sales Terms and Conditions
for Direct Sales to End User Purchasers 

 
By signing this Quote, you are entering into a contract and you certify that you have read and agree to the provisions set forth in this Quote and TASER’s current
Sales Terms and Conditions for Direct Sales to End User Purchasers or, in the alternative, TASER’s current Sales Terms and Conditions for Direct Sales to
End User Purchasers for Sales with Financing if your purchase involves financing with TASER. If your purchase includes the TASER Assurance Plan (TAP),
then you are also agreeing to TASER’s current Sales Terms and Conditions for the AXON Flex™ and AXON Body™ Cameras TASER Assurance Plan (U.S.
Only) and/or Sales Terms and Conditions for the X2/X26P and TASER CAM HD Recorder TASER Assurance Plan (U.S. Only), as applicable to your product
purchase. All of the sales terms and conditions, as well as, the TAP terms and conditions are posted at http://www.taser.com/sales-terms-and-conditions. If your
purchase includes AXON hardware and/or EVIDENCE.com services you are also agreeing to the terms in the EVIDENCE.com Master Service Agreement
posted at https://www.taser.com/serviceagreement14. If your purchase includes Professional Services, you are also agreeing to the terms in the Professional
Service Agreement posted at  https://www.taser.com/professional-services-agreement. If your purchase includes Integration Services, you are also agreeing to the
terms in the SOW posted at  https://www.taser.com/integrationstatementofwork14. You represent that you are lawfully able to enter into contracts and if you are
entering into this agreement for an entity, such as the company, municipality, or government agency you work for, you represent to TASER that you have legal
authority to bind that entity. If you do not have this authority, do not sign this Quote.

 
 

 
Signature:

/s1/  
         Date:

/d1/

 
Name (Print):

/n1/  
          Title:

/t1/

 
PO# (if needed):

/p1/

 
Please sign and email to Tom Recker at trecker@taser.com or fax to

 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

 
‘Protect Life’ and © are trademarks of TASER International, Inc., and TASER® is a registered trademark of TASER International, Inc., registered in the U.S.

© 2013 TASER International, Inc. All rights reserved.

 

http://www.taser.com/sales-terms-and-conditions
https://www.taser.com/serviceagreement14
https://www.taser.com/professional-services-agreement
https://www.taser.com/integrationstatementofwork14


Benefits
New CEW After 5 Years

 Guaranteed upgrade cycle 

Budget Certainty 

Identify the exact yearly cost of your 
agency’s TASER CEW program

Upgrade Technology

 Without the time constraints   
 associated with capital acquisitions

Price Lock SAVINGS 

 Protection from global inflation

Conserve Capital 

 Make your budget dollars work harder

On-site Spare CEWs:

 Officers experience zero downtime

Features
Full Program Deployment

5 Year Terms

No Pre-Pay Penalty

Warranty Coverage Included

What Products Qualify?
X2™ CEWs

X26P™ CEWs

TASER CAM™ HD

What is the TASER® Assurance Plan?
The TASER Assurance Plan (TAP) is our new service program, integrating 
warranty coverage for your current Conducted Energy Weapons (CEWs) with a 
free upgrade handle after the 5th payment along with on-site spares so officers 
experience zero downtime.

One Stop for Service and Support
Only TAP gives you the service you need today and the protection you want 
tomorrow. Not only does TAP secure you today’s price, it also guarantees a 
superior level of personal support for your CEWs and your agency for the next 
five years. Peace of mind: just another way TASER is putting your security first.

Software Support Included
Whether you are an armorer or patrol officer, you’ll have access to prompt and 
personalized direct support from TASER experts on a wide range of topics.

Hardware Coverage
TAP provides “no questions asked” repair coverage for CEWs or TCAM HDs. No 
matter what happens, you can rest easy – we’ll take care of it for you.

Questions
Visit www.TASER.com/tap

Protect Your Present... Plan for Your Future

X2™, X26P™ and TASER CAM™ HD are trademarks of TASER International, Inc., and TASER® and the ø logo are registered trademarks of TASER International, Inc., registered in the U.S.
© 2013 TASER Internatoinal, Inc. All rights reserved.



CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR

TIGARD – TASER: TASER ASSURANCE PROGRAM

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 13th of October, 2015 by and between the City of Tigard, a 
municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called City, and TASER International, hereinafter 
called Seller, collectively hereinafter called the “Parties.”

RECITALS
WHEREAS, Seller has submitted a bid or proposal to City for the sale of certain goods; and

WHEREAS, Seller is in the business of selling certain goods and is aware of the purposes for which City will 
use the goods; and

WHEREAS, City and Seller wish to enter into a contract under which City shall purchase the goods 
described in Seller’s bid or proposal;

THEREFORE, The Parties agree as follows:

1. GOODS TO BE PROVIDED
City shall purchase 60 Class III X2 Conducted Electrical Weapons and associated cartridges, battery 
packs and holsters as outlined in the attached quote through the TASER Assurance Program from 
Seller in accordance with:
A. The specifications (including any addenda) attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 

herein by this reference;

B. The Seller’s proposal dated August 10, 2015, which was accepted by the Contract Review 
Board  attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by this reference; and

C. The City’s Standard Terms and Conditions attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated by 
this reference.

2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION
This Agreement shall become effective upon the date of execution by the City’s Local Contract Review 
Board and shall expire, unless otherwise terminated or extended, on October 13, 2020 whichever comes 
first.  All goods under this Agreement shall be delivered and completed prior to the expiration of this 
Agreement.

3. COMPENSATION
A. City hereby agrees to pay Seller Eighty-two thousand two hundred sixty four and no cents

($82,264.00) for the goods, including shipping and handling.  The total purchase price shall be 
considered payment for all Sellers’ obligations described in this agreement.  Seller shall invoice 
City the purchase price upon the delivery of the goods.  City shall have thirty (30) days after 
receipt of invoice in which to make payment.  Seller shall be responsible for the payment of all 
taxes associated with the sale of the goods.  City is exempt from the payment of Federal 
Excise Tax.

B. Seller shall promptly advise City of all reasonably available technological advances that are 
known or become known to Seller while this agreement is in effect which may result in the 
goods having added value, capacity, or usefulness when used for City’s purpose.  If Seller 
intends to provide goods incorporating technological advances and still meeting the 



specifications and the City’s needs at no additional charge, Seller shall provide City with 30
days’ notice of the proposed change.  The City may require that only goods not incorporating 
the changes be supplied by providing written notice to seller within 5 days of receiving the 
notice of the proposed change.  Any other changes incorporating technological advances shall 
only be approved as an amendment to this agreement.

C. The City certifies that sufficient funds are available and authorized for expenditure to finance 
costs of this contract during the City’s FY 2015-16 fiscal year.  Funding for future fiscal years 
shall be subject to the adoption of the budget by the Tigard City Council.

4. DELIVERY
Seller shall deliver the goods no later than 30 days after receipt of City’s purchase order, with the 
exception of any back-ordered items, together with an executed copy of this Agreement.  Seller agrees 
to provide goods as specified in Exhibit A.

Within 30 days following delivery, City shall inspect the goods and shall notify Seller immediately of 
any damaged items.  No language contained in a purchase order, work order, or delivery order shall vary, 
amend, modify, or add terms or conditions to this Agreement under which the order is placed.

5. INSTALLATION
Unless the Specifications (Exhibit A) or the proposal (Exhibit B) require installation by Seller, the City 
shall install the goods purchased under this agreement.  Any installation by Seller shall be in 
accordance with the provision of this agreement, including all Exhibits.

6. TESTING AND ACCEPTANCE
Seller shall test the goods prior to delivery.  Seller's tests shall determine whether the goods meet 
Seller's specifications and are fit for the purpose intended.  Acceptance or rejection of the goods 
purchased shall occur 10 days after delivery and inspection by Buyer.  Failure to inspect and accept or 
reject goods shall neither relieve Seller from responsibility for such goods, which do not meet the 
requirements in this Agreement nor impose liability on Buyer.

7. RISK OF LOSS
Risk of loss to goods in shipment (including damage, destruction, theft, or loss) shall be borne by the 
Seller.  Risk of loss shall not pass to Buyer until the goods are delivered to and checked in at the 
location specified by Buyer.

8. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION
Neither party shall assign or transfer any interest in or duty under this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other and any attempted assignment or transfer without the written consent of the other 
party shall be invalid.

9. SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING PAYMENTS
All notices and bills shall be made in writing and may be given by personal delivery, mail or fax.  
Payments may be made by personal delivery, mail, or electronic transfer.  The following addresses shall 
be used to transmit notices, bills, payments, and other information:



CONTRACT MANAGER FOR CITY TASER INTERNATIONAL

Attn: Lt. David Frisendahl Attn: Legal Department
Address: 13125 SW Hall Blvd.

Tigard, Oregon 97223
Address: 17800 N 85th Street

Scottsdale, Arizona 85255
Phone: (503) 718-2567 Phone: (800) 978-2737
Fax: Fax: 
Email Address: David.Frisendahl@tigard-or.gov EmailAddress: contracts@taser.com

10. TERMINATION
City has the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate without cause or for no cause, to termination this 
Agreement at any time by giving notice to Seller.  If City terminates the contract pursuant to this section, 
it shall pay Seller for goods shipped by Seller prior to receipt by Seller of the notice of termination.  City 
may deduct the amount of damages, if any, sustained by City due to any breach of contract or warranty 
by Seller.  Damages for breach of contract or warranty shall be those allowed by Oregon law, reasonable 
and necessary attorney fees, witness fees (expert and non-expert), and other costs of litigation at trial and 
on appeal.

11. ACCESS TO RECORDS
City shall have access to such books, documents, papers and records of Seller as are directly pertinent to
this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

12. FORCE MAJEURE
Neither City nor Seller shall be considered in default because of any delays in completion and
responsibilities hereunder due to causes beyond the control and without fault or negligence on the part of 
the parties so disenabled, including but not restricted to, natural disaster, war, civil unrest, volcano, 
earthquake, fire, flood, epidemic, quarantine restriction, area-wide strike, freight embargo, unusually 
severe weather or delay of subseller or supplies due to such cause; provided that the parties so disenabled 
shall within ten (10) days from the beginning of such delay, notify the other party in writing of the cause 
of delay and its probable extent.  Such notification shall not be the basis for a claim for additional 
compensation.  Each party shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a 
cause of delay or default and shall, upon cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its 
obligation under the Agreement.

13. NON-DISCRIMINATION
Seller agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation 
statues, rules, and regulations. Seller also shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 
ORS 659.425, and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws.

14. WARRANTY AGAINST DEFECTS
Seller warrants that the goods shall remain free of defects in material and workmanship for a period of 
one (1) year commencing the date of City's acceptance.  Such defects shall include any failure of the 
goods to meet Seller's specifications or the description contained in Seller's product literature.  If 
within the warranty period City discovers such a defect, Seller shall repair or replace the defective item 
or component free of charge.  If after three attempts Seller is unable to eliminate a defect, or if Seller 
does not commence the warranty work within the time allowed in this paragraph, City shall have the 
right to return the defective item or component and, at City's option, either obtain a full refund of the 
purchase price of the goods or obtain a refund, in an amount to be agreed upon by the parties, of the 
portion of the purchase price of the goods that is allocable to the defective item or component.  Seller 
shall commence all warranty work within 48 hours of receiving notice of the warranty claim.  All 



warranty work shall be performed at City's facilities unless otherwise agreed by the parties.  If 
warranty work is performed at Seller's facilities, Seller shall pay all shipping costs, including the cost of 
return shipment.  This warranty shall apply to all repair parts furnished by Seller and all repairs 
performed by Seller.

15. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY WARRANTY
Seller warrants that none of the goods, the use thereof or any of the applications, processes or designs 
employed in the manufacture thereof infringes the valid claims of any letter patent, patent application, 
copyright, trade secret or any other property right of any third party.  If as a result of any suit or 
proceeding alleging an infringement of any of the foregoing property rights City's use of the 
equipment is enjoined, Seller shall at no cost to City either obtain for City a license to use the goods 
or modify the goods so as to avoid the infringement without any degradation in performance.  If 
Seller cannot obtain such a license and cannot so modify the equipment, Seller shall promptly refund 
to City the purchase price, less a reasonable amount for depreciation.

16. ASSIGNMENT OF MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTIES
Seller hereby assigns all warranties of the manufacturers of components of the goods to City to the 
extent such warranties are assignable.  In the event Seller must obtain the consent of the manufacturer 
or take other action before any such warranties are assignable, Seller shall do so prior to delivery.

17. INDEMNITY/HOLD HARMLESS
Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City, City's officers, employees, agents and 
representatives from and against all liability, claims, demands, judgments, penalties, and causes of 
action of any kind or character, or other reasonable costs or expenses incidental to the investigation 
and defense thereof, of whatever nature, resulting from or arising out of the tortious acts or 
omissions, willful misconduct, or product defects of the Seller or its subsellers, agents, or employees 
under this contract, except, however, that the foregoing shall not apply to liability that arises out of 
City's negligence.

18. INSURANCE
Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain insurance acceptable to City in full force and effect 
throughout the term of this contract.  Such insurance shall cover all risks arising directly or indirectly out 
of Contractor's activities or work hereunder, including the operations of its subcontractors of any tier.

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Contractor and its subcontractor shall provide at 
least the following limits and coverages:

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: If Seller will be installing or testing the goods, or 
otherwise performing services on City's premises, Seller shall provide a certificate indicating 
that Seller has commercial general liability insurance covering Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage on an “occurrence” form (CG 2010 1185 or equivalent).  This coverage shall include 
Contractual Liability insurance.  Coverage will include $2,000,000 per occurrence and 
$3,000,000 general annual aggregate.  Said insurance shall name City as an additional insured 
and shall require written notice to City thirty (30) days prior to cancellation.  If Seller hires a 
subseller to perform services on City's premises, Seller shall ensure that Seller's subseller 
complies with this paragraph.

B. Business Automobile Liability Insurance: If Seller will be delivering the goods, Seller shall 
provide City a certificate indicating that Seller has business automobile liability coverage for all 
owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles.  The Combined Single Limit per occurrence shall not 
be less than $2,000,000.  Said insurance shall name City as an additional insured and shall 



require written notice to City thirty (30) days in advance of cancellation.  If Seller hires a 
carrier to make delivery, Seller shall ensure that said carrier complies with this paragraph.

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance: The Seller, its subsellers, if any, and all employers 
providing work, labor or materials under this Contract that are either subject employers under 
the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law and shall comply with ORS 656.017, which requires 
them to provide workers’ compensation coverage that satisfies Oregon law for all their subject 
workers or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.  Out-of-state employers must 
provide Oregon workers’ compensation coverage for their workers who work at a single 
location within Oregon for more than 30 days in a calendar year.  Sellers who perform work 
without the assistance or labor of any employee need not obtain such coverage.  This shall 
include Employer’s Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 each 
accident.

D. Certificates of Insurance: As evidence of the insurance coverage required by the contract, the 
Seller shall furnish a Certificate of Insurance to the City.  No contract shall be effected until 
the required certificates have been received and approved by the City.  The certificate will 
specify and document all provisions within this contract.

20. ATTORNEY'S FEES
In case suit or action is instituted to enforce the provisions of this contract, the parties agree that the 
losing party shall pay such sum as the court may adjudge reasonable attorney fees and court costs, 
including witness fees (expert and non-expert), attorney's fees and court costs on appeal.

21. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS/RULES
Seller shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but 
not limited to, the requirements concerning working hours, overtime, medical care, workers 
compensation insurance, health care payments, payments to employees and subsellers and income tax 
withholding contained in ORS Chapter 279, the provisions of which are hereby made a part of this 
agreement.

22. CONFLICT BETWEEN TERMS
It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any conflict between 
the terms of this instrument in the proposal of the contract, this instrument shall control and nothing 
herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of proposal conflicting herewith.

23. SEVERABILITY
In the event any provision or portion of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable or invalid by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected 
to the extent that it did not materially affect the intent of the parties when they entered into the 
agreement.

24. COMPLETE AGREEMENT
This Agreement, including the exhibits, is intended both as a final expression of the Agreement between 
the parties and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms.  In the event of an inconsistency 
between a provision in the main body of the Agreement and a provision in the Exhibit, the provision in 
the main body of the Agreement shall control.  In the event of an inconsistency between Exhibit A and 
any other exhibit, Exhibit A shall control.  In the event of an inconsistency between Exhibit C and 
Exhibit B, Exhibit B shall control.  No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until 
it is made in writing and signed by both parties.  No waiver, consent, modification, or change of terms of 
this Agreement shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both parties.  Such waiver, consent, 



modification, or change if made, shall be effective only in specific instances and for the specific purpose 
given.  There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement. Seller, by the signature of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges 
that Seller has read this Agreement, understands it and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized 
undersigned officer and Seller has executed this Agreement on the date hereinabove first written.  
Approved by Tigard’s Local Contract Review Board at their October 13, 2015 business meeting.

CITY OF TIGARD TASER INTERNATIONAL

By: Authorized City Representative By: Authorized Contractor Representative

Date Date



EXHIBIT A
GOODS TO BE PROVIDED

Summary outlined in the table below:

Detailed description of items as per the attached quote Q-30639-2 dated August 10, 2015.

Quote: Q-30639-2
Taser Assurance Plan 
Purchase
2015: Contract Qty Unit Price

2015 
YEAR 1

2016 
Year 2

2017 
Year 3

2018 
Year 4

2019 
Year 5

Total Contract 
Value

X2 CEW 60 $1,029.95 $61,797.00 $61,797.00 
X2 CEW (spares) 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
TPPM battery pack 76 $54.50 $4,142.00 $4,142.00 
TPPM battery pack (extra) 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Dataport download kit 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Holsters (48 R/12 L) 60 $65.85 $3,951.00 $3,951.00 
25' Smart Cartridges 150 $31.50 $4,725.00 $4,725.00 
25' Inert Simulation Cartridges 20 $43.00 $860.00 $860.00 
Training cartridges, 25' 200 $30.60 $6,120.00 $6,120.00 
Taser Assurance Plan CEW 60 $211.15 $12,669.00 $12,669.00 $12,669.00 $12,669.00 $12,669.00 $63,345.00 
Taser Assurance Plan DISCOUNT 0 $0.00 ($12,000.00) ($12,000.00)
Taser Assurance Plan CEW 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Estimated shipping & Handling $220.15 $220.15 
Net 30 + tax/shipping $82,484.15 12,669.00 12,669.00 12,669.00 12,669.00  $133,160.15 



EXHIBIT B
SELLER’S PROPOSAL

Please see attached quote Q-30639-2 Dated August 10, 2015



EXHIBIT C
CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS FOR THE PURCHASE OF SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES
1. DEFINITIONS:  ’Contract’ shall mean the entire written agreement between the Parties, including but not limited to any Invitation to 

Bid, Request for Proposal, or submitted quote and its specifications, terms, conditions, solicitation instructions, addenda, contract 
amendments, price agreement documents, and purchase order.

‘Contractor’ shall mean a person or organization with which the City of Tigard has contracted for the purchase of goods or 
services.  The terms ‘Contractor’ and ‘Seller’ are synonymous as used in the Uniform Commercial code (Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) chapter 72).

‘City’ means the City of Tigard, Oregon and is synonymous with ‘Buyer’ as used in ORS chapter 12.  ‘City’ shall also mean an 
Oregon Cooperative Procurement Program (ORCPP) member if the purchase is being made under the State’s cooperative 
purchasing program as authorized by ORS 279A and Tigard’s Public Contracting Rules.

‘Parties’ shall collectively mean the ‘City’ and the ‘Contractor’.

2. ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT:  This Contract is the City’s offer to purchase the goods and/or services described herein 
from the Contractor.  The City’s placement of this Contract is expressly conditioned upon Contractor’s acceptance of all the 
terms and conditions of purchase contained on or attached to this Contract.

3. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION:  The Contractor, its subcontractors, and all employers providing work, labor, or materials 
under this Contract are subject employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law and shall comply with ORS 656.017, 
which requires them to provide Oregon Workers’ Compensation coverage that satisfies Oregon law for all their subject 
workers.  Contractor shall also comply with ORS 279B.230 regarding payment for medical care.

4. STANDARD AND SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  The terms and conditions printed on this page are standard 
to City contracts for the purchase of goods or trade services.  There may also be special terms and conditions detailed in an
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Quote Request, or other documents which may apply to this contract, and which are 
incorporated by this reference herein.

5. DELIVERY:  All deliveries shall be F.O.B. destination with all transportation and handling charges paid by Contractor unless 
specified otherwise in the Contract.  Responsibility and liability for loss or damage shall remain with Contractor until final 
inspection and acceptance when responsibility shall pass to the City except as to latent defects, fraud, and Contractor’s 
warranty obligations.

6. INSPECTIONS:  Goods furnished under this Contract shall be subject to inspection and test by the City at times and place 
determined by the City.  If the City finds goods furnished to be incomplete or not in compliance with solicitation 
specifications, the City may reject the goods and require Contractor to either correct them without charge or deliver them at a 
reduced price, whichever is equitable under the circumstances.  If Contractor is unable or refuses to cure any defects within a 
time deemed reasonable by the City, the City may reject the goods and cancel the contract in whole or in part.  Nothing in this 
paragraph shall in any way affect or limit the City’s rights as Buyer, including the rights and remedies relating to rejection 
under ORS 72.6020 and revocation of acceptance under ORS 72.6080.

7. WARRANTIES:  Unless otherwise stated, all goods shall be new and current model and shall carry full manufacturer 
warranties.  Contractor warrants all goods delivered to be free from defects in labor, material and manufacture and to be in 
compliance with solicitation specifications.  All implied and expressed warranty provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code 
(ORS chapter 72) are incorporated in this contract. All warranties shall run to the City.  Contractor warrants that the material 
and/or equipment furnished do not infringe any patent registered trademark or copyright, and agrees to save, hold harmless, 
and indemnify the City in the event of any claim of infringement.

8. CASH DISCOUNT:  If the City is entitled to a cash discount, the period of computation shall commence on the date the entire 
order is delivered or the date the invoice is received, whichever is later.

9. PAYMENT:  Payment for completion of City contracts is typically made within 30 days following the date the entire order is 
delivered or the date the invoice is received, whichever is later.

10. TERMINATION:  This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or by the City at its sole discretion.  
The City may cancel an order for goods at any time with written notice to Contractor, stating the extent and effective date of 
termination.  Upon receipt of this written notice, Contractor shall stop performance under this Contract as directed by 
the City. If this Contract is so terminated, Contractor shall be paid in accordance with the terms of the Contract for goods 



delivered and accepted if Contractor's damages arising out of return of the goods cannot be mitigated by the resale as provided 
in the Uniform Commercial Code (ORS 72.7060).

11. FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither City nor Contractor shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of 
God and/or war, which is beyond the Party's reasonable control.  The City may terminate this contract upon written 
notice after determining such delay or default will reasonably prevent successful performance of this Contract.

12. BREACH OF CONTRACT:  Should Contractor breach any of the provisions of this Contract, the City reserves the right to 
cancel this Contract upon written notice to Contractor.  Contractor shall be liable for any and all damages suffered by the City as 
the result of Contractor's breach of Contract including but not limited to incidental and consequential damages, as 
provided in ORS 72.7110 to 72.7170.  In the event of repeated breach of public and/or private contracts, Contractor 
shall be subject to disqualification for City contracts, as provided in ORS chapter 279B and Tigard’s Public Contracting 
Rules.

13. INDEMNIFICATION:  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, City's officers, employees, agents, and 
representatives from and against all liability, claims, demands, judgments, penalties, and causes of action of any kind or character, or 
other reasonable costs or expensed incidental to the investigation and defense thereof, of whatever nature, resulting from or arising 
out of the tortious acts or omissions, willful misconduct, or product defects of the Contractor or is subcontractors, agents, or 
employees under this Contract, except, however, that the foregoing shall not apply to liability that arises out of City's negligence.

14. ACCESS TO RECORDS:  Contractor shall maintain all fiscal records relating to this Contract in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall maintain any other records relating to this Contract in such a manner as to clearly 
document Contractor's performance hereunder.  The City and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to such 
fiscal records and to all other books, documents, papers, plans and writings of Contractor which relate to this Contract, to 
perform examination, and audits and make excerpts and transcripts.

15. AMENDMENTS:  The terms of this contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner 
whatsoever without prior written approval of the City.

16. SEVERABILITY:  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require the commission of any act contrary to law, and wherever 
there is any conflict between the provisions contained herein and any present or future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary to 
which to the parties have no legal right to contract, the latter shall prevail.  The provision of this Contract, which is affected, shall be 
curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirement of the law.

17. WAIVER:  Failure of the City to enforce any provision of this Contract shall not be a waiver or relinquishment by the City of its 
right to such performance in the future nor of the right to enforce any other provisions of this Contract.

18. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION, VENUE:  This Contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Oregon, without resort to any jurisdiction's conflict of laws, rules, or doctrines.  Any claim, action, suit, or 
proceeding (collectively, "the Claim”) between the City and the Contractor that arises from or relates to this Contract 
shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Washington County for the State of 
Oregon.  Provided, however, if the claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted solely 
and exclusively within the Portland office of the United States District Court for the District of Oregon.  Contractor hereby 
consents to the in personam jurisdiction of said courts.

19. ASSIGNMENT/SUBCONTRACT/SUCCESSORS:  The Contractor shall not assign or subcontract any of its rights or obligations 
hereunder without the prior written approval of the City.  Any unapproved assignment shall be void.  Contractor shall be fully responsible 
for the acts or omissions of any subcontractors and all persons employed by them, and neither the approval by City of any subcontract 
nor anything contained herein shall be deemed to create any contractual relation between the subcontractor and the City.  The provisions 
of this Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the Parties to the Contract and their respective 
successors and assigns.

20. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS:  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, codes, regulations and 
ordinances applicable to the provision of goods under this contract, including, without limitation, the provisions of ORS 
279C.505, 279C.515, and 279B.235, as set forth below and the provisions of:(i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) 
Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub L No 101- 336). ORS 
659.425, and all amendments of and regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws; and (iv) all other 
applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

21. PAYMENTS REQUIRED BY ORS 279C.505 AND 279B.220:  For all goods provided under this Contract, Contractor shall (i) 
pay promptly, as due, all persons supplying labor or material; (ii) pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund 
from the Contractor or any subcontractor; (iii) not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state, county, 



school district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof; and (iv) pay to the Department of Revenue all 
sums withheld from employees pursuant to ORS 316.167.

22. CITY PAYMENT OF CONTRACTOR CLAIMS:  If Contractor fails, neglects, or refuses to pay promptly as due, any claim 
for labor or services furnished to the Contractor or any subcontractor by any person in connection with the goods provided 
under this Contract, the City may pay such claim and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become 
due the Contractor under this Contract.  The payment of a claim by the City pursuant to paragraph 21 shall not relieve the 
Contractor or its surety, if any, from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims.

23. HOURS OF LABOR:  No person shall be employed by the Contractor for more than ten hours in any one day, or 40 
hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, emergency, or where public policy absolutely requires it, and in 
such cases the laborer s h a l l  b e  p a i d  a t  l e a s t  t i m e - a n d - a - h a l f  p a y  f o r  a l l  o v e r t i m e  i n  e x c e s s  of ten
hours a day and for work performed on Saturday and on the legal holidays, including each Sunday, as specified in ORS 
279B.020 and 279C.540.

24. SAFETY AND HEALTH REQUIREMENTS:  Goods and services provided under this Contract shall comply with all federal 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) requirements and with all Oregon safety and health 
requirements, including those of the State Workers’ Compensation Division.

25. AWARD TO FOREIGN CONTRACTOR:  If Contractor is not domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of 
Oregon, Contractor shall promptly provide to the Oregon Department of Revenue and the Secretary of State Corporation 
Division all information required by those agencies relative to this contract.  The City shall withhold final payment under this 
contract until Contractor has met this requirement.

26. RECYCLABLE PRODUCTS:  Contractor shall use recyclable products to the maximum extent economically feasible in the 
performance of this Contract.  Contractor shall specify the minimum percentage of recycled product in the goods provided.

27. MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET (MSDS):  In accordance with the OR-OSHA Hazard Communication Rules in OAR 
chapter 437, Contractor shall provide the City with a Material Safety Data Sheet for any goods provided under this 
Contract which may release, or otherwise result in exposure to, a hazardous chemical under normal conditions of use (OAR 437-
002-0360).  In addition, Contractor must label, tag or mark such goods.

28. LICENSE/CERTIFICATION:  The Contractor shall have a business license from the City and be EEO certified, if required 
under City Code.



   

AIS-2379       10.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 10/13/2015

Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes  

Agenda Title: 72nd and Dartmouth Intersection Improvements
Developer Costs

Prepared For: Toby LaFrance Submitted By: Carol
Krager,
Central
Services

Item Type: Motion Requested Meeting Type: Council
Business
Meeting -
Main

Public Hearing 
Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: 

No 
 

Public Hearing Publication
Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

Shall Council authorize the City Manager to execute the attached letter fulfilling the intent of
the signal funds collected from prior development in the Tigard Triangle and reimburse the
developer who installed the traffic signals at the intersections of Dartmouth Street with 72nd
and 68th Avenues?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Authorize the City Manager to execute the attached letter to reimburse Walmart Real Estate
Business Trust for its portion of costs from the signal fund.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Since 1999, development in the Tigard Triangle has been contributing to a signal fund to pay
their share for the future signalization of the intersections of Dartmouth Street with 72nd and
68th Avenues.  The City of Tigard has maintained the signal funds in a liability account in the
Gas Tax Fund.  All the contributions totaling $343,475.66 are listed in Exhibit A.

This year, the Walmart Real Estate Business Trust completed and paid for the installation of
signals at these two intersections.  Their development impacts triggered the installation of
both intersection signals.  Consistent with the intent of the contributions from prior
development, the Trust should be reimbursed for a portion of the cost from the collected



signal funds. During construction, change orders in the amount of $22,937 reduced the
amount of the signal funds available to Walmart, making the total reimbursement
$320,538.66.  This is also on the attached Exhibit A.

In order to meet audit requirements, the City needs approval from an authorized body to
make the reimbursement.  Staff reviewed the development record for the Walmart Real
Estate Business Trust and it does not provide this authorized approval.  Attached to this
agenda item is a letter from the City Manager to the Walmart Real Estate Business Trust.  By
Council authorizing the City Manager to execute the letter, the city can reimburse the
Walmart Real Estate Business Trust in the amount of $320,538.66 and audit requirements will
be met.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Council could choose to not authorize the City Manager at this time.

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

Fiscal Impact

Cost: $320,538.66

Budgeted (yes or no): Yes

Where Budgeted (department/program): Public Works

Additional Fiscal Notes:

The payment to Walmart is a pass-through of contributions made by prior developers in the
Tigard Triangle area.  The cost of the reimbursement was accrued to last fiscal year.  If
Council authorizes the City Manager to execute the attached letter, the expense will come
against FY 2015 Public Works budget which has sufficient remaining capacity to cover the
expenditure. 

There is no impact to the current FY 2016 Adopted Budget.

Attachments

Letter

Exhibit A



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Volker Heimeshoff 
Vice President of Prototype and New Format Development 
2001 Southeast 10th Street, MS 5510 
Bentonville, AR 72716-5510 
 
October 13, 2015 
 
Re: Walmart Signal Reimbursement 
 
Dear Mr. Heimeshoff: 
 
Walmart recently completed construction of a Walmart store on property in the Tigard 
Triangle, which included the construction of traffic signals at the intersections of 72nd 
Avenue/Dartmouth and 68th Avenue/Dartmouth, as required by the City’s land use 
approval.  Generally, as a condition of development in the Tigard Triangle, all development 
must contribute funds to an intersection deposit account for future signalization within this 
area (“Signal Fund”).  However, in lieu of this contribution, Walmart constructed these 
signals with the understanding that the City of Tigard would reimburse Walmart for a 
portion of its costs from the Signal Fund, once the project was complete.  Walmart provided 
documentation of the costs of the signal installations in June 2015. 
 
The City of Tigard and Walmart agree that Walmart is entitled to $320,538.66 as 
reimbursement for a portion of its costs for the Signal Fund.  The City therefore authorizes 
reimbursing the Walmart Real Estate Business Trust from the Signal Fund. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Martha Wine, City Manager 
City of Tigard   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Account Number Description Debit This Period Credit This Period

Exhibit A

200 GAS TAX FUND

LIABILITIES

200-0000-22000 Customer Deposits Debit Credit

06/22/2000 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth ROCKY MOUNTAIN LAND 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 533.00

09/25/2000 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth DST - COUNTER 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 1,200.00

05/05/2000 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth MAGNOLI HI-FI INC 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 2,000.00

10/26/2000 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth DST - COUNTER 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 25,333.00

10/24/2000 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth DST - COUNTER 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 26,667.00

05/15/2001 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth DST- COUNTER 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 6,800.00

07/17/2002 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth CD - COUNTER 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 9,067.00

08/15/2003 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth CD - COUNTER 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 1,067.00

05/21/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 221.05.2004 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 501.00

06/28/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 228.06.2004 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 727.00

08/20/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 220.08.2004 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 1,002.00

05/25/2005 Cash Receipts Batch 225.05.2005 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 2,133.00

10/19/2005 Cash Receipts Batch 219.10.2005 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 5,012.00

09/14/2006 Cash Receipts Batch 214.09.2006 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 1,504.00

06/09/2006 Cust Depst-68th/Dartmouth SDR2004-00012  CD C 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 2,005.00

12/20/2007 Cash Receipts Batch 220.12.2007 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 1,002.50

02/13/2007 Cash Receipts Batch 213.02.2007 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 42,105.00

12/02/2008 Dartmouth Square LLC - SDR2006-10001/Dartmout 68th/Dartmouth 18,545.00 0.00

01/18/2008 Cash Receipts Batch 218.01.2008 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 501.25

05/14/2008 Cash Receipts Batch 214.05.2008 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 2,506.27

06/27/2008 Cash Receipts Batch 227.06.2008 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 18,545.00

04/27/2009 Cash Receipts Batch 227.04.2009 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 711.62

07/02/2009 Cash Receipts Batch 202.07.2009 68th/Dartmouth 0.00 1,500.00

05/29/2014 Customer Deposits  CD Counter 68th/Dartmouth 3508.77 137,386.41 68th Intersection Contributions

12/17/1999 Cash Receipts - DOS JE 31 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 10,000.00

11/10/1999 Cash Receipts - DOS JE 18 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 14,667.00

12/17/1999 Cash Receipts - DOS JE 31 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 20,000.00

06/22/2000 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth ROCKY MOUNTAIN LAND 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 1,454.00

09/25/2000 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth DST - COUNTER 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 4,000.00

05/05/2000 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth MAGNOLI HI-FI INC 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 4,182.00

10/26/2000 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth DST - COUNTER 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 5,818.00

10/24/2000 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth DST - COUNTER 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 41,818.00

05/15/2001 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth DST- COUNTER 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 2,364.00

07/17/2002 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth CD - COUNTER 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 6,364.00

08/15/2003 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth CD - COUNTER 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 2,182.00

07/20/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 220.07.2004 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 501.00

05/21/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 221.05.2004 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 712.00

07/20/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 220.07.2004 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 712.00

06/28/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 228.06.2004 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 1,067.00

08/20/2004 Cash Receipts Batch 220.08.2004 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 3,636.00

05/25/2005 Cash Receipts Batch 225.05.2005 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 6,909.00

10/19/2005 Cash Receipts Batch 219.10.2005 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 12,097.00

06/09/2006 Cust Depst-72nd/Dartmouth SDR2004-00012  CD C 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 712.00

09/14/2006 Cash Receipts Batch 214.09.2006 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 712.00

12/20/2007 Cash Receipts Batch 220.12.2007 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 712.00

02/13/2007 Cash Receipts Batch 213.02.2007 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 30,600.00

12/02/2008 Dartmouth Square LLC - SDR2006-1000/Dartmouth 72nd/Dartmouth 14,536.00 0.00

01/18/2008 Cash Receipts Batch 218.01.2008 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 712.62

05/14/2008 Cash Receipts Batch 214.05.2008 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 10,674.26

06/27/2008 Cash Receipts Batch 227.06.2008 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 14,536.00

04/27/2009 Cash Receipts Batch 227.04.2009 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 711.62

05/29/2014 Customer Deposits  CD Counter 72nd/Dartmouth 0.00 22,771.75 206,089.25 72nd Intersection Contributions

343,475.66 Total Contributions

1/31/2015 Signal Funds - 72nd & 68th/Dartmouth 44,412.00 0.00

6/30/2015 Adjust Walmart share of 72nd & 69th/Dartmouth 0.00 21,475.00

-22,937.00 Adjustment for Change Order

320,538.66$    Amount due to Walmart


	Agenda
	Item__A Council Liaison Reports
	Item_B_Tigard Enterprise Zone Expansion with City of Lake Oswego
	ATT_Proposed Tigard_Lake Oswego Enterprise Zone Map (Draft)
	ATT_Expaned view of sites in Lake Oswego (Draft)
	ATT_Tigard Enterprise Zone

	Item_C Briefing on Two Upcoming IGA's with Metro for Trail Segments
	ATT_Tiedeman Description
	ATT_Tiedeman Map
	ATT_Sunrise Area
	ATT_Sunrise Aerial

	Item_D DISCUSS CITY MANAGER EVALUATION CRITERIA AND PROCESS
	ATT_City Mgr. 2015 Process Memo to Council 
	ATT_City Mgr. 2014 Eval Form
	ATT_City Mgr. 2014 External Partner Questions
	ATT_City Mgr. 2015 Eval Form Draft
	ATT_City Mgr. 2015 External Partner Questions Draft

	Item_3_A Receive and File_  Council Calendar and Council Tentative Agenda
	ATT_Council Calendar
	ATT_Tentative Agenda

	Item_03_B Approve City Council Meeting Minutes
	ATT_September 8, 2015 Draft Council Minutes
	ATT_September 15, 2015 Draft Council Minutes
	ATT_September 22, 2015 Draft Council Minutes

	Item_4 Legislative Session Wrap-up
	ATT_2015 Federal Lobbying Trip Follow-up
	ATT_Federal Legislative Agenda
	ATT_State Legislative Agenda

	Item_5 Develop 2016 Federal and State Legislative Agenda
	ATT_2015 State Legislative Agenda
	ATT_2015 Federal Legislative Agenda

	Item_11_06 QJ Public Hearing_ Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zone Change for Fields Trust
	ATT_CPA2015-00004 (Fields Trust) Staff Report
	ATT_CPA2015-00004 PC Minutes
	ATT_Ordinance
	ATT_Application Materials
	Attachment 1 surveyor legal description and exhibits for zone change 150511
	Attachment 2 City Council Package-2-18-14
	Attachment 3 LTR-City of Tigard-Transportation Planning Rule-150511
	Attachment 4 LTR-City of Tigard-Public Services Impact-150511
	Attachment 5 Neighborhood meeting materials
	Attachment 6 Deeds
	Attachment 7 140513 pre-app notes


	Item_7 FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental
	FY 2016 First Quarter Budget Supplemental
	ATT_Resolution
	ATT_Exhibit A
	ATT_Exhibit B
	ATT_Exhibit C

	Item_8 FY 2016 City Center Development Agency Budget Supplemental
	ATT_Resolution
	ATT_Exhibit A

	Item_9 Consideration of Taser purchase contract
	ATT_Council Memo and Taser Quote
	ATT_Taser Contract

	Item_10 72nd and Dartmouth Intersection Improvements Developer Costs
	ATT_Letter
	ATT_Exhibit A


